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LEADING ORGANIZATIONS
WORLDWIDE USE TALEO
ON DEMAND TALENT
MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS
TO ASSESS, ACQUIRE,
DEVELOP, AND ALIGN
THEIR WORKFORCE FOR
IMPROVED BUSINESS
PERFORMANCE.
ORGANIZATIONS

OF ALL SIZES TRUST

OUR PROVEN LEADERSHIP.
THEY USE OUR AWARD
WINNING SOLUTIONS AND
INNOVATIVE TECHNOLOGY
TO ACHIEVE SUCCESS —
POWERED BY TALEO.




LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

The gating factor to leng term growth for the majority of companies—in both the
global enterprise and the small and medium business markets—is the organization's
ability to altract and retain top talent. With immediate visibility into the gtobal job
market, compensation transparency, and record low unemployment worldwide,
employees have increased choice. This puts the responsibility on organizations to do
a much betier job of attracting talent and providing an environment of career progres-
sion based on periormance. This is a material issue for all companies that requires a
sophisticated holistic solution that Talec is uniquely positioned o deliver.

Our mission 1o provide 1he leading on demand talent management platform for
companies of all sizes moved significantly forward in 2006 with increased innovation
and stronger execution, This focus rewarded us with accelerated momentum in our
large global enterprise segment and dramatic growth in our emerging small and
medium business unit.

Cur ability to execute globally comes from our advanced technical architecture and
customer oriented applications that constitute our differentiated talent management
platform. Our worldwide leadership in talent management was recognized by multiple
awards for product and technology innovation, acknowledged by 1op industry
analysts, and validated by custormer choices throughout 20086.

We drove significant innovation with four new applications and made significant
investments in our processes and procedures across all aspects of the company.
These actions have formed a solid foundation to position us for both continued growth
and margin expansion. We demaonstrated proven abilities to grow our business,
increase market share, deliver successful new products, achieve 97 percent cusiomer
satisfaction, and enjoy a subscription renewal rate greater than 80 percent.

2006 Financial Results

Our financial highlights for 2008 included record customer acquisitions, record
revenues, and improved balance sheet strength. Total revenue was $97.0 million, an
increase of 24 percent over the prior year, while recurring application revenue was
$79.1 million, an increase of 25 percent. Non-GAAP net income was $2.9 million or
$0.11 per fully diluted share, compared to non-GAAP net income of $1.9 million and
$0.09 per share in 2005.

Large Global Enterprise Momentum

We now serve 104 of the Fortune 1000 and 32 of the Fortune 100. During 2006, we
added 30 Fortune 1000 and six Fortune 100 companies. While we have the largest
market share in the enterprise segment, we still see significant opportunities for further
growth. We are uniquely positioned to sell new innovative products into our aver
expanding customer base and take advantage of our position as the growing platform
leader for talent management. By continuing to invest in partnerships that move data
through our platform—as well as capturing intelligence in the form of value added
services related to that data—we will continue to develop new opportunities to help
our customers advance their talent management processes.

Dramatic Small and Medium Business Growth

In the small and medium business (SMB) market, Taleo Business Edition has set the
standard for how small and medium companies do eRecruiting in a complete on
demand ervironment. Taleo Business Edition offers software as a senvice, rapid deploy-
ment, fast development cycles, instant upgrades, and a very low price. We now have
more than 600 Taleo Business Edition cusiomers with over 400 new customers signed
in 2006 alone. Taleo stands out in this market because we have a focused business
unit with the expertise, technology, and resources to reach thousands of prospects.

Leading HRO Partnerships

We partner with all of the leading human resource outsourcing (HRQ} providers,
offering deep domain expertise and service offerings for business process outsourc-
ing. We enhance their overall value proposition with the most consistently proven
talent management solution for large and complex global enterprises. In 2008, we
also entered into a partnership with IBM to provide global HRO services. Qur focused
programs with these and other leading partners continue to expand opportunities and
generate new revenue sireams while enhancing and complementing our solutions.

Michael Gregoire
President and Chief Executive Officer

$97,000,000 REVENUE

30,000,000 APPLICATIONS

4,000,000,000 TRANSACTIONS

850 CUSTOMERS

575 EMPLOYEES

800,000 USERS

850,000 HIRES

40 PARTNERS

10 INDUSTRY AWARDS

100 COUNTRIES

21 LANGUAGES

97% SATISFACTION

99.9% AVAILABILITY

100% ON DEMAND

100% IMPLEMENTATION SUCCESS
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Ongoing Internaticnal Expansion

In the: large corporate segment, we took firm strides toward cur geal of global expan-
sion by more than doubling our international business. Strong bookings in EMEA
glong) with new customers in Singapore, India, and the African continent contributed
1o th s success. Extending our mementum beyond North America in the SMB seg-
meni, we launched Taleo Business Edition in the UK, France, Australia, New Zealand,
and 3ingapore.

Award Winning Performance

The entire Taleo tearn is passionate about talent management and we consider
curseives to be the leader in talent management. We are not alone in this designa-
tion. In 2006, Taleo was recognized with 10 industry awards for our products, on
demind infrastructure, and company growth. These awards includad the HR Product
of the: Year award by Human Resource Executive Magazing for Taleo Reporting and
Analytics, CIC Magazine's CIO 100 Award for our on demand infrastructure, and the
Netw ork World All-Star Award for our leadership and innovation in converting our
techriology infrastructure to a highly scalable, open and reliable technoiogy platform.

Acknowledged Industry Leadership

In Ncvember 2006, Gartner Inc. published their first Magic Quadrant for eRecruitment
Softviare. They ranked Taleo high in the coveted Leader's Quadrant based on our
ability to execute and our vision. A month later, IDC ranked Taleo #1 in both Worldwide
eRecruiting Revenue and Worlgwide Human Capital Management Subscription

Reve we. We believe we can use this industry recognition and our leadership position
1o gan additicnal market share.

Cn Cremand Technology Leadership

Taleo leads the on demand talent management market with our enterprise class
scalasility, availability, and high volume processing. In 2008, we pracessed more

than “our billion customer transactions, nearly 30 million applications, and more than
850,000 hires. We reached these performance numbers while maintaining better

than 8.9 percent systern availability. We believe this scale of consistent operational
success is unmatched in the on demand technalogy arena, The power of our unigue
platfcrm and the opportunity it provides cannot be overstressed. This proven open-
syste n based. reliable, and global on demand platform strongly differentiates us in the
markatplace and establishes & fundamental building block for continued growth.

Qutlook and Priorities for 2007

Lookiig ahead to 2007, we wil broaden and deepen our solutions toward a complete
talent managemaent suite of fully integrated applications nunning on our leading
platform. We will defiver Taleo Enterprise Edition 7.5 along with a new intuitive and
integrated approach to strategic performance management.

We ale very encouraged by the business trends that we are witnassing in both the
enterprise and SMB markets. We intend to capitalize on our innovative domain
expertise, technology leadership, strong channe! relationships, and international
investments to take advantage of the opportunity at hand,

| am very pleased with the performance of our team, the performance of our business,
and o.r leading on demand platform. Having a talented group of passionate individuals,
warking together in a large and growing market with a differentiated business model
and s ution is an exciting place to be.

In 2006, we proved that we can expand organically, manage precisely, and innovate
rapidls to deliver increased value and improved business performance for cur
custoimers. | believe these strengths will drive continued strong performance for

our sk areholders.

Sincerely,

Michazl Gregoire
Prasident and Chief Executive Officer
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

We deliver on demand talent management solutions to organizations of all sizes. We enable organizations to
assess, acquire, develop, and align their workforce for improved business performance. Organizations seek to
improve their talent management processes not only to reduce the time and costs associated with these processes
but, more importantly, to enhance the quality, productivity and retention of their workforce. Our solutions enable
our customers to attract and acquire high quality talent; better align workforce skills and competencies with
business needs; increase employee retention and productivity; reduce the time and costs associated with talent
management; increase process consistency and ease the burden of regulatory compliance. Our solutions are highly
configurable, enabling our customers to create variable workflows to address the unique talent management
requirements associated with different employee types, locations, and regulatory environments. Taleo’s
configuration capabilities enable our customers to map their unique talent management processes and content
to their current users and organizational structure by brand, division, recruiting specialty, business unit, geography,
or any other way they need to support their talent management and business initiatives, while adhering to local
regulatory requirements. This flexibility allows us to deliver tailored solutions without the need for source code
customization. Qur solutions support workforce analytics, such as staffing metrics reporting, process benchmarking
and employee skills inventory management, We deliver our solutions on demand using a software as a service, or
SaaS, model. Our on demand solutions require no hardware and no software license purchases or software
maintenance fees. Qur solutions are accessible through an Internet connection on standard web browsers. Our
vendor hosted model significantly reduces the time and costs associated with deployment of traditional software
solutions by eliminating the need to install additional hardware and software to run our solutions.

We market our enterprise talent management solution, Taleo Enterprise Edition™, to medium to large-sized
organizations through our direct sales force and indirectly through our strategic partnerships with business process
outsourcing, or BPO, and human resource outsourcing, or HRO, providers. We market our talent management
solution for small to medium-sized organizations, Taleo Business Edition™, through our telesales team and Internet
marketing efforts. We deliver our solutions to approximately 850 customers. Our customers include many of the
Fortune 1000, as well as small to medium-sized organizations from a variety of industries including healthcare,
manufacturing, financial services, professional services and retail. . :

We are a Delaware corporation and were incorporated in May 1999. In November 1999, we entered into an
exchangeabie share transaction with a Quebec corporation, 9090-5415 Quebec Inc. As a result of the transaction,
the corporation became our subsidiary and its shareholders exchanged their shares for non-voting exchangeable
shares, which through various agreements entitle the holder to exchange each exchangeable share for a share of our
Class A common stock on a six-for-one basis. Taleo (Canada) Inc., our Canadian operating subsidiary, is a wholly
owned subsidiary of 9090-5415 Quebec, Inc. and the majority of our research and development efforts are
conducted through Taleo (Canada) Inc.

In October 2003, we acquired White Amber, Inc. The White Amber acquisition expanded our offerings to
provide the technology and expertise to manage talent for contingent, or temporary, and contract workers. The
White Amber solution has become Taleo Contingent™, our solution for managing temporary staffing requirements
of large organizations. In March 2005, we acquired Recruitforce.com to expand our product offerings into the
market for small to medium-sized organizations. Recruitforce.com’s product offering has become Taleo Business
Edition™, our talent management solution that can be accessed and used through an internet connection by small to
medium-sized organizations, stand-alone departments and divisions of larger organizations, and staffing compa-
nies. In October 2005, we completed our initial public offering.

Qur principal executive offices are located at 4 140 Dublin Boulevard, Suite 400, Dublin, California 94568. Our
telephone number is (925) 452-3000, and our website is located at www.taleo.com; however, the information in, or
that can be accessed through our website is not part of this report. Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to such reports are avaitable, free of charge, on
the “Investor Relations” section of our website (www.taleo.com) as soon as reasonably practicable after we
electronically file such matertal with, or furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange Commission. The public may
also read and copy any materials we file with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E.,




Washington D.C. 20549. The public may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by
calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC alto maintains an Internet website (www.sec.gov) that contains
reports, proxy and information statements and other information regarding us that we file electronically with the
SEC.

Our Industry and Market

Talent management is a complex process with multiple, interconnected elements that together play a vital role
in attracting, sourcing, assessing, hiring, developin z and aligning human capital to our client’s business objectives.
Many organizations no longer view human capital solely as an expense to be minimized, but instead as an asset to be
optimized. This shift in thinking has mirrored the: evolution of talent management from a manual, paper-based
practice to a technology-enabled, organization-wide strategic business process.

Over the past few years, organizations have automated most critical business functions. While this automation
has generated large volumes of data and business :nformation, the critical knowledge within organizations resides
with employees. Accordingly, much of the value ¢f the organization resides in its human capital. To increase their
return on investment in human capital, organiza.ions have begun to shift their focus from traditional cost-and
time-per-hire metrics to more strategic considerat.ons. These considerations include time-to-productivity, internal
mobility, employee retention, and employee contiibution measures. Systematically pursuing these goals increases
overall workforce productivity by enabling assigament and redeployment of talent more optimally aligned with
business needs. A comprehensive view of talent management requires solutions that not only automate discrete
recruiting transactions, but also improve the effectiveness and consistency of staffing processes through a more
consistent competencies inventory management p:ocess, thereby increasing the quality of hire, employee retention,
and productivity. :

The Benefits of Our Approach

In order to sustain a competitive advantage in today’s knowledge economy, most organizations must capitalize
on human capital as their most important asset, not only optimizing staffing, but also talent management and
employee mobility processes. Our talent management solutions help maximize the return on human capital by
enhancing the alignment of workforce to business needs, increasing the quality and speed of hires, enabling the
assessment and skills inventory of employees anc. promoting effective employee mobility. By driving organization-
wide participation in the talent supply chain, we help our customers to establish systematic processes and enable
these processes through the use of our configurable technology to increase the quality and alignment of their
workforces.

The key benefits of our solutions include:

Systematic Approach to Talent Management Processes. Our solutions standardize talent management to
help organizations place the right individuais in the right positions, in the right amount of time. This systematic
approach enables an organization to signifizantly reduce the time and cost associated with talent management
processes and the inevitable variance in the quality of employees that results from non-standard processes. Qur
solutions also document each step in the talent management processes, creating an audit trail that reduces the
risk associated with failure to comply vsith various regulatory requirements established by government
agencies. Our systematic approach extends to workforce mobility within the organization to increase the
retention of strong performers.

Comprehensive Suite of Solutions.  Our talent management solutions address the needs of organizations
of many sizes and those with diverse workforces that include professional, hourly and temporary staff. The
extensive configurability of our solutions enables our customers to design workflows to meet the different
needs of centralized and decentralized organizations within diverse business units and geographic regions.

Embedded Domain Expertise. We have developed an extensive knowledge base of staffing models that we
call talent topologies. This knowledge bas: accelerates the recognition and implementation of industry-specific
staffing processes within various geographi: regions and industries. The Taleo Talent Topologies Knowledge Base
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reflects years of industry experience which allows our customers to benefit from a diverse library of best practices,
workflows and other solution content that we have developed in their industry through previous successes.

Ease of Use and Integration. 'We have designed our solutions for ease-of-use by non-technical staffing
professionals, managers, candidates and employees. The intuitive look, feel and operation of our applications
allow users to rapidly realize the benefits of our solutions and reduce the amount of user training required to
deploy our applications. The combination of the power and simplicity of our technology has driven high rates
of user adoption within our customer deployments. We also provide integration solutions that enable our
offerings to be quickly integrated with enterprise resource planning, or ERP, systems and with the systems of
additional staffing services providers. Taleo is a charter member of the HR-XML Consortium, and helped
pioneer open standards integration for HR applications. Taleo offers integration solutions that are built on a
services oriented architecture called the Taleo Integration Framework™. Taleo Connect™ and Taleo Passport™
provide standard, repeatable integration, self-service tools, and flexible service options.

Talent Analytics.  Our solutions include talent analytics and dashboard tools that enable our customers to
track the efficiency and effectiveness of their talent management processes. Our solutions allow customers to
design different workflows for various human capital and staffing departments within their organizations. Qur
reporting and analytics tools provide an organization-wide view of the talent management processes and
results. By measuring the results of talent management processes across an organization, our customers can
refine best practices within their organizations, thereby improving the overail effectiveness of their talent
management processes. Taleo provides a robust suite of standard reports and a powerful environment for ad-
hoc reporting. Taleo also provides analytics dashboards that are designed specifically for the recruiter and
manager.

Increased Workforce Productivity. QOur customers use our solutions to reduce the time-to-hire and the
time-to-productivity, and to increase the agility of the workforce. We maintain extensive databases of
candidate and employee skill sets, assessments, and job requirements so our customers can more accurately
match individuals to positions. Our solutions match individuats with the requisite skill sets to the appropriate
Jjobs, thereby reducing the average learning curve and time to productivity for new hires and employee
transfers. Qur solutions allow employees to more easily transfer to new positions within the organization that
match their skill sets and preferences, a process that fosters increased retention of employees.

The key benefits of our business model include:

Ease of Deployment through the On Demand Model.  Our hosied, on demand delivery model enables our
customers to deploy our solutions quickly, by avoiding the time required to procure, install, test, implement
and maintain the hardware and software needed to support traditional client/server applications. Qur con-
sultants are available to assist customers in the deployment of our solutions and help them define and
implement their talent management processes. Our delivery model also allows our customers to benefit from
the ongoing improvements of our solutions without enduring the time consuming and costly process of a
system-wide upgrade. Finally, we believe that our on-demand model facilitates the distribution of our solutions
to geographically remote marketplaces.

Single Version of Applicarion Source Code. 'We maintain a single version of each release of our sofiware
applications. By eliminating the significant expense associated with customization, we are able to focus our
development investment on improvements to our existing applications, as well as new applications, that benefit
our customers. Our delivery model enables us to upgrade all of our customers to new versions of our solutions
more quickly and easily than traditional software models. The standardization of our code base not only
reduces the cost of our solution but also facilitates the rapid delivery of enhanced technology to our customers.
Furthermore, through in-depth quality control and testing within our controlled I'T environment, we believe our
configurable solutions deliver higher levels of reliability than customized individual solutions.

Configurability. We build extensive configurability into our solutions so that our customers can deploy
our applications in a manner consistent with their business drivers. Such flexibility enables us to configure our
functionality for a specific industry or type of hire, such as recent college graduates or experienced engineers,
without the need for customized code. Our configurable solutions serve the needs of complex organizations
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that have different requirements in different locations and business segments, yet require organization-wide
availability, reporting and employee mobility. Customers also have the ability to enable or disable specific
functionalities, structuring their solutions to mset specific business needs.

Secure, Scalable Infrastructure. 'We have designed our infrastructure to scale with the needs of our
current and future customers. We maintain the security infrastructure to offer access to our solutions via a
point-to-point virtual private network or a single-sign-on within our customers’ domains. Our Java-based
applications run on standard hardware and softv-are and are load-balanced across multiple servers to maximize
availability. Each tier of our architecture has been configured for independent operation and scalability to
provide customers with performance and reliability.

Lower Total Cost of Ownership. Our hosted, on demand delivery model reduces the total cost of
ownership for our customers by shifting the expense of designing, procuring, installing, testing and main-
taining the infrastructure needed to support our applications to us. By delivering our solution on a shared, yet
secure, infrastructure, we enjoy economies of ucale in our deployments that our customers could not achieve
through an in-house, client server implementation.

Recurring Revenue. We sell our software using a subscription model that provides increased levels of
recurring revenue and long-term predictability relative to perpetual license models. Our subscription agree-
ments for Taleo Enterprise Edition average three years in duration and our subscription agreements for Taleo
Business Edition average one year in duration. We have achieved consistently high renewal rates since we
began offering our solutions. We believe that the recurring nature of our subscription fees provides an ongoing
base of revenue that helps us to better predic: our financial performance in future periods.

Our Strategy

Qur strategy is to become the leading platforn: for talent management solutions for all markets. Key elements

of our strategy include:

Extend our Technology Leadership. W believe we have established advanced technological capabil-
ities and competitive advantages through exter sive product and platform development on a single platform. As
of December 31, 2006 we employed 194 professionals in our product management and development
organizations who are developing and supporting our solutions to meet the diverse needs of our customers.
We intend to leverage our experience and our development resources to continue to develop our technology
platform, infrastructure and applications to caitalize on new technologies (such as Linux) and methodologies
(such as Web 2.0 design principles) to position us to capitalize on the talent management market opportunity.

Expand our Selution Offerings. 'We plan to expand our suite of solutions to deliver additional func-
tionality to our customers through our interna’ development initiatives such as our Taleo Onboarding™ , Taleo
Reporting and Analytics™, Taleo Passport an] Taleo Connect products, all introduced in April 2006, We may
also pursue strategic acquisitions to broaden aur suite of solutions, such as our acquisition of Recruitforce.com
in March 2005, to add a solution that addre:ses the needs of small to medium organizations.

We intend to develop solutions that expand our solutions to include a strategic performance management
suite including performance management, succession planning, and career planning with decision support and
business analytics capabilities that manage the entire talent supply chain.

Build Upon our Domain Expertise. We have compiled industry-specific talent management knowledge
in a structured platform that we call our Talert Topologies Knowledge Base. We will continue to work closely
with our customers to further develop our content and technology offerings to meet the unique needs of
specific vertical markets,

Increase Penetration of our Existing Cvstomer Base. 'We have approximately 850 customers, many of
which are large organizations that have not deployed all of our solutions throughout their entire organization.
We intend to cross-sell our existing solutions and our future solutions to our existing customer base.

Partner with Additional Leading Human Resource Quisourcing Organizations. We intend to establish
our solutions as the accepted standard for talent management practices at leading business process
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outsourcing, or BPO, and human resource outsourcing, or HRO, organizations. We intend to invest in our
partnership strategy to gain access to organizations that have chosen to outsource human resource functions,

Expand our Multinational Presence. 'We believe the increasing globalization of large organizations
provides us with substantial opportunities to capitalize on our leadership in global deployments. We intend to
expand our efforts to deploy our solutions to more companies that are based outside of North America. We also
intend to enhance our multinational functionality and continue to invest in our international sales, marketing
and customer support organizations.

Expand our Target Market Opportunity. We intend to continue to expand our customer base beyond
large organizations to include small to medivm-sized organizations through marketing campaigns targeted at
large enterprises, and medivm and small businesses across various industries.

Our Products

We offer two suites of talent management solutions: Taleo Enterprise Edition and Taleo Business Edition.
Taleo Enterprise Edition is designed for medium to large-sized, multi-national organizations and addresses multiple
staffing types, including professional, hourly, traditional contingent and project-based contractors with support for
multiple languages as well as differing geographic and cultural requirements. Taleo Business Edition is designed for
small to medium-sized organizations, stand-alone departments and divisions of larger organizations, and staffing
companies.

We specifically design solutions to be delivered on demand through a standard web browser. Our solutions are
accessed through intuitive applications designed for corporate recruiters, managers and system administrators. The
candidate-facing portions of Taleo Enterprise Edition are available in 21 languages. Taleo Business Edition is
currently available in 4 languages.

Taleo Enterprise Edition

Talec Enterprise Edition includes three core solution offerings that enable large, complex organizations to
manage talent. We also provide add-on modules that offer additional capabilities to our core solutions. Our three
core solution offerings are:

Taleo Professional™ enables organizations to manage professional, non-hourly talent management
functions, including attracting and evaluating candidates and employees, matching skills against job oppor-
tunities, and candidate relationship management. Taleo Professional provides many-to-many matching of all
candidates and employees against available job opportunities, and includes variable workflows for different
types of workers, locations, workgroups and regulatory environments.

Taleo Hourly™ provides end-to-end process automation for recruiting, selecting and hiring hourly
employees. Taleo career sites support job searching by location or radius from zip/postal codes, and capture
skills and experience, plus information key to hourly hiring such as shift availability, references and
certifications. Tailored candidate application flows include automated prescreening, with knock-out capa-
bilities. Hiring features include full applicant tracking, reporting, and collection of country-specific diversity
data for compliance.

Taleo Contingent™ automates and simplifies the sourcing, screening, selection and onboarding of
contingent workers. Taleo Contingent includes configurable workflows, suppliér and bill rate management,
candidate and contractor segmentation and onboarding. Taleo Contingent can be integrated with third party
time and expense systems to provide a full life-cycle contingent workforce solution. '

The additional modules that we offer to complement our primary product offerings include:

Taleo Agency™ directly links corporate staffing departments with staffing agencies so pre-approved third
party recruiters can submit candidates directly through the Taleo solution and corporate staffing departments
can effectively manage the agency sourcing channel.
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Taleo Assessmemt™ is a content-neutral software module that provides the ability to deliver validated
assessments developed by Taleo, in-house psychologists or certified third parties to candidates and use the
results throughout the selection process.

Taleo Campus™ facilitates the efficiency :nd effectiveness of campus recruiting programs by automating
the process and providing enhanced tools for attracting, engaging and closing top candidates.

Taleo Compliance™ provides tools to help customers support the new U.S. Office of Federal Compliance
Programs’ internet applicant definition, requirements mandated by the Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission, affirmative action requirements and other regulatory requirements.,

Taleo Connect leverages Taleo’s service. oriented integration framework to enable self-service config-
uration and monitoring of integrations between Taleo and customer systems such as human resource
information systems and enterprise resource planning systems.

Taleo Onboarding™ provides software tools to facilitate and automate the transition from candidate to
new employee while reducing excessive paperwork.

Taleo Passport offers pre-built integrations to certified Taleo partners for value-added third party services
such as background checking, assessments, iund tax credit screening.

Taleo Projects™ enables monitoring and management of fixed fee, milestone, or time & materials project-
based contractors.

Taleo Reporting & Analvtics™ provides software tools to measure, analyze, and optimize staffing and
deployment strategies, including detailed standard reports, an ad hoc reporting environment, and role-based
analytics dashboards.

Taleo Workforce Mobility™ supports internal mobility and retention initiatives by providing employees
visibility into internal job openings and providing human resource departments with visibility into employee
capabilities, training, and future career prefi:rences.

Taleo Business Edition

Taleo Business Edition is our on demand taleat management solution for small to medium-sized organizations,

stand-alone departments and divisions of larger organizations, and staffing companies. The intuitive nature of the
user interface allows users to create a customer spzcific talent management system with easily configurable objects,
fields, layouts, views, workflow, reports and int::gration. We offer four service options:

.

Taleo Business Edition — Personal™ provides applicant tracking for individual users. It includes can-
didate recruiting life-cycle management, reguisition management and contact management. With our Personal
service offering, recruiters can have a hosted career website, multilingual support, and access to both standard
and customized reports.

Taleo Business Edition — Standard™ makes all the functionality of the Personal service offering
available to recruiting departments and tear1s. Additional features include interview management and agency
access.

Taleo Business Edition — Plus™ offers a comprehensive hiring management suite that helps a Company
manage their entire staffing operations — ncluding applications for candidate and requisition management,
account and contact management, careess website management, employee referrals management, and
reporting/analysis.

Taleo Business Edition — Premium™ contains all the benefits of Taleo Business Edition Plus, and in
addition Premium provides up to 250 custom fields, custom “ad-hoc” reporting, multiple career websites &
application forms and global per-user tim: zone and local settings.
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Technology

We offer our solutions on a commeon technology infrastructure, The technology we obtained in our acquisition
of Recruitforce.com in March 2005 is integrated into our hosting and support infrastructure while remaining on a
separate, single code base.

" Qur Taleo Enterprise Edition™ solution resides on a common proprietary platform, configurable for complex
operations, that provides organizations with a comprehensive view of their workforces. Together, the Structured
Enterprise Talent Platform and the Configurable Staffing Process Platform represent the foundation for Taleo
Enterprise Edition. :

The Structured Enterprise Talent Platform maintains the data elements required by our solutions. The data
structure within the Structured Enterprise Talent Platform, or Talent Master, includes information on skills,
competencies, experience, behaviors and level of interest in a skill or competency that can be matched to job
requirements. This platform also allows candidates and current employees to submit their skills profiles to a
company to be matched to jobs as they become available. The platform also enables an organization to inventory
and search the skills of its candidates and current employees to decide between internal and external hires for new
business initiatives and measure gaps in skills existing in its current workforce.

The Configurable Staffing Process Platform provides the foundation for deploying our solutions throughout an
organization while adapting it locally according to the organization, location, applicable laws, local staffing model,
types of hires and internal mobility requirements. Our platform allows our customers to configure our solution to
meet their specific needs according to their internal staffing workflows.

We deliver our solutions on a hosted, on demand basis. Our technology infrastructure is designed to achieve
high levels of security, scalability, performance and availability. We believe that our architecture allows us to deliver
our solutions to customers more cost effectively and faster than traditional enterprise software providers. We
maintain a single version of each release of our software applications within our controlled IT infrastructure. Our
solutions provide a rich, intuitive interface that our customers use to access their data with secure user names,
passwords and role-based access rights. Our Java-based applications run on standard hardware and software and are
load balanced across multiple servers to provide consistent availability and performance. We license technology
from third-party software vendors, including Business Objects, Oracle and webMethods.

Qur solutions operate on Linux operating systems and common open-source components for enhanced
reliability and a scalable and secure computing environment that can accommodate significant increases in activity.
Our secure infrastructure includes web transaction monitoring, Secure Socket Layer offload and anti-virus
appliances and systems that help us to detect and prevent unauthorized access. Our multi-tier application
architecture has been configured for independent operation and scalability to provide customers with performance
and reliability.

Our customers benefit from the use of a shared computing infrastructure and leverage the flexibility and
security of independent application and database tier configurations. At the systems level, customers share the use
of specialized servers and their software components, including web, application, integration and database servers
as well as storage, search and reporting engines. OQur systems architecture and technology enable us to spread the
computing load required by our customers across servérs for optimal performance. Our customers use our solutions
independently from each other at both the application and database layers. At the database layer, each customer’s
data is stored in distinct database schemas and data files, providing increased manageability and security.

Professional Services

Our professional services organization leverages our consultants’ domain expertise and our proprietary
methodologies to provide implementation services, solution optimization and training. Many of our consultants
have held talent management positions at Global 2000 corporations, or senior level consulting positions at major
consulting agencies and other enterprise software companies.
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Taleo Methodologies

We have developed methodologies that enable us to accelerate the deployment of our solutions across a variety
of industries and talent management environments:

Taleo Implementation Methodology. Working with Fortune 500 companies, we developed methods to
optimize critical business processes, whife maintaining the integrity of our customers’ business drivers. The
Taleo Implementation Methodology addresses specific staffing processes for position management, requi-
sition management, candidate management, coliaborative workflow, new hire on-boarding review and staffing
performance analysis. Our consultants work with our customers, as a component of our consulting engage-
ments, to implement the Taleo methodology thiough a complete review of current business practices, mapping
our solution and workflows to the organizatior 's structure and processes, and ultimately configuring a skills-
based platform for complete talent managemerit, including onboarding, internal mobility and talent analytics.

Talent Topologies.  Our Talent Topologizs templates enable us to understand an organization’s overall
talent management environment, including internal and external business drivers, talent management models,
hire types and talent management processes and to recommend best practices to optimize resulting talent
management processes. Our Talent Topologies Knowledge Base is a searchable database of descriptions of the
complex enterprise talent management challenges faced within different industries and geographies. Our
Talent Topologies Knowledge Base also provides specific details of the solutions our consultants implemented
to address these challenges, and the results obtiined. This knowledge base reflects years of talent management
experience across a wide variety of industrizs. Qur consultants use the collective data from our Talent
Topologies Knowledge Base, as a component of our consulting engagements, to help our new customers solve
their complex staffing chatlenges, and to help our existing customers hone their talent management practices
and processes.

Implementation Services

Our implementation services begin with a complete evaluation of a customer’s current talent management
practices. They include process engineering to leverage the configuration of the solutions and integration with
existing applications to fit each organization’s dynamic business requirements. We support a consulting certifi-
cation program and have a project management office that equips our consultants with a library of toolkits, forms,
training documentation and workshop templates. The project management office also oversees the management of
customer deployments to help enable smooth, svstematic and on-time implementations and maximize success and
financial returns.

Solution Optimization

We provide ongoing solution optimization seivices to help our customers achieve desired results in quality
improvement, increased productivity, cost savings and operational effectiveness after the initial deployment of our,
solution. As a service component of our software subscription agreements, we work with our customers to measure
improvement in their talent management process:s. If necessary, we modify configuration of our solutions to
increase their effectiveness. In collaboration with customer project leaders, we establish an ongoing process for
continual evolution and solution optimization. Using this process, our customers can promote best practice vsage
and end user adoption after our solutions have be:n deployed.

Technical Services

Taleo offers comprehensive technical services to help its ¢lients seamlessly integrate Taleo within their system
portfolio. Almost every one of our clients leverages our technical expertise to assist with technical engagements
such as data conversion, ongoing data interfaces. single sign-on for internal users, third-party integration and
technical readiness assessments. We also provide services to identify and develop reports and dashboards using our
advanced reporting technology. We work with ou- clients in various ways, from knowledge transfer to help our
clients better use our self service technology, to fill-service, on-site implementation projects.
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Training

Through Taleo University, we offer a full range of educational services including pre-deployment classroom
training, train-the-trainer programs, system administrator training, post-deployment specialty training, upgrade
training and eLearning/web-based training. We also offer a variety of training tools to drive user adoption, including
solution user manuals, process user guides, feature training exercises, a self-service website for training scheduling
and registration, post-training assessments and both synchronous and asynchronous web-based training tools for
remote users.

Customer Support

Our global customer support organization provides both proactive and customer-initiated support. We deliver
our multilingual technical assistance via telephone, e-mail and our web-based customer care portal, 24 hours a day,
seven days a week. Our customer support organization tracks all customer support requests and reports the status of
these requests to the user through our customer support portal, enabling users to know the status of their support
requests, the person responsible for resolving them, and the targeted timing and process for resolution. Our senior
executives review customer satisfaction reports and support and response metrics and take action when necessary to
ensure that we maintain a high level of customer satisfaction,

Customers

We currently have approximately 850 corporate customers with approximately 800,000 registered users who
use our services to fill positions in almost 100 countries. We market Taleo Enterprise Edition to medium to large-
sized organizations with more than 3,000 employees. We market Taleo Business Edition to smal! to medium-sized
organizations with fewer than 3,000 employees. Our customers include organizations in the technology, manu-
facturing, business services, consumer goods, retail, energy, healthcare, financial services and transportation
sectors. No customer has accounted for more than ten percent of our revenue in any of the last three years.

Customer User Groups

We have established customer user groups to provide a forum for sharing talent management strategies and
best practices, reviewing new features of our solution and identifying new customer requirements. We currently
have seven self-governed, self-financed Taleo Regional Users Groups throughout the United States, Europe, Asia-
Pacific and Canada. The elected leader of each Regional User Group becomes a member of the Taleo Product
Council and in that capacity works directly with our product management group to guide the development of our
solutions. The Regional Users Groups support several Taleo Special Interest Groups focused on best practices and
technology in specific areas such as campus recruiting or university relations, hourly and retail staffing, reporting
and skills-based statfing. These groups benefit our customers by enabling them to share their knowiedge and benefit
us by providing powerful input into our product development process as well as a valuable opportunity to deepen
our relationships. We host an annual user conference called Taleo WORLD. We also maintain an advisory board
with members from the following organizations: Bell South, HP, Intel Corporation, Procter & Gamble, Starbucks,
and Wellpoint.

Sales and Marketing

We sell our software and services primarily through our global direct sales force and in conjunction with our
partners. In North America, we have sales and services personnel across the United States and Canada, including
offices in Chicago. the greater New York area, San Francisco, Montreal, Quebec City and Toronto. Outside of North
America, we have sales and services personnel in Amsterdam, London, Paris, Singapore, Melbourne and Sydney,
including offtces in London, Paris, Singapore and Sydney. Our Taleo Business Edition offerings are currently sold
through a telesales team and through self-registration on our website.

Sales Team

Our direct sales force consists of a team of regional sales managers, solutions consultants, client executives and
business development executives that sell our solutions across multiple industries and geographies. Our sales
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professionals possess comprehensive technology and talent management expertise and domain knowledge to
educate potential clients on the benefits of our solu:ions. We also maintain a separate team of account executives
that focuses on selling new solutions and services tc existing customers. Our solutions consultants work in tandem
with our account executives to provide technical an¢ product expertise in support of the sales process. Our business
development executives assist our direct sales force in identifving and penetrating new accounts. In addition, we
have developed indirect sales relationships with business process outsourcing, or BPO, and human resources
outsourcing, or HRO, providers and believe that a gcowing number of sales will be made through these and similar
relationships in the future. Cur BPO and HRO pariners use our solutions to manage talent management for their
customers as part of their broader human resource offerings.

Marketing

Our marketing initiatives include market research, product and strategy updates with industry analysts, public
relations activities, web marketing, direct mail and relationship marketing programs, seminars, industry specific
trade shows, speaking engagements and cooperatir e marketing with customers and partners. Qur marketing team
generates qualified leads and provides programs for prospects and customers that build awareness and generate
damand for our existing solutions as well as new products and services. Our marketing department also produces
materials that include brochures, data sheets, white papers, presentations, demonstrations, and other marketing
tools on our corporate website. We also generate awareness through electronic and print advertising in trade
magazines, websites, search engines, seminars, ard direct customer and partner events.

Taleo Research Institute

Taleo Research, a consulting and metrics dev:lopment organization, focuses on conducting primary research
on trends in talent management and the financial aspects of talent management. Taleo Research consults with large
organizations to help them optimize financial retvrn from global talent management processes and technologies.
Taleo Research serves large organizations throughbut the world with business analytics that tie talent management
technology and process improvements to reduced costs and improved financial results,

Research and Development

Our research and development organization consists of product management and development employees. We
employed 194 professionals in these areas as of December 31, 2006, Our research and development organization is
primarily located in our Quebec City facility, which enables us to benefit from lower staffing costs and higher
retention rates. Our development methodology allows us to implement adjustable development cycles that result in
more timely and efficient-delivery of new solutions and enhancements to existing solutions. We focus our research
and development efforts on improving and enhancing our existing soiution offerings as well as developing new
solutions. The responsibilities of our research and development organization include product management, product
development, solution release management and software maintenance. We allocate a portion of our research and
development expenses to the development of ou: technology infrastructure, including our Structured Enterprise
Talent Platform and Configurable Staffing Process Platform. Our research and development expenditures, net of tax
credits we received from the Government of Qu :bec, totaled $19.5 million, $16.7 million, and $16.0 million in
2006, 2005, and 2004 respectively.

Competition

The market for talent management solution:: is highly competitive and rapidly evolving. We believe that the
principal competitive factors in this market inclide:

» Product performance and functionality;
+ Breadth and depth of functionality;
« Ease of implementation and use;

+ Security and data privacy;
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* On demand business model;

» Ability to integrate;

+ Scalability and reliability;
* Company reputaticn; and
* Price.

We believe that we compete favorably with respect to these factors. Our Taleo Enterprise Edition solution
competes with vendors of enterprise resource planning software such as Oracle and SAP, and also with vendors such
as ADP, Authoria, Deploy Solutions, Kenexa, Kronos, Peopleclick, SuccessFactors, Vurv (formerly Recruitmax),
Workday, and Workstream that offer products and services that compete with one or more modules in our Taleo
Eaterprise Edition suite of solutions. Our Taleo Business Edition solution competes primarily with Bullhorn,
Hiredesk.com, iCIMS and others.

Our current and potential competitors include large, established companies who may have a larger installed
base of users, longer operating histories, and greater name recognition and resources. In addition, we compete with
smaller companies who may adapt better to changing conditions in the market, Our competitors may develop
products or services that will be superior to our products, or that will achieve greater market acceptance.

Geographic Information

In 2006, 2005, and 2004, we had approximately 3%, 5% and 6% of our revenue from countries outside of North
America, respectively. We base our determination of revenue attributable to a country on the location of the
contracting party. Many of our customers for which the contracting party was based in North America have
deployed our solution internationally.

Intellectual Property

Our success is dependent in part on our ability to protect our proprietary technology. We rely on a combination
of trademark, copyright, and trade secret laws in the United States and other jurisdictions as well as confidentiality
procedures and contractual provisions to protect our proprietary technology, services methodology and brand. We
have registered trademarks for certain of our products and services and will continue to evaluate the registration of
additional trademarks as appropriate. We also enter into confidentiality and proprietary rights agreements with our
employees, consultants and other third parties and control access to software, documentation and other proprietary
information, However, we do not have any patents or patents pending, and existing copyright laws afford only
limited protection.

Despite these efforts, it may be possible for unauthorized third parties to copy certain portions of our products
or to reverse engineer or otherwise obtain and use our proprietary information. In addition, we cannot be certain that
others will not develop substantially equivalent or superior proprietary technology, or that equivalent products will
not be marketed in competition with our products, thereby substantially reducing the value of our proprietary rights.
Furthermore, confidentiality agreements between us and our employees or any license agreements with our clients
may not provide meaningful protection of our proprietary information in the event of any unauthorized use or
disclosure of it. In addition, the laws of certain countries do not protect our proprietary rights to the same extent as
do the laws of the United States. Accordingly, the steps we have taken to protect our intellectual property rights may
not be adequate and we may not be able to protect our proprietary software in the United States or abroad against
unauthorized third party copying or use, which could significantly harm our business.

In addition, we license third-party technologies that are incorporated into some elements of our services.
Licenses from third-party technologies may not continue to be available to us at a reasonable cost, or at all.

Taleo is a registered trademark in the United States and in various other jurisdictioﬁs.
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Employees

As of December 31, 2006, we had 585 employ 2es, as compared to 512 as of Decemnber 31, 2005 and 541 as of
December 31, 2004. None of our employees is represented by a collective bargaining agreement and we have never
experienced a strike or similar work stoppage. We consider our relationship with our employees 10 be good.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following table provides information cor.cerning our executive officers as of February 28, 2007:

Name Age Position

Michael Gregoire ....... .. 41  President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

Louis Tetu .............. 42 Chairman of the Board of Directors

Bradford Benson. ......... 45" Executive Vice President, Products and Technology

Jeffrey Carr. .. ... ... ... 48  Executive Vice President, Global Alliances and Americas Sales
Guy Gauvin . ............ 39 Executive Vice President, Global Services '

Katy Murray ... .......... 38 Execulive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Michael Gregoire has served as our president znd chief executive officer since March 2003, Prior to joining us,
Mr. Gregoire worked at PeopleSoft, an enterprise sc ftware company, from May 2000 to January 2005, most recently
as executive vice president, global services. Prior to PeopleSoft, Mr. Gregoire served as managing director for the
Global Financial Markets at Electronic Data Systems, Inc, a technology services provider, from 1996 to April 2000.
Mr. Gregoire has a master’s degree from Californis Coast University, and holds a bachelor’s degree in physics and
computing from Wilfred Laurier University in Ortario, Canada.

Louis Tetu has served as our chairman of the board since March 2006. Prior to serving as chairman of the board,
Mr. Tetu served as executive chairman of the board of directots from April 2005 to March 2006 and as our chief
executive officer and chairman of the board of dir:ctors from July 1999 to March 2005 and as our president from
March 2004 to March 2005. Prior to joining us, Mr. Tetu served as president of Baan Supply Chain Selutions; an
enterprise applications vendor, from May 1996 to December {998, following its acquisition of Berclain Group Inc.,
a supply chain management solutions vendor. Mr. "Tetu co-founded and served as president of Berclain Group from
1989 to April 1996. Mr. Tetu also serves on the board of directors of L’Entraide Mutual Life Insurance Company of
Canada. Mr. Tetu holds a bachelor’s degree in mechanical engineering from Laval University in Canada,

Bradford Benson has served as our executive vice president, products and technology since January 2005. Prior
to joining us, Mr. Benson served as the senior vice president of research and development at Lawson Software, an
enterprise software company, from November 2001 to July 2004. Prior to Lawson, Mr. Benson served as the vice
president of engineering at Avolent, a software company, from September 1999 to November 200t. Prior to
Avolent, Mr. Benson served in various manageinent positions, including multiple vice president positions in
application development at PeopleSoft, an enterprise software company, from January 1993 to August 1999. Prior
to joining PeopleSoft, Mr. Benson served as a financial development manager of The Gap, a retail clothing
company, from August 1991 to January 1993. Pricr to joining The Gap, Mr. Benson served in various capacities in
software development at Oracle, an enterprise software and database company, from September 1989 to July 1991.
Prior to Oracle, Mr. Benson served in various consulting capacities at Andersen Consulting, a management
consulting company, from Janvary 1986 to August 1989. Mr. Benson holds a bachelor’s degree in business
administration from lowa State University.

Jeffrey Carrhas served as our executive vice president, global alliances and americas sales since June 2006. Prior
to serving as executive vice president, global alliinces and americas sales, Mr. Carr served as our executive vice
president, global marketing and americas sales froin May 2005 to May 2006, and as executive vice president, global
marketing and chief strategy officer from November 2004 to April 2005. Prior to joining us, Mr. Carr served as
chairman and chief executive officer of Motiva, Inc., a software vendor, from August 2001 to December 2003. Prior to
Motiva, Mr. Carr served as president of RightWorks Corporation, a business applications provider, from March 2000
to July 2001. Prior to RightWorks, Mr. Carr served in a variety of positions at PeopleSoft, Inc., an enterprise software
company, from January 1991 to January 2000, most recently as executive vice president, worldwide marketing,
strategy and emerging markets. Mr. Carr holds a bachelor’s degree in business from Miami University (Ohio).
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Guy Gauvin has served as our executive vice president, global services, since April 2005. Prior to serving as
our executive vice president, global services, Mr. Gauvin served as our executive vice president, worldwide
operations, from March 2002 to April 2005. Prior to serving as executive vice president, worldwide operations,
Mr. Gauvin served as our vice president, customer services, from August 1999 to March 2002. Prior to joining us,
from May 1995 to August 1999, Mr. Gauvin served as vice president of global services at Baan Supply Chain
Solutions. Mr. Gauvin holds a bachelor’s degree in mechanical engineering from Laval University in Canada.

Katy Murray has served as our executive vice president and chief financial officer since September 2006. Prior
to joining us, Ms. Murray served as chief financial officer of EXL Services, Inc., a leading provider of value-added
offshore business process outsourcing solutions, from June 2005 to August 2006. Prior to EXL, Ms. Murray served
as executive vice president and chief financial officer at i2 Technologies, a multinational supply chain management
software company from January 2004 to May 2005. Prior to serving as executive vice president and chief financial
officer at i2 Technologies, Ms. Murray held various leadership positions within the finance and accounting
organization at i2 Technologies, from February 1998 to December 2003. Prior to i2 Technologies, Ms. Murray
worked for more than four years at Paymentech, the largest US based processor of internet transactions as a Director
of Accounting. Ms. Murray holds a bachelor and master’s degree in accounting from Louisiana State University and
is a Certified Public Accountant.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Because of the following factors, as well as other variables affecting our operating results and financial
condition, past performance may not be a reliable indicator of future performance, and historical trends should not
be used to anticipate results or trends in future periods.

We have a history of losses, and we cannot be certain that we will achieve or sustain profitability.

We have incurred annual losses since our inception. As of December 31, 2006 we had incurred aggregate net
losses of $42.5 million, which is our accurnulated deficit of $56.3 million less $13.8 million of dividends and
issuance costs on preferred stock. We may incur losses in the future as a result of expenses associated with the
continued development and expansion of our business, expensing of stock options, marketing efforts, audit-related
professional services and other requirements of being a public company, such as compliance with Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. As we implement initiatives to grow our business, which include, among other things,
acquisitions, plans for international expansion and new product development, any failure to increase revenue or
manage our cost structure could prevent us from completing these initiatives and achieving or sustaining
profitability. As a result, our business could be harmed and our stock price could decline. We cannot be certain
that we will be able to achieve or sustain profitability on a quarterly or annual basis,

If our existing customers do not renew their software subscriptions and buy additional solutions from us,
our business will suffer.

We expect to continue to derive a significant portion of our revenue from renewal of software subscriptions and, to a
lesser extent, service fees from our existing customers. As a result, maintaining the renewal rate of our existing software
subscriptions is critical to our future success. Factors that may affect the renewal rate for our solutions include:

» the price, performance and functionality of our solutions;

» the availability, price, performance and functionality of competing products and services;
* the effectiveness of our maintenance and support services;

. "our ability to develop complementary products and services; and

* the stability, performance and security of our hosting infrastructure and hosting services.

Most of our Taleo Enterprise Edition customers entered into software subscription agreements with an average
duration of three years from the initial contract date, Most of our Taleo Business Edition customers entered into
annual software subscription agreements. Our customers have no obligation to renew their subscriptions for our
solutions after the expiration of the initial term of their agreements. In addition, our customers may negotiate terms

13




less advantageous to us upon renewal, which may reduce our revenue from these customers, or may request that we

license our software to them on a perpetual basis, w hich may, after we have ratably recognized the revenue for the
perpetual license over the relevant term in accordance with our revenue recognition policies, reduce recurring
revenue from these customers. Under certain circuinstances, our customers may cancel their subscriptions for our
solutions prior to the expiration of the term. Our future success also depends, in part, on our ability to sell new
products and services to our existing customers., i our customers terminate their agreements, fail to renew their
agreements, renew their agreements upon less favorable terms, or fail to buy new products and services from us, our
revenue may decline or our future revenue may b constrained.

Because we recognize revenue from software subscriptions over the term of the agreement, a significant
downturn in our business may not be reflected immediately in our operating results, which increases the
difficulty of evaluating our future financial position.

We generally recognize revenue from software subscription agreements ratably over the terms of these
agreements, which average three years for our Tileo Enterprise Edition customers and one year for our Taleo
Business Edition customers. As a result, a substantial majority of our software subscription revenue in each quarter
is generated from software subscription agreements entered into during previous periods. Consequently, a decline in
new software subscription agreements in any one ¢ uarter may not affect our results of operations in that quarter but
will reduce our revenue in future quarters. Addirionally, the timing of renewals or non-renewals of a software
subscription agreement during any one quarter may also affect our financial performance in that particular quarter.
For example, because we recognize revenue ratably, the non-renewal of a software subscription agreement late ina
quarter will have very little impact on revenue for that quarter, but will reduce our revenue in future quarters. By
contrast, a non-renewal occurring early in a quarter may have a significant negative impact on revenue for that
quarter and we may not be able to offset a decline in revenue due to such non-renewals with revenue from new
software subscription agreements entered into in the same quarter. In addition, we may be unable to adjust our costs
in response to reduced revenue. Accordingly, the effect of significant declines in sales and market acceptance of our
solutions may not be reflected in our short-term results of operations, which would make these reported results less
indicative of our future financial results.

If our efforts to attract new customers are not successful, our revenue growth will be adversely affected.

In order to grow our business, we must continuaily add new customers. Our ability to attract new customers
will depend in large part on the success of our sales and marketing efforts. However, our prospective customers may
not be familiar with our solutions, or may hav:: traditionally used other products and services for their talent
management requirements. In addition, our prospective customers may develop their own solutions to address their
talent management reqmremems purchase coripetitive product offerings, or engage third-party providers of
outsourced talent management services that do 10t use our solution to provide their services. If our prospective
customers do not perceive our products and services to be of sufficiently high value and quality, we may not be able
to attract new customers.

Additionally, some new customers may request that we license our software to them on a perpetual basis or that
we allow them the contractual right to convert from a term license to a perpetual license during the contract term,
which may, after we have ratably recognized the revenue for the perpetual license over the relevant term in
accordance with our revenue recognition policies, reduce recurring revenue from these customers. To date, we have
completed a limited number of agreements with such terms.

In connection with the December 31, 2005 year-end audit and in prior periods we identified deficiencies
in our internal control over financial reponing that lead us to restate our consolidated financial statement
and we cannot be certain such restatements will not occur again.

In connection with the December 31, 2005 year-end audit of our financial statements, management and our
independent registered public accounting fima identified deficiencies in our internal control over financial
reporting. These were matters that in our judgment could adversely affect our ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial data consistent with the asscrtions of management in our financial statements. Under Auditing
Standard No. 2 issued by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) these deficiencies were

14




deemed to be material weaknesses. In particular, we discovered errors in respect to depreciation of fixed assets, and
accrual of dividends on preferred stock which required adjustment. As a result, we restated our consolidated
financial statements. We also identified a failure to appropriately apply GAAP to certain aspects of our financial
reporting resulting from the lack of a properly designed financial reporting process and a lack of sufficient technical
accounting expertise. Certain of such deficiencies were also deemed to be material weaknesses. We have
remediated all known material weaknesses; however, we cannot be certain that the measures we have taken will
ensure that we will maintain effective controls over our financial processes and reporting in the future. Any failure
to maintain effective controls or to adequately implement required new or improved controls could harm our
operating results or cause us to fail to meet our reporting obligations. Ineffective internal controls could also cause
investors (o lose confidence in our reported financial information.

In addition to the restatement noted above, in 2004 we restated our consolidated financial statements for 2003.
Execution of these restatements created a significant strain on our internal resources, and increased our costs and
caused management distraction. As a result of these restatements, we filed for extensions for the filing of our 2005
Annual Report on Form 10-K and our March 2006 Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. We believe that any future
restatemnents would likely cause additional strain on our internal resources. In addition, the fact we have had
restatements in 2004 and 2005 may cause investors to lose confidence in the accuracy and completeness of our
financial reports, which could have an adverse impact on our stock price.

Failure to implement the appropriate controls and procedures to manage our growth could harm our
ability to expand our business, our operating results, and our overall financial condition.

As a result of material weakness and deficiencies identified for the period ended December 31, 2005, during
2006, we completed a review and redesign of our internal controls over financial reporting related to our closing
procedures and processes, our calculations of our reported numbers, including depreciation expense, fixed assets,
and the need to strengthen our technical accounting expertise. While we remediated all material weaknesses in our
internal control over financial reporting that existed on December 31, 2005, the steps below remain in process:

+ implementation and documentation of new policies around closing processes;

* improvement of detective controls and greater financial analysis around operational metrics that are key to
our performance; and

* Improvement of the process of benchmarking our internal financial operations and implementing best
practices in various business processes.

We have discussed these matters with the audit committee of our board of directors and will continue to do so
as required. However, we cannot be certain that the completion of these steps will remediate our control
deficiencies. Any current or future deficiencies could materially and adversely affect our ability to provide timely
and accurate financial information about our company. '

The requirements of being a public company have been, and may continue to be, a strain on our
resources, which may adversely affect our business and financial condition.

We are subject to a number of requirements, including the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the listing standards of the Nasdaq Stock Market
LLC. These requirements have placed a straih on our systems and resources and will likely continue to do so. The
Securities Exchange Act requires, among other things, that we file annual, quarterly, and current reports with
respect to our business and financial condition. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires, among other things, that we
maintain effective disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting. We had two
restatements of historical financial information in 2005. In order to maintain and improve the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting, significant resources and man-
agement oversight will be required. As a result, our management’s attention might be diverted from other business
concerns, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and operating results. In
addition, we recently completed the move of our finance department, from Quebec City to Dublin, California to
support our reporting and compliance requirements as a US public company and we have recently a hired additional
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accounting and financial staff with appropriate public company reporting experience and technical accounting
knowledge. This relocation created strain on our employees and management. Further, the integration of newly
hired or relocated employees may not be successfil or may result in additional expense.

Our financial performance may be difficult to forecast as a result of our historical focus on large
customers and the long sales cycle associated v:ith our solutions.

The majority of our revenue is currently derived from organizations with complex talent management
requirements. Accordingly, in a particular quarter the majority of our bookings from new customers are from large
sales made to a relatively small number of customers. As such, our failure to close a sale in a particular quarter will
impede desired revenue growth unless and until the sale closes. In addition, our sales cycles for our enterprise clients
are generally between nine months and one year, and in some cases can be longer. As a result, substantial time and
cost may be spent attempting to secure a sale that maty not be successful, The period between our first sales call on a
prospective customer and a contract signing is relitively long due to several factors such as:

« the complex nature of our solutions;

= the need to educate potential customers about the uses and benefits of our solutions;

s the relatively long duration of our contract:;

= the discretionary nature of our customers’ purchase and budget cycles;

+ the competitive evaluation of our solutions;

+ fluctuations in the staffing management requirements of our prospective customers;

+ announcements or planned introductions o7 new products by us or our competitors; and
+ the lengthy purchasing approval processes of our prospective customers.

If our sales cycles unexpectedly lengthen, our ability to forecast accurately the timing of sales in any given
period will be adversely affected and we may nol meet our forecasts for that period.

If we fail to develop or acquire new products or enhance our existing products to meet the needs of our
existing and future customers, our sales will Jecline,

To keep pace with technological developmen's, satisfy increasingly sophisticated customer requirements, and
achieve market acceptance, we must enhance and i:nprove existing products and continue to introduce new products
and services. For instance. we recently announced our plans to develop a performance management software
product. Any new products we develop or acquire may not be introduced in‘a timely manner and may not achieve
the broad market acceptance necessary (o generate: significant revenue. If we are unable 1o develop or acquire new
products that appeal to our target customer base or enhance our existing products or if we fail to price our products
to meet market demand or if the products we devel-ap or acquire do not meet performance expectations, our business
and operating results will be adversely affected. To date, we have focused our business on providing solutions for
the talent management market, but we may seek to expand into other markets in the future. Our efforts to expand our
solutions beyond the talent management market nay divert management resources from existing operations and
require us to commit significant financial resources to an unproven business, which may harm our existing business.

We expect to incur additional expense to develop software products and to integrate acquired software
products into existing platforms to maintain our competitive position. These efforts may not result in commercially
viable solutions. If we do not receive significant revenue from these investments, our business will be adversely
affected. Additionally, we intend to maintain a s ngle version of each release of our software applications that is
configurable to meet the needs of our customer;. Customers may require customized solutions or features and
functions that we do not vet offer and do not intend to offer in future releases, which may cause them to choose a
competing sclution,
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Acquisitions and investments present many risks, and we may not realize the anticipated financial and
strategic goals for any such transactions, which would harm our business, operating results and overall
financial cendition. In addition, we have limited experience in acquiring and integrating other
companies.

We have made, and may continue to make, acquisitions or investments in companies, products, services, and
technologies to expand our product offerings, customer base and business. We have limited experience in executing
acquisitions. In October 2003, we acquired White Amber, which we introduced our Taleo Contingent, and in March
2005, we acquired Recruitforce.com, which we introduced as Taleo Business Edition. In March 2007, we acquired
certain assets of Job Flash, Inc,, with which we intend to offer additional products to our customers. Such
acquisitions and investments involve a number of risks, including the following:

= being unable to achieve the anticipated benefits from our acquisitions;

» discovering that we may have difficulty integrating the accounting systems, operations, and personnel of the
acquired business, and may have difficulty retaining the key personne! of the acquired business;

« our ongoing business and management’s attention may be disrupted or diverted by transition or integration
issues and the complexity of managing geographically and culturally diverse locations;

» difficulty incorporating the acquired technologies or products, including our Taleo Contingent solution and
the software acquired in the Recruitforce acquisition, into our existing code base;

* problems arising from differences in the revenue or licensing model of the acquired business;
* customer confusion regarding the positioning of acquired technologies or products;

= difficulty maintaining uniform standards, controls, procedures and policies across locations;

» difficulty retaining the acquired business’ customers; and

* problems or liabilities associated with product quality, technology and legal contingencies.

For example, with respect to our acquisition of White Amber, we expended significant management time in
attending to integration activities relating to employee relations and benefits matters, integration of product pricing,
and the consolidation of other infrastructure to common systems, From time to time, we may enter into negotiations
for acquisitions or investments that are not ultimately consummated. Such negotiations could result in significant
diversion of management time, as well as out-of-pocket costs,

The consideration paid in connection with an investment or acquisition also affects our financial results. If we
should proceed with one or more significant acquisitions in which the consideration includes cash, we could be
required {o use a substantial portion of our available cash to consummate any such acquisition. To the extent that we
issue shares of stock or other rights to purchase stock, existing stockholders may be diluted and earnings per share
may decrease. In addition, acquisitions may result in the incurrence of debt, material one-time write-offs, or
purchase accounting adjustments and restructuring charges, They may also result in recording goodwill and other
intangible assets in our financial statements which may be subject to future impairment charges or ongoing
amortization costs, thereby reducing future earnings.

Fluctuation in the processing of temporary workers will affect the revenue associated with our Taleo
Contingent solution, which may harm our business and operating results.

Our current version of the Taleo Contingent solution includes functionality for the processing and payment of
time and expense charges for temporary workers. As part of our Taleo Contingent offering we also provide managed
services related to the processing of such time and expense charges. We currently generate revenue from our Taleo
Contingent solution based on a fixed percentage of the dollar amount invoiced for temporary labor charges
processed through our time and expense functionality. Qur Taleo Contingent sclution accounts for a significant
portion of our revenue. If our customers’ demand for temporary workers declines, or if the general wage rates for
temporary workers decline, so will our customers’ associated spending for temporary workers, and, as a result,
revenue associated with our Taleo Contingent solution will decrease and our business may suffer. In addition, our

17




contracts for the Taleo Contingent solution do not gererally contain minimum revenue or transaction commitments
from our customers. Therefore, if we fail to irnplzment the Taleo Contingent solution successfully for new
customers or if existing customers elect to decrease th: transactions processed via the Taleo Contingent solution, we
may not recognize incremental revenue from new customers or our revenues from existing Tateo Contingent
customers may decline.

Additionally, we have elected to integrate certain functions of our Taleo Contingent solution with the solutions
of third party providers of time and expense processing for temporary workers. On a going forward basis we will no
longer be entering into agreements to provide time and expense processing services for temporary workers and,
accordingly, our revenue model based on a percentage of spend from such processing services will end. Our
intention is to service our current customers to which we provide such time and expense processing services through
the expiration of their current agreements with us However, our current Taleo Contingent customers are not
obligated to process temporary worker transactions ¢:xclusively through our solution and we cannot be certain that
such customers will not elect to transition such transaction processing services to other providers before the
expiration of their contracts with us. If certain of our Taleo contingent customers elect to stop processing temporary
worker transactions through our system sooner than expected, our revenue could be disrupted. Further, we may find
it difficult to replace the revenue we currently receive from the processing of temporary worker time and expense
transactions and our results may be negatively impacted.

If we do not compete effectively with companies offering talent management solutions, our revenue may
not grow and could decline.

We have experienced, and expect to continue to experience, intense competition from a number of companies.
Qur Taleo Enterprise Edition solution competes with vendors of enterprise resource planning software such as
*Oracle and SAP, and also with vendors such as ADP, Authoria, Deploy Solutions, Kenexa, Kronos, Peopleclick,
SuccessFactors, Vurv (formerly Recruitmax), Wokday, and Workstreamn that offer products and services that
compete with one or more modules in our Taleo Erterprise Edition suite of solutions, Our Taleo Business Edition
solution competes primarily with Bullhorn, Hiredesk.com, iCIMS and others. Our competitors may announce new
products, services or enhancements that better meet changing industry standards or the price or performance needs
of customers. Increased competition may cause pricing pressure and loss of market share, either of which could
have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our competitors and potential competitors miy have significantly greater financial, technical, development,
marketing, sales, service and other resources than we have. Many of these companies may also have a larger
installed base of customers, longer operating histo;ies and greater brand recognition than we have. Certain of our
competitors provide products that may incorpora e capabilities which are not available in our current suite of
solutions, such as automated payroll and benefits, or services that we do not currently offer, such as recruitment
process outsourcing services. Products with such additional functionalities may be appealing to some customers
because they can reduce the number of different types of software or applications used to run their business and such
additional services may be viewed by some customers as enhancing the effectiveness of a competitor’s solutions. In
addition, our competitors’ products may be inoie effective than our products at performing particular talent
management functions or may be more customized for particular customer needs in a given market. Further, our
compelitors may be able to respond more quickly than we can to changes in customer requirements.

Our customers often require our products to be integrated with software provided by our existing or potential
competitors. These competitors could alter their products in ways that inhibit integration with our products, or they
could deny or delay access by us to advance software releases, which would restrict our ability to adapt our products
to facilitate integration with these new releases and could result in lost sales opportunities. In addition, many
organizations have developed or may develop intzrmal solutions to address talent management requirements that
may be competitive with our solutions.
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We may lose sales opportunities if we do not successfully develop and maintain strategic relationships to
sell and deliver our solutions.

We intend to partner with business process outsourcing, or BPO, and human resource outsourcing, or HRO,
providers that resell our staffing solution as a component of their outsourced human resource services. We currently
have relationships with several of these companies. If customers or potential custemers begin to ocutsource their
talent management functions to BPOs or HROs that do not resell our solutions, or to BPOs or HROs that choose to
develop their own solutions, our business will be harmed. In addition, we have relationships with third-party
consulting firms, system integrators and software and service vendors who provide us with customer referrals,
integrate their complementary products with ours, cooperate with us in marketing our products and provide our
customers with system implementation or maintenance services. If we fail to establish new strategic relationships or
expand our existing relationships, or should any of these partners fail to work effectively with us or go out of
business, our ability to sell our products into new markets and 10 increase our penetration into existing markets may
be impaired.

The potential mergers of our competitors or other similar strategic alliances could weaken our
competitive position or reduce our revenue,

The market in which we operate appears to be in the midst of a period of vendor consolidation. If one or more
of our competitors were to merge or partner with another of our competitors, the change in the competitive
landscape could adversely affect our ability to compete effectively. For example, Kronos recently acquired Unicru,
Kenexa recently acquired Brassring and ADP recently acquired VirtualEdge. Unicru, Brassring and VirtualEdge
have been direct competitors of ours in the past and we are uncertain what impact these acquisitions will have on our
market and our ability to compete against the merged companies.

Our competitors may also establish or strengthen cooperative relationships with our current or future HRO
partners, systems integrators, third-party consulting firms or other parties with whom we have relationships, thereby
limiting our ability to promote our products and limiting the number of consultants available to implement our
solutions. Disruptions in our business caused by these events could reduce our revenue.

If we are required to reduce our prices to compete successfully, our margins and operating results could
be adversely affected.

The intensely competitive market in which we do business may require us to reduce our prices. If our
competitors offer discounts on certain products or services we may be required to lower prices or offer our solutions
at less favorable terms to us to compete successfully. Several of our larger competitors have significantly greater
resources than we have and are better able to absorb short-term losses. Any such changes would likely reduce our
margins and could adversely affect our operating results. Some of our competitors may provide fixed price
implementations or bundle product offerings that compete with ours for promotional purposes or as a long-term
pricing strategy. These practices could, over time, limit the prices that we can charge for our products. If we cannot
offset price reductions with a corresponding increase in the quantity of applications sold, our margins and operating
results would be adversely affected.

If our security measures are breached and unauthorized access is obtained to customer data, customers
may curtail or stop their use of our solutions, which would harm our reputation, operating results, and
financial condition.

Qur solutions involve the storage and transmission of customers’ proprietary information, and security
breaches could expose us to loss of this information, litigation and possible liability. While we have security
measures in place, if our security measures are breached as a result of third-party action, employee error, criminal
acts by an employee, malfeasance, or otherwise, and, as a result, someone obtains unauthorized access to customer
data, our reputation will be damaged, our business may suffer and we could incur significant liability. Technigues
used to obtain unauthorized access or to sabotage systems change frequently and generally are not recognized until
launched against a target. As a result, we may be unable to anticipate these techniques or to implement adequate
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preventative measures. If an actual or perceived brea:h of our security occurs, the market perception of our security
measures could be harmed and we could lose sales and customers.

Our insurance policies may not adequately compensate us for any losses that may occur due to failures in our
security measures.

Defects or errors in our products could affect cur reputation, result in significant costs to us and impair
our ability to sell our products, which would horm our business.

Our products may contain defects or errors, which could materially and adversely affect our reputation, result
in significant costs to us and impair our ability to sell our products in the future. The costs incurred in correcting any
product defects or errors may be substantial and could adversely affect our operating results. While we test our
products for defects or errors prior to product release, defects or errors have been identified from time to time by our
customers and may continue to be identified in the: future.

Any defects that cause interruptions to the availability or functionality of our solutions could result in:
* lost or delayed market acceptance and sale: of our products;

« loss of customers;

 product liability suits against us;

.-, diversion of developnient and support resources;

¢ injury to our reputation; and

* increased maintenance and warranty costs.

While our software subscription agreements ty pically contain limitations and disclaimers that should limit our
liability for damages related to defects in our soft'vare, such limitations and disclaimers may not be upheld by a
court or other tribunal or otherwise protect us fro:n such claims.

We participate in a new and evolving market, which increases the difficulty of evaluating the effectiveness
of our current business strategy and future prospects.

Qur current business model and prospects for increases in revenue should be considered in light of the risks and
difficulties we encounter in the new, uncertain and 1apidly evolving talent management market. Because this market
is new and evolving, we cannot predict with any assurance the future growth rate and size of this market, which, in
comparison with the market for all enterprise softw are applications, is relatively small. The rapidly evolving nature
of the markets in which we sell our products and sei1vices, as well as other factors that are beyond our control, reduce .
our ability to evaluate accurately our future prospects and to forecast with a high degree of certainty our projected
quarterly or annual performance. ’

Widespread market acceptance of the vendor hosted, or on demand, delivery model is uncertain, and if it
does not continue to develop, or develops more slowly than we expect, our business may be harmed,

The market for on demand, vendor hosted e aterprise software, also called software as a service or Saa8, is
relatively new and there is uncertainty as to whether SaaS will achieve long-term market acceptance. Qur customers
access and use our software as a web-based soluticn that is hosted by us. If the preferences of our customers change
and our customers require that they host our softw are themselves, either upon the initiation of a new agreement or
upon the renewal of an existing agreement, we would experience a decrease in revenue from hosting fees, and
potentially higher costs and greater complexity in providing maintenance and support for our software. Addi-
tionally, a very limited number of our customers have the contractual right to elect to host our software themselves
prior to the expiration of their subscription agresments with us. If the number of customers purchasing hosting
services from us decreases, we might not be able to decrease our expenses related to hosting infrastructure in the
short term if the demand for such hosting service:. decreases. Potential customers may be reluctant or unwilling to
allow a vendor to host software or internal data or. their behalf for a number of reasons, including security and data
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privacy concerns. If such organizations do not recognize the benefits of the on demand delivery model, then the
market for our solutions may not develop at all, or may develop more slowly than we expect.

If we fail to manage our hosting infrastructure capacity satisfactorily, our existing customers may
experience service outages and our new customers may experience delays in the deployment of our
solution.

We have experienced significant growth in the number of users, transactions, and data that our hosting
infrastructure supports. Failure to address the increasing demands on our hosting infrastructure satisfactorily may
result in service outages, delays or disruptions. For example, we have experienced downtimes within our hosting
infrastructure, some of which have been significant, which have prevented customers from using our solutions from
time to time. We seek to maintain sufficient excess capacity in our hosting infrastructure to meet the needs of all of
our customers. We also maintain excess capacity to facilitate the rapid provisioning of new customer deployments
and expansion of existing customer deployments. The development of new hosting infrastructure to keep pace with
expanding storage and processing requirements could be a significant cost to us that we are not able to predict
accurately and for which we are not able to budget significantly in advance. Such outlays could raise our cost of
-goods sold and be detrimental to our financial results. At the same time, the development of new hosting
infrastructure requires significant lead time. If we do not accurately predict our infrastructure capacity require-
ments, our existing customers may experience service outages that may subject us to financial penalties, financial
liabilities and the loss of customers. If our hosting infrastructure capacity fails to keep pace with sales, customers
may experience delays as we seek to obtain additional capacity, which could harm our reputation and adversely
affect our revenue growth.

Any significant disruption in our computing and communications infrastructure could harm our
© reputation, result in a loss of customers and adversely affect our business,

Qur computing and communications infrastructure is a critical part of our business operations. The vast
majority of our customers access our solutions through a standard web browser. Qur customers depend on us for fast
and reliable access to our applications. Much of our software is proprietary, and we rely on the expertise of members
of our engineering and software development teams for the continued performance of our applications. We have
experienced, and may in the future experience, serious disruptions in our computing and communications
infrastructure. Factors that may cause such disruptions include:

* human etror;

» physical or electronic security breaches;

* telecommunications outages from third-party providers;
* computer viruses,

* acts of terrorism or sabotage;

« fire, earthquake, flood and other natural disasters; and
« power loss.

Although we back up data stored on our systems at least weekly, our infrastructure does not currently include
real-time, or near real-time, mirroring of data storage and production capacity in more than one geographically
distinct location. Thus, in the event of a physical disaster, or certain other failures of our computing infrastructure,
customer data from recent transactions may be permanently lost.

We have computing and communications hardware operations located at third-party facilities with Internap in
New York City and with Equinix in San Jose, California. We do not control the operation of these facilities and must
rely on these vendors to provide the physical security, facilities management and communications infrastructure
services to ensure the reliable and consistent delivery of our solutions to our customers. Although we believe we
would be able to enter into a similar relationship with another third party should one of these relationships fail or
terminate for any reason, we believe our reliance on any third-party vendor exposes us to risks outside of our
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control. If these third-party vendors encounter financial difficulty such as bankruptcy or other events beyond our
control that cause them to fail to secure adequately and maintain their hosting facilities or provide the required data
communications capacity, our customers may experience interruptions in our service or the loss or theft of
important customer data.

We have experienced system failures in the past. If our customers experience service interruptions or the loss or
theft of their data caused by us, we may be subject to contractual performance credit liabilities, financial penalties,
financial liability or customer losses.

Our insurance policies may not adequately compensate us for any losses that may occur due to any failures or
interruptions in our systems.

We must hire and retain key employees and recruit qualified technical sales and finance personnel or our
future success and business could be harmed,

Our success depends on the continued employnient of our senior management and other key employees, such
as our chief executive officer and our chief financial officer. A significant number of our senior management were
recently hired, including our chief financial officer, and our continued success will depend on their effective
management. There can be no assurance that our management team will be successfully integrated into our business
and work together effectively. Our current senior management and employees have worked together for a relatively
short period of time as a result of recent changes in senior management. We do not maintain key person life
insurance on any of our executive officers. Additionally, our continued success depends, in part, on our ability to
retain qualified technical, sales and other personnel. In particular, we have recently hired a significant number of
finance personnel who may take some period of time to become fully productive. We generally find it difficult to
find qualified personnel with relevant experience in doth technology sales and human capital management. Because
our future success is dependent on our ability to continue to enhance and introduce new products, we are particularly
dependent on our ability to retain qualified engineers with the requisite education, background and industry
experience, In particular, because our research and levelopment facilities are primarily located in Quebec, Canada,
we are substantially dependent on that labor market to attract qualified engineers. The loss of the services of a
significant number of our engineers or sales people could be disruptive to our development efforts or business
relationships. If we lose the services of one or more of our senior management or key employees, or if one or more
of them decides to join a competitor or otherwise to compete with us, our business could be harmed. The recent
relocation of our headquarters facility may result in unexpected attrition and we may have difficulty filling vacated
positions in a timely manner and our operations riay be negatively impacted.

We currently derive a material portion of our revenue from international operations and expect to expand
our international operations. However, we do not have substantial experience in international markets,
and may not achieve the expected results.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, ievenue generated outside the United States was 8.9% of total
revenue, with Canada accounting for 5.9% of totz] revenue. We currently have international offices in Australia,
Canada, France, the Netherlands, Singapore and the United Kingdom; however, we currently maintain data centers
only in the United States. We may expand our international operations, which will involve a variety of risks,
including:

+ unexpected changes in regulatory requirerients, taxes, trade laws, tariffs, export quotas, custom duties or
other trade restrictions;

» differing regulations in Quebec with regard to maintaining operations, products and public information in
both French and English;

« differing labor regulations, especiaily in the European Union and Quebec, where labor laws are generally
more advantageous to employees as compared to the United States, including deemed hourly wage and
overtime regulations in these locations;

* more stringent regulations relating to data >rivacy and the unauthonzed use of, or access to, commerc1al and
personal information, particularly in Eurcpe and Canada;
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* reluctance to allow personally identifiable data related to non-U.S. citizens to be stored in databases within
the United States, due to concerns over the United States government’s right to access personally identifiable
data of non-1J.S. citizens stored in databases within the United States or other concerns;

+ greater difficulty in supporting and localizing our products;
+ changes in a specific country’s or region’s political or economic conditions;

» challenges inherent in efficiently managing an increased number of employees over large geographic
distances, including the need to implement appropriate systems, policies, benefits and compliance
programs;

. * limited or unfavorable intellectual property protection; and
* restrictions on repatriation of earnings.

We have limited experience in marketing, selling and supporting our products and services abroad. If we invest -
substantial time and resources to expand our international operations and are unable to do so successfully and in a
timely manner, our business and operating results will suffer.

Fluctuations in the exchange rate of foreign currencies could result in currency transaction losses, which
could harm our operating results and financial condition,

We currently have foreign sales denominated in foreign currencies, including the Canadian dollar, Australian
dollar, the Euro, New Zealand doliar, British pound sterling and Swiss franc, and may in the future have sales
denominated in the currencies of additional countries in which we establish or have established sales offices. In
addition, we incur a substantial portion of our operating expenses in Canadian dollars and, to a much lesser extent,
other foreign cwirencies. Any fluctuation in the exchange rate of these foreign currencies may negatively affect our
business, financial condition and operating results. We have not previously engaged in foreign currency hedging. If
we decide to hedge our foreign currency exposure, we may not be able to hedge effectively due to lack of
experience, unreasonable costs or illiquid markets.

If we fail to defend our proprietary rights aggressively, our competitive advantage could be impaired and
we may lose valuable assets, experience reduced revenue, and incur costly litigation fees to protect our
rights.

Our success is dependent, in part, upon protecting our proprietary technology. We rely on a combination of
copyrights, trademarks, service marks, trade secret laws, and contractual restrictions to establish and protect our
proprietary rights in our products and services. We do not have any issued or pending patents and do not rely on
patent protection. We will not be able to protect our intellectual property if we are unable to enforce our rights or if
we do not detect unauthorized use of our intellectual property. Despite our precautions, it may be possible for
unauthorized third parties o copy our products and use information that we regard as proprietary to create products
and services that compete with ours. Some license provisions protecting against unauthorized use, copying, transfer
and disclosure of our licensed products may be unenforceable under the laws of certain jurisdictions and foreign
countries in which we operate. Further, the laws of some countries do not protect proprietary rights to the same
extent as the laws of the United States. To the extent, we expand our international activities, our exposure to
unauthorized copying and use of our products and proprietary information may increase. We enter into confi-
dentiality and invention assignment agreements with our employees and consultants and enter into confidentiality
agreements with the parties with whom we have strategic relationships and business alliances. No assurance can be
given that these agreements will be effective in controlling access to and distribution of our products and proprietary
information, Further, these agreements do not prevent our competitors from developing technologies independently
that are substantially equivalent or superior to our products. Initiating legal action may be necessary in the future to
enforce our intellectual property rights and to protect our trade secrets. Litigation, whether successful or unsuc-
cessful, could result in substantial costs and diversion of management resources, either of which could seriously
harm our business.
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Current and future litigation against us could be costly and time consuming to defend.

We are regularly subject to legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of business. Litigation
may result in substantial costs and may divert manageraent’s attention and resources, which may seriously harm our
business, overall financial condition, and operating results. In addition, legal claims that have not yet been asserted
against us may be asserted in the future, see Note 13 — Commitments and Contingencies in our Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Our results of operations may be adversely affected if we are subject to a protracted infringement claim
or a claim that results in a significant award for damages.

We expect that software product developers such as ourselves will increasingly be subject to infringement
claims as the number of products and competitors grows and the functionality of products in different industry
segments overlaps. To date, we are not aware of any le:zal claim thut has been liled against us regarding these matters
but such claims have been threatened, see Note 13 -~ Commitments and Contingencies in our Notes to Consol-
.idated Financial Statements. We can give no assurance that such claims will not be filed in the future. Our
competitors or other third parties may also challenge t1e validity or scope of our intellectual property rights. A claim
may also be made relating to technology that we acquire or license from third parties. If we were subject to a claim
of infringement, regardless of the merit of the clatr or our defenses, the claim could:

» require costly litigation to resolve and the payment of substantial damages;

» require significant management time;

* cause us to enter into unfavorable royalty or license agreements;

* require us to discontinue the sale of our products;

* require us to indemnify our customers or thicd-party service providers; or

* require us to expend additional development resources to redesign our products.

We may also be required to indemnify our customers and third-party service providers for third-party products
that are incorporated into our products and that infringe the intellectual property rights of others. Although many of
these third parties are obligated to indemnify us if their products infringe the rights of others, this indemnification
may not be adequate.

In addition, from time to time there have bee:y claims challenging the ownership of open source software
against companies that incorporate open source software into their products. We use open source software in our
products and may use more open source software in the future. As a result, we could be subject to suits by parties
claiming ownership of what we believe to be open scurce software. Litigation could be costly for us to defend, have
a negative effect on our operating results and financial condition or require us to devote additional research and
development rescurces to change cur products.

Our insurance policies’ will not compensate us for any losses or liabilities resulting from patent infringement
claims.

We employ technology licensed from third parties for use in or with our solutions, and the loss or
inability to maintain these licenses or errors in the software we license could result in increased costs, or
rediced service levels, which would adversely uffect our business.

We include in the distribution of our solutions certain technology obtained under licenses from other
companies, such as Oracle for database software, Business Objects for reporting sofiware and Web Methods
for integration software. We anticipate that we will continue to license technology and development tcols from third
parties in the future. Although we believe that there are commercially reasonable software alternatives to the third-
party software we currently license, this may not al'ways be the case, or we may license third-party software that is
more difficult or costly to replace than the third party software we currently license. In addition, integration of our
products with new third-party software may require significant work and require substantial allocation of our time
and resources. Also, to the extent that our products Jepend upon the successful operation of third-party products in
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conjunction with our products, any undetected errors in these third-party products could prevent the implementation
or impair the functionality of our products, delay new product introductions and injure our reputation. Our use of
additional or alternative third-party software would require us to enter into license agreements with third parties,
which could result in higher costs.

Difficulties that we may encounter in managing changes in the size of our business could affect our
operating results adversely.

Our business has experienced rapid growth,in employee count since inception through both internal expansion
and acquisitions. In 2005, we began taking steps to align our resources with our operating requirements in order to
increase our efficiency. Through these steps, we reduced our headcount and incurred charges for employee
severance and we may do so again in the future. As many employees are located in Quebec, Canada, we may be
required to pay the severance amounts legally required in such jurisdiction, which may exceed those of the United
States. While we believe that these steps help us achieve greater operating efficiency, we have limited history with
such measures and the results of these measures are difficult to predict. Additional restructuring efforts may be
required. In order to manage our business effectively, we must continually manage headcount in an efficient
manner. Qur productivity and the quality of our products may be adversely affected if we do not integrate and train
our employees quickly and effectively and coordinate among our executive, engineering, finance, marketing, sales,
operations, and customer support organizations, all of which add to the complexity of our organization. We believe
reductions in our workforce, management changes, and facility consolidation create anxiety and uncertainty, and
may adversely affect employee morale. These measures could adversely affect our employees that we wish to retain
and may also adversely affect our ability to hire new personnel. They may also negatively affect customers. In
addition, our revenues may not grow in alignment with our headcount.

Failure to manage our customer deployments effectively could increase our expenses and cause customer
- dissatisfaction.

Enterprise deployments of our products require a substantial understanding of our customers’ businesses, and
the resulting configuration of our solutions to their business processes and integration with their existing systems.
We may encounter difficulties in managing the timeliness of these deployments and the allocation of personnel and
resources by us or our customers. [n certain situations, we also work with third-party service providers in the
implementation or software integration-related services of our solutions, and we may experience difficulties in
managing such third parties. Failure to manage customer implementation or software integration-related services
successfully by us or our third-party service providers could harm our reputation and cause us to lose existing
customers, face potential customer disputes or limit the rate at which new customers purchase our solutions.

Unfavorable economic conditions and reductions in information technology spending could limit our
ability to grow our business.

Our operating results may vary based on the impact of changes in global economic conditions on our
customers. The revenue growth and profitability of our business depends on the overall demand for enterprise
application software and services. Most of our revenue is currently derived from large organizations whose
businesses fluctuate with general economic and business conditions. As a result, a softening of demand for
enterprise application software and services, and in particular enterprise talent management solutions, caused by a
weakening global economy may cause a decline in our revenue. Historically, economic downturns have resulted in
overall reductions in corporate information technology spending. In the future, potential customers may decide to
reduce their information technotogy budgets by deferring or reconsidering product purchases, which could reduce
our future earnings.

Our reported financial results may be adversely affected by changes in generally accepted accounting
principles or changes in our operating history that :mpact the application of generally accepted
accounting principles.

Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States, or GAAFP, are subject to interpretation by the
Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, or
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AICPA, the SEC and various other organizations formed to promulgate and interpret accounting principles. A
change in these principles or interpretations could have a significant effect on our projected financial results. For
example, beginning January 1, 2006, Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R),*“Share-Based
Payment,” or SFAS 123(R), required us 1o expense the fair value of employee stock options and similar awards.
SFAS 123(R) addresses accounting for transactions “n which we obtain emplovee services in exchange for share-
based payments. SFAS 123(R} requires us to recoznize stock-based compensation costs for awards of equity
instruments to employees based on the grant-date: fair value of those awards, with limited exceptions. The effect of
this pronouncement on our results of operations was material, representing total expenses in our statement of
operations of $4.5 million for the year ended Dece nber 31, 2006:

In addition, pursuant to the application of GAA)’ we recognize the majerity of our application revenue monthly
over the life of the application agreement. In certain instances, the straight-line revenue recognized on a monthly
basis may exceed the amounts invoiced for the sanie peried. If our history of collecting all fees reflected in our
application agreements negatively changes, the application of GAAP may mandate that we not recognize revenue in
excess of the fees invoiced over the corresponding period for new agreements. The application of GAAP also
requires that we accomplish delivery of our solution: to our customers in order to recognize revenue associated with
such solutions. In the context of our model, delivery requires the creation of an instance of the solution that may be
accessed by the customer via the Internet. We may experience difficulty in making new products available to our
customers in this manner. In the event we are not able 1o make our solutions available to our customer via the
Internet in a timely manner, due to resource constraints, implementation difficulties or other reasons, our ability to
recognize revenue from the sales of our solutions may be delayed and our financial results may be negatively
impacted.

If tax benefits currently available under the tex laws of Quebec are reduced or repealed, or if we have
taken an incorrect position with respect to tax matters under discussion with the Canadian Revenue
Authority, our business could suffer.

The majority of our research and developruen activities are conducted through cur Canadian subsidiary, Taleo
(Canada) Inc. We participate in a government program in Quebec that provides investment credits based upon
qualifying research and development expenditures. These expenditures primarily consist of the salaries for the
persons conducting research and development aciivities. We have participated in the program for five years, and
expect that we will continue to receive these investment tax credits through September 2008. In 2006, we recorded a
$2.2 million reduction in our research and development expenses as a result of this program. We anticipate the
continued reduction of our research and developm :nt expenses through application of these credits through 2008. If
these investment tax benefits are reduced or eliminated, our financial condition and operating results may be
adversely affected,

In addition, compliance with income tax regulations requires us to make decisions relating to the transfer
pricing of revenues and expenses between its subsidiaries, the underlying value of the assets of the business, the
ownership of assets, and the application of aviilable tax credits. To date, certain of our positions have been
examined by the Canada Revenue Agency (“CRA™) as described below and our positions may be examined by other
taxing authorities in the future.

CRA Examination of Tax Year 1999.  With respect to our 1999 tax year, we have undergone an examination
by CRA regarding the transfer of intellectual property to us from our Canadian subsidiary. In September 2006, we
entered into a definitive settlement agreement with CRA with respect to this examination. The terms of the
settlement require us to make royalty payments to our Canadian subsidiary on certain revenues from outside of
Canada for tax years 2000 through 2008. The royalty payments for tax years 2000 through 2006 results in
approximately CAD $2.6 million of additional ir come to our Canadian subsidiary. This additional income has been
fully offset by net operating losses and carryforwards. Accordingly, in the year ended December 31, 2006, we have
recognized deferred tax assets in an amount to offset this assessment. Based on expected revenues subject to the
royalty payment obligation, we currently project royalty payments for tax years 2007 and 2008 to approximate
CAD $4.0 million to our Canadian subsidiary, although the amount will vary depending on our financial
performance. Accordingly, we have not adjusied our deferred tax assets for future utilization of net operating
losses and carryforwards to account for this pctential assessment because of the uncertainty around realization.
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CRA Examination of Tax Years 2000 and 2001. In April 2006, CRA proposed an additional increase to
taxable income for our Canadian subsidiary of approximately CAD $5.3 million in respect of our 2000 and 2001 tax
years, which consists of CAD $2.3 million relating to income and expense allocations and CAD $3.0 million
relating to our treatment of Quebec investment tax credits. We disagree with these 2000 and 2001 proposed
adjustments and intend to contest these matters through applicable CRA and judicial procedures, as appropriate.
Accordingly, in the three months ended December 31, 2006, we have recognized deferred tax assets in an amount
determined to be both probable and estimable. In December 2006, we provided CRA with our settlement proposal
with respect to the 2000 and 2001 tax years. We have not received a response from CRA on our proposal.

CRA Examination Impact to Future Tax Years. The CRA issue relating to the treatment of the Quebec
investment tax credit in tax years 2000 and 2001 will have bearing on the tax treatment applied in subsequent
periods that are not currently under examination. If the CRA renders an unfavorable opinion for tax years 2000 and
2001, such adjustments could have a material impact on tax years after 2001. We estimate the potential range of
additional income subject to Canadian income tax for tax years 2000 to 2006 as a result of the Quebec investment
tax credit issue to be between CAD $1.0 and $17.0 million, including CRA’s proposed assessment of CAD
$3.0 million for the 2000 and 2001 tax years, as discussed above.

Availahility of Deferred Tax Assets. CRA has indicated it will make an assessment and apply available
deferred tax assets at the conclusion of the examinations described above. As of December 31, 2006, we have
approximately CAD $1.5 million of available deferred tax assets to reduce income adjustments from the 1999
settlement for tax years 2007 and 2008, future operating income and any further seitlement negotiations with CRA.
In the event any of these amounts either individually or collectively exceed CAD $1.5 million, our Canadian
subsidiary will not have sufficient net operating losses and carryforwards to offset the additional income and would
incur a Canadian tax liability which could be material. As a result of these adjustments, we expect to pay taxes in
Canada in 2007 in addition to any tax liability for prior periods. In addition, we may be subject to penalties and
interest on any Canadian tax liability for the 2000 tax year and beyond. Any such penalties or interest cannot be
reasonably estimated at this time.

If sufficient evidence becomes available allowing us to more accurately estimate a probable income tax
liability from the 1999 settlement for tax years 2007 and 2008 and the CRA’s examination of our treatment of
Quebec investment tax credits, we will apply net operating losses and carryforwards to the extent available and
reserve against any remaining balances due by recording additional income tax expense in the period the liability
becomes estimable. We are seeking United States tax treaty relief through the appropriate Competent Authority
tribunals for the settlement entered into with CRA with respect to the examination of our 1999 tax year, and we will
further seek United States tax treaty relief for all subsequent final settlements entered into with CRA.

Evolving regulation of the Internet may increase our expenditures related to compliance efforts, which
may adversely affect our financial condition.

As Internet commerce continues to evolve, increasing regulation by federal, state or foreign agencies becomes
more likely. We are particularly sensitive to these risks because the Internet is a critical component of our business
model. For example, we believe increased regulation is likely in the area of data privacy, and laws and regulations
applying to the solicitation, collection, processing or use of personal or consumer information could affect our
customers’ ability to use and share data, potentially reducing demand for solutions accessed via the Internet and
restricting our ability to store, process and share data with our customers via the Internet. In addition, taxation of
services provided over the Internet or other charges imposed by government agencies or by private organizations for
accessing the Internet may also be imposed. Any regulation imposing greater fees for internet use or restricting
information exchange over the Internet could result in a decline in the use of the Internet and the viability of
internet-based services, which could harm our business.

If we fail to develop our brand cost-effectively, our customers may not recognize our brand and we may
incur significant expenses, which would harm our business and financial condition.

We believe that developing and maintaining awareness of our brand in a cost-effective manner is critical to
achieving widespread acceptance of our existing and future solutions and is an important element in attracting new
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customers. Furthermore, we believe that the importance of brand recognition will increase as competition in our
market intensifies. Successful promotion of our brand ‘will depend largely upon the effectiveness of our marketing
efforts and on our ability to provide reliable and useful solutions at competitive prices. In the past, our efforts to
build our brand have involved significant expense, an¢l we expect (o increase that expense in connection with our
rebranding and marketing processes, Brand promotion activities may not yield increased revenue, and even if they
do, any increased revenue may not offset the expenses we incur in building our brand. If we fail to promote
successfully and maintain our brand, we may fail to atiract enough new customers or retain our existing customers
to the extent necessary to realize a sufficient return oa our brand-building efforts, and our business could suffer.

Our stock price is likely to be volatile and could lecline.

The stock market in general and the market for technology-related stocks in particular has been highly volatile.
As a result, the market price of our Class A common stock is likely to be similarly volatile, and investors in our
Class A common stock may experience a decrease in ‘he value of their stock, including decreases unrelated to our
operating performance or prospects. The price of our Class A common stock could be subject to wide fluctuations in
response to a number of factors, including those listed in this “Risk Factors” section and others such as:

* our operating performance and the performance of other similar companies;

* the overall performance of the equity markets;

« developments with respect to intellectual property rights;

* publication of unfavorable research reports about us or our industry or withdrawal of research;
« coverage by securitics analysts or lack of coverage by securities analysts;

¢ speculation in the press or investment community;

* terrorist acts; and

* announcements by us or our competitors of significant contracts, new technologies, acquisitions, com-
mercial relationships, joint ventures, or capital commitments.

QOur principal stockholders will have a controlliing influence over our business affairs and may make
business decisions with which you disagree and which may adversely affect the value of your investment.

QOur executive officers, directors, major stockho:ders and their affiliates beneficially own or control, indirectly
or directly, a substantial number of shares of our Class A and Class B common stock. As a result, if some of these
persons or entities act together, they will have the ability to control matters submitted to our stockholders for
approval, including the election and removal of directors, amendments to our certificate of incorporation and
bylaws, and the approval of any business combination. These actions may be taken even if they are opposed by other
stockholders. This concentration of ownership may also have the effect of delaying or preventing a change of
control of our company or discouraging others from making tender offers for our shares, which could prevent our
stockholders from receiving a premium for their skares.

We may need to raise additional capital, which may not be available, thereby adversely affecting our
ability to operate our business.

If we need to raise additional funds due to unforeseen circumstances or continued operating losses, we cannot
be certain that we will be able to obtain additional financing on favorable terms, if at all, and any additional
financings could result in additional dilution to our =xisting stockholders. If we need additional capital and cannot
raise it on acceptable terms, we may not be able to meet our business objectives, our stock price may fall and you
may lose some or all of your investment.
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Provisions in our charter documents and Delaware law may delay or prevent an acquisition of our
company.

Qur certificate of incorporation and bylaws contain provisions that could increase the difficulty for a third
party to acquire us without the consent of our board of directors. For example, if a potential acquirer were to make a
hostile bid for us, the acquirer would not be able to call a special meeting of stockholders to remove our board of
directors or act by written consent without a meeting. In addition, our board of directors has staggered terms, which
means that replacing a majority of our directors would require at least two annual meetings. The acquirer would also
be required te provide advance notice of its proposal 1o replace directors at any annoal meeting, and will not be able
1o cumulate votes at a meeting, which will require the acquirer to hold more shares to gain representation on the
board of directors than if cumulative voting were permitted.

Qur board of directors also has the ability to issue preferred stock that could significantly dilute the ownership
of a hostile acquirer. In addition, Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law limits business combination
transactions with 15% or greater stockholders that have not been approved by the board of directors. These
provisions and other similar provisions make it more difficult for a third party to acquire us without negotiation.
These provisions may apply even if the offer may be considered beneficial by some stockholders.

Holders of our Class B common stock vote with our Class A common stock, which dilutes the voting
power of our Class A common stockholders.

As of December 31, 2006, 1,873,811 shares of our Class B common stock are held by holders of our
exchangeable shares in order to allow them voting rights in Taleo without having to exchange their shares in
9090-5415 Quebec Inc. and suffer the corresponding Canadian tax consequences. These Class B shares vole as a
class with our Class A common stock and, upon exchange of the exchangeable shares for Class A common stock,
will be redeemed on the basis of one share of Class B common stock redeemed for each one share of Class A
common stock issued. Therefore, approximately 7.8% of the voting power of our outstanding shares as of
December 31, 2006, is held by the Class B common stockholders and will continue to be held by them until they
decide to exchange their exchangeable shares. Accordingly, our Class B common stock constitutes, and is expected
to continue to constitute, a significant portion of the shares entitled to vote on all matters requiring approval by our
stockholders,

We have recently relocated our headquarters. The lease for our new facility is incremental to an existing
lease on our former headquarters facility in San Francisco, California. If the sublessor at our

San Francisco facility is unable to meet its obligations under the sublease, it is likely we would need to
recognize a loss for the expected sublease rental income.

We leased a 35,000 square foot facility in Dublin, California in March 2006 for a seven year term as our new
headquarters. In addition, we have approximately 12,000 square feet of spiace on our existing headquarters facility
in San Francisco, California that we have subleased. If the sublessor of our San Francisco facility is unable to meet
its obligations under the sublease, we may have difficulty finding a new sublessor for the facility. We may incur
additional costs and may not receive sublease rental income during periods of vacancy.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

) Qur principal offices are in Dublin, California, where we lease approximately 35,000 square feet of space for

our current headquarters and in Quebec City, where we lease approximately. 48,000 square feet of space used
primarily by our research and development group. On March 16, 2006, we entered into the Dublin lease agreement
with BIT Holdings FiftysSix, Inc. (the “Landlord™) for office space consisting of approximately 35,000 square feet
and located at 4140 Dublin Boulevard, Suite 400, Dublin, California. This office space will serve as the Company’s
new head office. The term of the lease is for seven (7) years, commencing on June 15, 2006, and we have one option
to renew the lease for an additional term of five (5) years. We will pay base rent ranging from approximately
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$52,430 per month to approximately $85,020 per rionth, in addition to operating expenses and taxes, for the
duration of the lease term. In addition, we are genera’ly responsible under the lease for the condition, order, repair
and maintenance of the premises.

Our former principal office location in San Frarcisco, California, consisting of approximately 12,109 square
feet, was subleased on October 19, 2006. The term of the sublease commenced on October 31, 2006, and will end on
July 30, 2009. Under the sublease, we will receive monthly rental payments of approximately $20,182 until
September 30, 2007, $22,220 from October 1, 2007 10 September 30, 2008, and $24,218 from October 1, 2008 to
July 30, 2009. Provided that the sublessee is not in default under the sublease, the monthly base rent otherwise
payable by the sublessee under the sublease will be abated for the first two months of the term. The sublease also
provides for the payment of additional rent for operating expenses and taxes,

In North America, we have additional sales ani services persennel throughout the United States, including
offices in Chicago and the greater New York area, and Canada, including Montreal, Quebec City and Toronto.
Outside of North America, we maintain offices for our sales and services personnel in Amsterdam, London,
Melbourne, Paris, Singapore and Sydney. '

We believe that our facilities are adequate for current needs and that suitable additional or substitute space will
be available as needed to accommodate foreseeable expansion of our operations.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we are involved in claims, legal proceedings and potential claims that arise in the ordinary
course of business. For example, holders of certain patents have asserted that our technology infringes patented
technology but have not filed legal actions against us to date, see “Item 1A. — Risk Factors”. Based upon currently
available information, management does not believe that the ultimate outcome of these unresolved matters,
individually and in the aggregate, is likely to have a material adverse effect on our financial position or results of
operations. However, litigation is subject to inherent uncertainties and our view of these matters may change in the
future, If we should be subject to an unfavorable ruling by a court, there exists the possibility of a material adverse
impact on our financial position and results of cperations for the period in which the unfavorable cutcome occurs,
and potentially in future periods.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TG A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.
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PART 11

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our Class A common stock has traded on the Nasdaq Stock Market LLC under the symbol “TLEO™ since
September 29, 2005. Prior to that time, there was no public market for our Class A common stock. The following
table sets forth the range of high and low sales prices at the closing on the Nasdaq Stock Market LLC of the Class A
common stock for the periods indicated, as reported by the Nasdaq Stock Market LLC. Such quotations represent
inter-dealer prices without retail markup, markdown or commission and may not necessarily represent actual
transactions. ‘ '

For the year ended December 31, 2006
Fourth quarter. . .. .. .. e $13.99  $10.01
Third QUATTET. © . . ittt e e e e e e e e 11.87 7.85
Second QUAITEL . ... oottt et 14.63 11.01
FIrst QUAMTET . . .. . e e e 14.81 12.04
For the year ended December 31, 2005 i
Fourth quarter. . .. ... ... e $13.91 31095

As of February 28, 2007, there were approximately 89 holders of record of our Class A common stock and 10
holders of record of our Class B common stock.

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our Class A’ common stock. We currently expect to -
retain any future earnings for use in the operation and expansion of our business and do not anticipate paying any
cash dividends on our Class A common stock in the foreseeable future.

Sale of Unregistered Securities

On January 25, 2007, we issued 349,690 shares of our Class A common stock to E-Services Investments
Private Sub LLC in connecticn with a cashless exercise of a warrant to purchase 481,921 shares of our Class A
common stock at an exercise price of $3.63 per share. The issuance of our shares was made on reliance upon an
exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act provided by Section 4(2) and Regulation D.

On February 28, 2007, we issued 6,510 shares of our Class A common stock to Heidrick and Struggles, Inc. in
connection with a cashless exercise of a warrant 1o purchase 41,667 shares of our Class A common stock at an
exercise price of $13.50 per share. The issuance of our shares was made on reliance upon an exemption from the
registration requirements of the Securities Act provided by Section 4(2) and Regulation D.

Use of Proceeds from Public Offering

The Securities and Exchange Commission declared our registration statement, filed on Form S-1 (File
No. 333-114093) under the Securities Act in connection with the initial public offering of our Class A common
stock, $0.00001 par value, effective on September 28, 2005. The underwriters were Citigroup Global Markets Inc.,
Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., CIBC World Markets Corp. and
ThinkEquity Partners LLC.

Our initial public offering closed on October 4, 2005, 7,705,000 shares of Class A common stock were
registered under the registration statement, and 6,700,000 shares of Class A common stock were sold to the public at
a price of $14.00 per share. Of the 6,700,000 shares of Class A common stock sold in the offering, 5,360,000 shares
were sold by us and 1,340,000 shares were sold by certain selling stockholders. The offering terminated after the
sale of the 6,700,000 shares.
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The aggregate gross proceeds from the sale of shares of Class A common stock by us were approximately
$75.0 million and the aggregate gross proceeds froimn the sale of shares of Class A common stock by the selling
stockholders were approximately $18.8 million. The aggregate net proceeds to us were approximately $65.9 million
after deducting approximately $3.3 million in under writing discounts and commissions and $3.9 million in other
costs incurred in connection with the offering.

We have used and intend to continue to use the r et proceeds for general corporate purposes, which may include
expansion of our sales and marketing and research «nd development efforts, working capital, capital expenditures
and potential acquisitions of complementary busine ;ses, products and technologies. From the effective date of the
registration to the end of 2005, we used approximate y $20.6 million of the net proceeds of this offering to repay our
loan with Goldman Sachs Specialty Lending Group (“Goeldman Sachs”), and paid approximately $1.3 million in
respect of capital expenditures. We have no curreat agreements or commitments with respect to any material
acquisitions. Pending such uses, we intend to invest the net proceeds in short-term, interest-bearing, investment-
grade securities or government securities.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The information below is derived from our consolidated financial statements and should be read in conjunction
with ltem 8. — Financial Statements and Supplementary Data and Item 7. — Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations. The consolidated statement of operations data for each
of the vears ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 and the consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002 are dertved from our consolidated financial statements which are not included in this report. Our
historical results are not necessarily indicative of results for any future period.

Year Ended December 31,
2006 - 2005 2004 2003 2002
(In thousands, except per share data)

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data(1):

Revenue:
Application . ... ... ... . .. e $79,137 $63,296 $49,010 $36,029 $ 20,753
Consulting .. ......... E 17906 15,114 9,640 7,606 7.635
Total revenue . ... ..o o e 97.043 78,410 38,650 43,635 28,388
Cost of revenue:
Application ... ........ .. e e 19,317 16,419 14,627 7.691 3,987
Consulting . .. ... e 12,785 11,058 8,276 6,462 6,504
Total costof revenue . ................ . .¢c.c... 32,102 27477 22,903 14,153 10,491
Grossprofit .. ... ... ... . . i 64,941 50,933 35,747 29,482 17,897
Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing . . ... ... ... .. ... 29482 22,544 18,153 14,767 12,205
Research and development . . ................... 19475 16,687 15,932 10,927 6,460
General and administrative . . . ... .. .. ... ... . ... 21,113 10,725 7,096 4,726 3,372
Restructuring charges . ... . ........ .. ... ... 414 804 — — —
Charge for in-process research and development . .. . . _ —_ — —_ 150 —
Total operating expenses. . . .............venn.. 70,484 50,760 41,181 30,570 22,037
Operating income (1oss) .. ..................... (5,543) 173 (5434) (1,088) (4,140)
Other income (expense):
Interest INCOME. . . o v i it e et et e e a 2,891 R73 101 83 137
Interest eXpense . .. ... e (107 (l,273j_ (404) (152) (109)
Fees for early extinguishment of debt .. ........... — (2.264) —_ (62) (39)
Total other income (expense), net .. .............. 2,784  (2,664) (303) (131) (11)
Net loss before provision for income taxes ......... (2,759 (2491 (5,737)  (1,219) (4,151
Provision (benefit) for income taxes .............. (131) 4 (11} (89) —
Netloss . ..o v e e e (2,628) (2,495) (5,726)  (1,308) (4,151)
Accrual of dividends and issuance costs on preferred

stock .. e — (2984) (3,299 _ (2,749 (2,486)
Net loss attributable to Class A common :

stockholders . . ... ... .. ... . $(2,628) $(547%) $ (9,025) $ (4,052) § (6,637)
Net loss attributable to Class A common stockholders . .

per share — basic and diluted(2) . ... ........... $ (0.13) § (1.19) $(161.16) $(162.08) $(1,106.17)
Weighted-average Class A common shares — basic

anddiluted(2). .. ... ... e 20,031 4,619 56 35 6
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December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)

Consolidated balance sheet data:

Cash and cash equivalents .................. $ 58785 $59346 $ 5773 $18,194 § 8964
Working capital (deficit). ... ...... ... .. ... .. 57,795 58,497 (1,371) 2,374 6,676
Total assels . .o it e e e 117,420 99.020 38,648 42,057 20,162
Long-termdebt . ... ... .. ... ... .. ... ... 17 399 2,573 216 71
Total preferred stock and exchangeable share

obligation........ ... .. . ... ... . 796 1,715 52,073 48,659 38,471

Total stockholders’ equity {(deficit) .. .......... 77.430 71,698 (42,996) (34427)  (30,191)

(1) We acquired White Amber, Inc. in October 20103 and Recruitforce.com in March 2005. Our consolidated
statement of operations and balance sheet data include the results of White Amber and Recruitforce.com only
for periods subsequent to October 21, 2003 and March 10, 2003, respectively, see ITEM 7. — Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditior and Results of Operations and Note 3 — Business Combi-
nations in our Notes to Consolidated Financiat Statements for additional information regarding our acquisition
of White Amber and Recruitforce.com.

(2) Per share numbers reflect only outstanding Cl:ss A Common Stock of the Company. Exchangeable Shares,
redeemable convertible preferred stock, steck options, and warrants are antidilutive for the periods presented,
see Note 9 — Preferred Stock and Note 10 — Common Stock in our Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATION

This Form 10-K, including ITEM 7. — Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations, contains forward-looking stctements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. These statements
identify prospective information, particularly statements referencing our expectations regarding revenue and
operating expenses, tax and accounting estimates, the demand and expansion opportunities for our products, our
customer base and our competitive position. In son e cases, forward-looking statements can be identified by the use
of words such as “may,” “could,” “would,” “might,” “will,” “should,” “expect,” “forecast,” “predict,” “potential,”
“continue,” “anticipates,” “expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “seeks,” “estimates,” “is scheduled for”
“targeted,” and variations of such words and sim/lar expressions. Such forward-looking statements are based on
current expectations, estimates, and projections about our industry, management’s beliefs, and assumptions made
by management. These statements are nor guarantees of future performance and are subject to certain risks,
uncertainties and assumptions that are difficult to predict; therefore, actual results and outcomes may differ
materially from what is expressed or forecasted in any such forward-looking statements, Such risks and uncer-
tainties include those ser forth herein under ITEM fA. — RISK FACTORS or included elsewhere in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K. Unless required by law, we undertake no obligation to update publicly any forward-looking
statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

- The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our ITEM 8. — FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA,

LI Mo

LI'T) LI T ELITS

Overview

We deliver on demand talent management solutions that enable organizations to assess, acquire, develop, and
align their workforces for improved business performance. We were incorporated under the laws of Delaware in
May 1999,

We offer two suites of talent management solutions: Taleo Enterprise Edition and Taleo Business Edition.
Taleo Enterprise Edition is designed for medinm to large-sized. multi-national organizations. Taleo Business
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Edition is designed for small to medium-sized organizations, stand-alone departments and divisions of larger
organizations, and staffing companies. QOur revenue is primarily earned through fees charged for accessing these
solutions. Our customers generally pay us in advance for their use of our solutions, and we use these cash receipts to
fund our operations. These payments are generally made on a quarterly or annual basis.

We focus our evaluation of our operating results and financial condition on certain key metrics, as well as
certain non-financial aspects of our business. Included in our evaluvation are our revenue composition and growth,
net income, and our overall liquidity that is primarity comprised of our cash and accounts recetvable balances. Non-
financial data is also evaluated, including, for example, purchasing trends for software applications across
industries and geographies, input from current and prospective customers relating to product functionality and
general economic data relating to employment and workforce mix between professional, hourly and contingent
workers. We use this aggregated information to assess our historic performance, and also to plan our future strategy.

In July 2006, we relocated our corporate headquarters from San Francisco to Dublin, California. We booked a
provision for the exit from the San Francisco facility in July 2006 in accordance with SFAS 146 “Accounting for
Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.”

Sources of Revenue

We derive our revenue from two sources: application revenue and consulting revenue,

Application Revenue

Application revenue is generally comprised of subscription fees from customers accessing our applications,
which includes the use of the application, application and data hosting and maintenance of the application. The
majority of our application subscription revenue is recognized monthly over the life of the application agreement,
based on a stated, fixed-doliar amount. Revenue associated with our Taleo Contingent solution is recognized based
on a fixed contract percentage of the doblar amount invoiced for contingent labor through use of the application, The
average term of our application agreements for Taleo Enterprise Edition signed with new customers in 2006 and
2005 was approximately three years, although terms for Taleo Enterprise Edition application agreements signed in
the years 2006 and 2005 ranged from one to ten years. Qur customer renewal rates have historicatly been high. The
term of application agreements for Taleo Business Edition is typically one year.

Application agreements entered into during 2006 and 2005 are generally non-cancelable, or contain significant
penalties for early cancellation, although customers typically have the right to terminate their contracts for cause if
we fail to perform our material obligations.

Consulting Revenue

Consulting revenue consists primarily of fees assoctated with application configuration, integration, business
process re-engineering, change management, and education and training services. Our consulting engagements are
typically billed on a time and materials basis, although a number of our engagements are priced on a fixed fee basis.
For those contracts structured on a fixed fee basis, we recognize the revenue proportionally to the performance of
the services, or the attainment of defined milestones. From time to time, certain of our consulting projects are
subcontracted to third parties. Our customers may also elect to use unrelated third parties for the types of consulting
services that we offer. Our typical consulting contract provides for payment within 30 to 60 days of invoice.

Cost of Revenue and Operating Expenses
Cost of Revenue

Cost of application revenue primarily consists of expenses related to hosting our application and providing
support, including employee related costs and depreciation expense associated with computer equipment. We
allocate overhead such as rent and occupancy charges, employee benefit costs and depreciation expense to all
departments based on employee count. As such, overhead expenses are reflected in each cost of revenue and
operating expense category. We currently deliver our solutions from two primary data centers that host the
applications for all but one of our customers that elected to deploy our application on its own infrastructure.
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Cost of consulting revenue consists primarily of employee related costs asseciated with these services and
allocated overhead. The cost associated with providin 7 consulting services is significantly higher as a percentage of
revenue than for our application revenue, primarily Jue to labor costs. We also subcontract to third parties for a
portion of our consulting business. To the extent that our customer base grows, we intend to continue to invest
additional resources in our consulting services. The timing of these additional expenses could affect our cost of
revenue, both in dollar amount and as a percentage of revenue, in a particular quarterly or annual period.

Sales and Marketing

. Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of salaries and related expenses for our sales and marketing
staff, including commissions, marketing programs, and allocated overhead. Marketing programs include adver-
tising, events, corporate communications, and othzr brand building and product marketing expenses. As our
business grows, we plan to continue to increase our investment in sales and marketing by adding personnel, building
our relationships with partners, expanding our dome tic and international selling and marketing activities, building
brand awareness, and sponsoring additional marketing events. We expect that our sales and marketing expenses will
increase in dollar terms as a result of these investments.

Research and Development

Research and development expenses consist pr.marily of salaries and related expenses and allocated overhead.
Our expenses are net of the tax credits we receive from the Government of Quebec. We focus our research and
development efforts on increasing the functionality .ind enhancing the ease of use and quality of our applications, as
well as developing new products and enhancing ou: infrastructure. We expect research and development expenses
will increase in dollar terms as we upgrade our existing applications and develop new technologies.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses consis: of salaries and related expenses for executive, finance and
accounting, human resource, legal, operations and management information systems personnel, professional fees,
other corporate expenses, and allocated overhead. We expect that the amount of general and administrative
expenses will increase in dollar amount as we add personnel and incur additional professional fees and insurance
costs related to the growth of our business and tc our operations as a public company.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States, or GAAP. The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires us
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the rzported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, costs and expenses
and related disclosures. We base our estimates or historical experience and on various other assumptions that we
believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. In many instances, we could have reasonably used different
accounting estimates, and in other instances changes in the accounting estimates are reasonably likely to occur from
period to period. Accordingly, actual results could differ significantly from the estimates made by our management.
To the extent that there are material differences between these estimates and actual results, our future financial
statement presentation, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows will be affected.

In many cases, the accounting treatment of ¢ particular transaction is specifically dictated by GAAP and does
not require management’s judgment in its application, while in other cases, management’s judgment is required in
selecting among available alternative accountiny; standards that allow different accounting treatment for similar
transactions. We believe that the accounting policies discussed below are critical to understanding our historical and
future performance, as these policies relate to the more significant areas involving management’s judgments and
estimates. Our management has reviewed these critical accounting policies, our use of estimates and the related
disclosures with our audit committee.
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Revenue Recognition

The Company generates revenue by providing its solutions to meet professional, hourly and temporary staffing
needs. The Company derives its professional and hourly revenue primarily from hosting, application fees, and
maintenance fees, which fees are collectively reflected as application revenue, and secondarily from professional
implementation and consulting services, which are reflected as consulting revenue.

Our application revenue is recognized when ali of the following conditions have been satisfied: (i) there is
persuasive evidence of an agreement, (ii) delivery of services or products have been provided to the customer,
(iii) the amount of fees payable to us from our customers is fixed or determinable, and (iv) the collection of our fees
are probable. The majority of our application revenue is recognized monthly over the life of the application
agreement, based on stated, fixed-dollar amount contracts with our customers, We utilize the provisions of
Emerging Issues Task Force, or EITF, No. 00-21, “Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables™ 1o
determine whether our arrangements containing multiple deliverables contain more than one unit of accounting.
Our revenue associated with our Taleo Contingent solution is recognized based on a fixed, contracted percentage of
the dollar amount invoiced for contingent labor through use of the application, and is recorded on a net basis under
the provisions of EITF No. 93-19, “Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent” as we are not
‘the primary obligor under the arrangements, the percentage earned by us is typically fixed, and we do not take credit
risk. Our management team uses its judgment in assessing the appropriate recognition of application revenue under
the provisions of the various authoritative accounting literature.

Consulting revenue is accounted for separately from our application revenue based on our view that we have
objective evidence of the fair value of these consulting services. Our consulting engagements are typically billed on
a time and materials basis, although a number of our consulting and implementation engagements are priced on a
fixed-fee basis. For those contracts structured on a fixed fee basis, we recognize the revenue proportionally to the
performance of the services, utilizing milestones if present in the arrangement or hours incurred if milestones are
not present. Qur management uses its judgment concerning the estimation of the total costs to complete these fixed-
fee contracts, considering a number of factors including the complexity of the project, and the experience of the
personnel that are performing the services. '

Research and Development

We account for software development costs under the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards, or SFAS No. 86 “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software to be Sold, Leased or Otherwise
Marketed.” Accordingly, we capitalize certain software development costs after technological feasibility of the
product has been established. Such costs have been immaterial to date, and accordingly, no costs were capitalized
during the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Stock-based Compensation

We adopted SFAS 123R “Share-Based Payment" effective January 1, 2006. Under the provisions of
SFAS 123(R), we recognize the fair value of stock-based compensation in financial statements over the requisite
service period of the individual grants, which generally equals a four year vesting period. We have elected the
modified prospective transition method for adopting SFAS 123(R), under which the provisions of SFAS 123(R)
apply to all awards granted or modified after the date of adoption. The varecognized expense of awards not yet
vested at the date of adoption is recognized in our financial statements in the periods after the date of adoption using
the same value determined under the original provisions of SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensa-
tion,” as disclosed in previous filings. We recognize compensation expense for the stock option awards granted
subsequent to December 31, 2005 on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period, see Note 3 — Stock-
Based Compensation in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Estimates are used in determining the fair
value of such awards. Changes in these estimates could result in changes to our compensation charges.

Goodwill, Other Intangible Assets and Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” we conduct a test for the impairment
of goodwill on at least an annual basis. We adopted October 1 as the date of the annual impairment test and,
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therefore, we performed our first annual impairment test on October 1, 2004. The impairment test compares the fair
value of reporting units to their carrying amount, ircluding goodwill, to assess whether impairment is present.
Based on our most recent assessment test, we do no! have impairment as of October 1, 2006. We will assess the
impairment of goodwill annually on October 1, or sooner if other indicators of impairment arise.

SFAS 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” requires the review of the
carrying value of long-lived assets when impairment : ndicators arise. The review of these tong-lived assets is based
on factors including estimates of the future operating cash flows of our business. These future estimates are based on
historical results, adjusted to reflect our best estinates of future market and operating conditions, and are
continuously reviewed. Actual results may vary materially from our estimates, and accordingly may cause a full
impairment of our long-lived assets.

Income Taxes

We are subject to income taxes in both the Usited States and foreign jurisdictions and we use estimates in
determining our provision for income taxes. Defenred tax assets, related valuation allowances and deferred tax
lisbilities are determined separately by tax jurisdiction. This process involves estimating actual current tax
liabilities together with assessing temporary differences resulting from differing treatment of items for tax and
accounting purposes. These differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are recorded on the
balance sheet. Our deferred tax assets consist primarily of net operating loss carry forwards. We assess the
likelihood that deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income, and a valuation allowance is
recognized if it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax assets will not be recognized. At
September 30, 2006, we reversed our valuation allowance by approximately $1.1 million due to the utilization of net
operating losses against earnings in Canada and at December 31, 2006 reversed the remaining valuation allowance
of $0.2 million in Canada, since it was deemed more likely than not that these asseis would be realized. We continue
to maintain a full valuation allowance on our deferre 1 tax assets associated with U.S. and other nonCanadian foreign
operations. A portion of the remaining valuation allowance pertains to deferred tax assets established in connection
with prior acquisitions, and to the extent that this portion of the valuation allowance is reversed in the future,
goodwill will be adjusted. Although we believe that our tax estimates are reasonable, the ultimate tax determination
involves significant judgment that could become subject to audit by tax authorities in the ordinary course of
business.

Compliance with income tax regulations requires us to make decisions relating to the transfer pricing of
revenue and expenses between each of our legal entities that are Jocated in several countries. Qur determinations
include many decisions based on our knowledge of the underlying assets of the business, the legal ownership of
these assets, and the ultimate transactions conducted with customers and other third-parties. The calculation of our
tax liabilities involves dealing with uncertainties in the application of complex tax regulations in multiple tax
jurisdictions. We are periodically reviewed by domestic and foreign tax authorities regarding the amount of taxes
due. These reviews include questions regarding the timing and amount of deductions and the allocation of income
among various lax jurisdictions. In evaluating the exposure associated with various filing positions, we record
estimated reserves for probable exposures. Such «:stimates are subject to change.
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Resuits of Operations

The following tables set forth certain consolidated statements of operations data expressed as a percentage of
total revenue for the periods indicated. Period-to-period comparisons of our financial resulis are not necessarily

meaningful and you should not rely on them as an indication of future performance.

Year Ended
December 31,
006 2005 2004
Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:
Revenue:
APPLCATIoN . . . .. e 82% 81% 84%
L4 T4 18 1% 16
Total revenue. ... ... .. . e e 100 100 100
Cost of revenue (as a percent of related revenue):
Applicalion . . . ... 24 26 30
Consulting . . ... o e e e e 73 86
Total cost of revenue (as a percent of total revenue) . .................. 33 35 39
Gross profit. . .. ..o 67 65 61
Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing . . .. ... ... e e e 30 29 31
Research and development . .. ... ... ... ... ... ... .. 20 21 27
General and administrative . . . ... ... ... ... e e 22 14 12
Restructuring . . . .. .. e R
Total operating exXpenses . . ... ... ...ttt 72 65 70
Operating income (10SS). . . ... ...ttt i e e (5) — (9)
Other income (expense):
Interest INCOME . . . ... ... 3 | —
Interest @XPeNSe . . . .. e e e — & _M
Total other income (EXpense), NEL. . .. . ... .ttt i it n s e ianns 3 @ M
Net loss before provision forincome taxes . . .. .......... ..., 3) 3) Q0
Provision (benefit) forincome taxes . ... ..ot i e e —
Netloss. . ..o e (BB 3% (10)%
Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2006 and 2005
Dollar amounts in tables are shown in thousands.
Revenue
Year Ended .
December 31, ,
2006 2005 $ Change % Change |
Application revenue . ............ . ... ... . ... .. $79.137  $63,296 $15,841 25% '
Consulting revenue . . . ........ ... v, 17,906 15,114 2,792 18%
Total revenue . ... ... .. ... ... $97.043 $78410 $18,633 24%

The increase in application revenue was primarily attributable to increased sales of our applications, including
sales to new customers and additional sales to our current customers. The increase in consulting revenue was
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attributable to higher demand for services from new ad existing customers plus higher than usual billable activity
in the end of year holiday period. The prices of our soluticns and services were relatively consistent throughout the
years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 and on a period-to-period comparative basis.

The geographic mix of total revenue in the year >nded December 31, 2006 was 91.1%, 5.9% and 3.0% in the
United States, Canada and the rest of the world, respectively, as compared to 88.1%, 7.1% and 4.8%, respectively, in
the year ended December 31, 2005,

Cost of Revenue

Year Ended
December 31,
2006 2005 $ Change % Change
Application. . . ... ... e e $19,317 $16,419 $2.898 18%
Consulting . ....... i i 12,785 11,058 1,727 16%
Total costof revenue. . ...... .o ii v ... $32,102 $27477 $4.,625 17%

The cost of application revenue increase was primarily attributable to a $0.9 million increase in employee-
related costs (including $0.2 million for the impact of adopting SFAS 123(R)) and a $2.0 million increase in our
infrastructure costs relating to hardware, software znd third-party fees for our hosting facilities,

The cost of consulting revenue increase was primarily attributable to a $1.4 million increase in employee-
related costs in our consulting group resulting from «n increase in headcount (including $0.2 million for the impact
of adopting SFAS 123(R)). The remaining $0.3 million increase represented increases in general overhead expenses
relating to the increase in personnel.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Percentage

Year Ended
December 31,

2006 2005 $ Change % Change
Gross profit
Applications . . .. ........... e $59,820  $46,877 $12,943 28%
Consulting . ...... ... i 5,121 4,056 1,065 26%
Toml grossprofit. .. ... ... L oo $64.941  $50,933  $14,008 28%
Year Ended
December 31,
2006 2005 % Change
Gross profit percentage
ApPlCatiONS . ... ..t e e 76% 4% 2%
Consulting . . ... .ot e e 29% 27% 2%
Total gross profit percentage . ... .. ...ttt iinn i 67% 65% 2%

The increase in gross profit was 4 result of hi:zher application and consulting revenues and of improved gross
profit margin on those revenues for the year ended 1December 31, 2006. Gross profit margin on professional services
increased as a result of improved utilization of our consulting group. Over time, we expect that our gross profit
margin on services will trend back to the mid-twenties as rates of billability return to their historical norms. Gross
profit margin on application revenue improved 2s a result of our ability to drive greater productivity from the
headcount that supports this revenue stream. Ernployee-related costs grew by 10%, excluding the impact of
adopting SFAS 123(R), whereas revenue grew 25%. However, in the near term, we do not foresee further
improvement in the gross profit margin as we will see the full year impact of the build out of additional capacity in
our data center operations completed in mid 2006.
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-Operating expenses oo G e L e T o

Year E‘nded

December 31,
2006 2005 $ Change % Change
Sales and marketing . . ... e e e $29.482 $22,544 $ 6,938 31%
Research and development . . ... A 19,475 16,687 2,788 17%
General and administrative . . ... PP 21,113 10,725 10,388 97%
Restructuring costs and other charges .. ........... 414 - 804 {(390) (49)%

Total operating expenses . .. . .......... oouu.. 8704840 850,760 §$19,724 - 39%
Sales and Marker;ng In order to support Qur growth, we mcreased mvestment in sales and marketmg related
activities resulting in a $4.1 mtllton mcrease in employee -related costs (mcludtng salary and commissions increases
of $2 4 and $1.0 mtlllon for the 1mpact of adoptmg SFAS 123(R)) a$l? mlllton mcrease in marketing program
costs and $1.1 t,ml_llon‘ in trz_wel.expense and overhead expenses.
' " . Research and Deve!o;ﬁtnem. ~The in_c_t'ease in‘re‘sear'c'h and development consisted primarily of a $2.0 million
increase, in employee related costs (inctuding. $0.7 million for the impact of ;adopting SFAS 123(R)) and a
$0.8 million cost for overhead allecations. , .- - 3 ‘ :

‘General and Administrative: © General and admlmstratlve eXxpenses increased due to an increase in employee-
related costs of $6.8'million (including $2.3 million for the impact of adopting SFAS 123(R), $1.8 million increase
in salaries, $1.8 million témporary help, $0.8 million i mcrease in employee benefits'and $0.1 million net in other
employee related cost). In addition, we experienced an increase in- accountmg, legal and consulting fees associated
with implementing Sarbanes Oxley Act controls, turnover in staff and relocation of our finance department from
Quebec to California." .- . o,

3 -

.Restructurmg charge;v. ‘During tbe year, ended December 31, 2006, restructur_i'ng and other charges were
$0.4 million for the exit from our San Francisco facility, see Note 17 — Severance and Exit Costs. In the year ended
December 31, 2005, we recorded a charge of $0.8 million associated with workforce reduction of $0.7 million and

consolidation of excess facilities of $0.1 mllllon Allof these. amounts were pald in 2005.
Y1 .o : o Lo .-

" HER | ¢

Interest income and interest expense © .+ ' 1 i o A . -

Year Ended

. " December 31,
' D o SN g e . 2006 2005 $ Change % Change
Inferest income .. ....... st cobananr oo 82,891 .8 873 $2,018 231%
" Intetest expense ... ... 1. ... ... T o 0D (1,273) C LI66 T - (9%
Fees for early extmgutshment of debt ....... PR — (2 264) 2264 *

Total other income (expense), net...... M. ... 52,784 5(2,664)  $5,448 205%

. . . : -
Lt o v o an R SPLEL S B i . '

* not ttleaningful . .
' Interest Income.  The-increase in interest income is pnmanly attributable toa htgher cash balance throughout
2006 resultmg from IPO proceeds recewed in October 2005 B .-
- N . s o
Interest Expense by The reduction in interest expense is attnbutable to a lower debt balance throughout. 2006
compared to the prior year. In 2006, long-term debt consisted solely of capital lease obligations, whereas in the prior
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year, we had approximately $20.0 million of gros: debt outstanding with Goldman Sachs Specialty Lending Group,
including debt issuance costs, until the fourth quarter of 2005.

Provision for Income Taxes

Year Ended
December 31,

2006 2005  $ Change % Change
Provision (benefit) for income taxes . .................. $(131y %4 $(13%) 3,375%

We recorded an income tax benefit of $(0.1) million in 2006 compared to an income tax provision of $4,000 in
2005. The benefit was generated from minimal taxes payable from non-U.S. operations, a reversal of approximately
3(1.3) million of Canadian valuation allowances, and tax reserves of approximately $1.1 million associated with the
ongoing examination by the Canadian Revenue Agency relating to our Canadian subsidiary and uncertainty around
historical tax loss carryforwards benefited by our other international subsidiaries. At December 31, 2006, a full
valuation allowance has been provided against our US and non Canadian deferred tax assets, as it was deemed more
likely than not these assets would not be realizec. If, based on the operating results of 2007 and our review of the
realizability of our deferred tax assets, we were to conclude that some or all of our deferred tax asset valuation
allowance was not required, this would likely have a material impact on our financial results in the form of reduced
tax expense. However, there can be no assurance that we will achieve cumulative profitability during 2007 or that
any reduction of our deferred tax asset reserves will actually occur next year.

Compliance with income tax regulations r:quires the Company to make decistons relating to the transfer
pricing of revenues and expenses between its subsidiaries, the underlying value of the assets of the business, the
ownership of assets, and the application of available tax credits. To date, certain of the Company’s positions have
been examined by the Canada Revenue Agency (“CRA™).

CRA Examination of Tax Year 1999.  With respect to our 1999 tax year, we have undergone an examination
by CRA regarding the transfer of intellectual property to us from our Canadian subsidiary. In September 2006, we
entered into a settlement agreement with CRA with respect to this examination. The terms of the settlement require
us to make royalty payments to our Canadian su>sidiary on certain revenues from outside of Canada for tax years
2000 through 2008. The royalty payments for tie tax years 2000 through 2006 resulted in approximately CAD
$2.6 million of additional income for our Canadian subsidiary. This additional income has been fully offset by net
operating losses and carryforwards. According.y, in the year ended December 31, 2006, we have recognized
deferred tax assets in an amount to offset this assessment. Based on expected revenues subject to the royalty
payment obligation, we currently project royaly payments for tax years 2007 and 2008 to approximate CAD
$4.0 million for our Canadian subsidiary, althou zh the amount will vary depending on our financial performance.
Accordingly, we have not adjusted our deferred tax assets for future utilization of net operating losses and
carryforwards to account for this potential asseisment because of the uncertainty around realization.

CRA Examination of Tax Years 2000 and 2001. In April 2006, CRA proposed an additional increase to
taxable income forour Canadian subsidiary of approximately CAD $5.3 miilion in respect of our 2000 and 2001 tax
years, which consists of CAD $2.3 million reliting to income and expense allocations and CAD $3.0 million
relating to our treatment of Quebec investment tax credits. We disagree with these 2000 and 2001 proposed
adjustments and intend to contest these matters through applicable CRA and judicial procedures, as appropriate.
Accordingly, in the three month period ended Diecember 31, 2006, we have recognized deferred tax assets in an
amount determined to be both probable and estimable. In December 2006, we provided CRA with our settlement
proposal with respect to the 2000 and 2001 tax years. We have not formerly received a response from CRA on our
proposal.

CRA Examination Impact to Future Tax Years. The CRA issue relating to the treatment of the Quebec
investment tax credit in tax years 2000 and 2031 will have bearing on the tax treatment applied in subsequent
periods that are not currently under examination. If the CRA renders an unfavorable opinion for tax years 2000 and
2001, such adjustments could have a materiat iinpact on tax years after 2001. We estimate the potential range of
additional income subject to Canadian income tax for tax years 2000 through 2006 as a result of the Quebec
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investment tax credit to be between CAD $1.0 and $17.0 million, including CRA’s proposed assessment of CAD
$3.0 million for the 2000 and 2001 tax years, as discussed above. -

Availability of Deferred Tax Assets. The CRA has indicated it will make an assessment and apply available
deferred tax assets at the conclusion of the examinations described above. As of December 31, 2006, we have
projected approximately CAD $1.5 million of available deferred tax assets to reduce income adjustments from the
1999 settlement for tax years 2007 and 2008, future operating income and any further settlement negotiations with
CRA. In the event any of these amounts either individually or collectively exceed CAD $1.5 million, our Canadian
subsidiary will not have sufficient net operating losses and carryforwards to offset the additional income and would
incur a Canadian tax liability which could be material. As a result of these adjustments, we expect to pay taxes in
Canada in 2007 in addition to any tax liability for prior periods. In addition, we may be subject to penalties and
interest on any Canadian tax liability for the 2000 tax year and beyond. Any such penalties or interest cannot be
reasonably estimated at this time.

If sufficient evidence becomes available allowing us to more accurately estimate a probable income tax
liability for income adjustments from the 1999 settlement for tax years 2007 and 2008 and the CRA’s examination
of our treatment of Quebec investment tax credits, we will apply net operating losses and carryforwards to the extent
available and reserve against any remaining balances due by recording additional income tax expense in the period
the liability becomes estimable. We are seeking United States tax treaty relief through the appropriate Competent
Authority tribunals for the settlement entered into with CRA with respect to the CRA’s examination of the 1999 tax
year, and we will seek United States tax treaty relief for all subsequent final settlements entered into with CRA.

Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

Dollar amounts in tables are shown in thousands.

Revenue
Year Ended
December 31,
2008 2004 $ Change % Change
Application revenue .. ... ... oo $63,296 $49,010 $14,286 20%
Consulting revenue . .. .......... ot nians.. 15,114 9,640 5,474 57%
Total TEVENUE . . .\ ottt e et it et et e $78,410 $58,650 $19,760 34%

The increase in application revenue was attributable to increased sales of our applications, including sales to
new customers and additional sales to our current customers. The increase in consulting revenue was attributable to
higher demand for services from new and existing customers. The prices of our solutions and services were
relatively consistent throughout the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 and on a period-to-period com-
parative basis.

The geographic mix of total revenue in the year ended December 31, 2005, 88.1%, 7.1% and 4.8% in the
United States, Canada and the rest of the world, respectively, as compared to 85.3%, 9.0% and 5.7%. respectively, in
the year ended December 31, 2004.

Cost of Revenue

Year Ended
December 31,
2005 2004 $ Change % Change
Application. . . .. ... ... e $16,419  $14,627  $1,792 12%
Consulting . . ...t i 11,058 8,276 2,782 34%
Total cost OF TEVENUE . . .. o oo e e i v i aene s $27.477  $22903 $4,574 20%




The cost of application revenue increase was primarily attributable to a $0.5 million increase in employee-
related costs and a $1.3 million increase in our infrastructure costs relating to hardware, software and third-party
fees for our hosting facilities.

The cost of counsulting revenue increase wau primarily attributable to a $1.5 million increase in employee-
related costs in our consulting group resulting Itom an increase in headcount, a reduction of $0.4 million in
consulting costs cross charged to product developinent, an increase of $0.4 million in billable expenses, an increase
of $0.2 million for travel expenses and an increas: of $0.2 million for overheads required to support the increased
staff, all as compared to the prior year period.

Gross Profit
Year Ended
December 31,
2005 2004 $ Change % Change
Gross profit
Applications . .. ... ... .. . . i $46,877  $34,383  $12,494 36%
Consulting . . ........... ... ... ..... P 4,056 1,364 2,692 197%
Total gross profit. . ................ AU $50,933  $35,747 $15,186 42%
Year Ended
. December 31,
2005 2004 % Change
Gross profit percentage
Applications . ... ... ... .. T4% 0% 4%
Consulting . . ... .. e e 27% 14% 13%
Total gross profit percentage . ... ... ... . . et C65% 61% 4%

Eighty-two percent of the increase in gross p.ofit was attributable to the increase in gross profit on application
revenue with the remaining 18% attributable to the increase in gross profit on consulting revenue. The increase in
gross profit was a result of higher application and .:onsulting revenues and of improved gross profit margin on those
revenues for the year ended December 31, 2005. Gross profit margin on professional services increased as a result of
improved utilization of our consulting group. Gross profit margin on application revenue improved as a result of
reduced incremental costs associated with revenne growth.

Operating expenses

Years Ended
December 31,
2005 2004 $ Change % Change
Sales and marketing . . ................... ..... $22,544 318,153 $4,391 24%
Research and development . ... .. e e 16,687 15,932 755 5%
General and administrative . .................... 10,725 7.096 3,629 51%
Restructuring costs and other charges ............. 804 — 804 *
Total operating eXpenses . . . .. .........ouo... $50,760  $41,181  $9,579 23%

* not meaningful

Sales and Marketing. In order to support our growth, we increased investment in sales and marketing related
activities resulting in a $3.2 million increase in eraployee-related costs (including $0.6 million in costs attributable
to the transfer of account management responuibilities associated with our application services to sales and
marketing from cost of revenues), and a $1.1 m llion increase in marketing program costs.
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Research and Development.  The increase in research and development consisted primarily of a $0.6 million
increase in employee related costs and $0.2 million cost for overhead allocations. The increase in expenses was also
impacted by the U.S. dollar weakening against the Canadian dollar by approximately 7% during 2005 as compared
to the prior year, since most of our research and development employees are located in Canada. As a percentage of
total revenue, research and development costs declined as a result of a lower growth rate for these expenses relative
to revenue growth, all measured in dollars.

General and Administrative. The increase in general and administrative was mainly due to an increase in
employee-related costs of $2.5 million which included severance and $0.4 million in expense related to warrants granted
to an executive search firm following the hiring of our new president and chief executive officer. In addition, we
experienced an increase in accounting, legal and consulting fees associated with operating as a public company of
$0.5 million and an increase in travel and entertainment expense of $0.2 million. Foreign currency loss was $0.4 million
in the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to income of $0.1 million in the year ended December 31, 2004. The loss
in 2005 is primarily due to the revatuation and subsequent realization upon settlement of a higher significant
intercompany balance between our Canadian subsidiary and the U.S. parent. This balance was affected by devaluation
of the U.S. dollar against the Canadian dollar by 7% for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Restructuring charges. During the year ended December 31, 2005, management approved restructuring
plans to align our cost structure with market conditions and to create a more efficient organization. In connection
with these plans, we recorded a charge of $0.8 million during the year ended December 31, 2005. This charge
included costs associated with workforce reduction of $0.7 million and consolidation of excess facilities of
$0.1 million. All of these amounts were paid in 2005. Adjustments to the restructuring reserves will be made in
future periods, if necessary, based upon actual events and circumstances at the time. Workforce reduction charges
include the cost of severance and related benefits of employees affected by the restructuring activities. Excess
facility costs represent lease termination payments, net of expected sublease revenue, and other costs related to the
closure of certain corporate facilities and sales offices. Certain leasehold improvements located at the closed
facilities and computer equipment and software licenses were determined to be impaired as a result of the
restructuring activities and were written down to estimated recoverable value, net of estimated disposal costs.
Changes in the restructuring reserve are as follows:

Severance and benefits. During the year ended December 31, 2005, we recorded charges of approx-
imately $0.7 million related to severance benefits to terminated employees in North America. During the year
ended December 31, 2005, we terminated approximately 35 employees in these regions.

Excess facilities/asset impairments. During the year ended December 31, 2005, we recorded charges of
approximately $68,000 related to the consolidation of two corporate facilities. The estimated cost to exit the
facilities is based on remaining lease commitment payments, net of expected sublease income. The charge may
be adjusted in future periods if further consolidations are required or if sublease income is different from our
estimate.

Interest income and interest expense

Year Ended
December 31, '
2005 2004 $ Change % Change
Interest iNCOME. . . ..o vvvernn... RN $ 873 $101 $ 772 764%
[MMErest EXPENSE . . . ot vt e e e i e ias s (1,273) (404) (869) 215%
Fees for early extinguishment of debt_ ............... (2,264) — (2,264) *
Total other income (expense), net ................ $2,664)  $(303) $(2,361) T79%

* not meaningful

Interest Income. Interest income consisted of interest received on deposits of cash and investments with
financial institutions. The increase in interest income in 2003 is primarily attributable to interest on the net proceeds
from the closing of our initial public offering which closed October 4, 2003.
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Interest Expense The increase in interest experse for the vear ended December 31, 2005 is related to the
$1.6 million in prepayment penalties and $0.7 million in the write-off of unamortized deferred financing costs on
our term loan with Goldman Sachs, as discussed in Liquidity and Capital Resources below. The balance of the
increase is related to the interest on the $20.0 million term loan with Goldman which closed on April 25, 2005 and
was repaid October 5, 2005.

Provision (benefit} for Income Taxes

Year Ended
December 31,

2005 2004 $ Change % Change

Provision (benefit) for income taxes.................... $4  $(1D 315 *

* not meaningful

We recorded a provision for income taxes of $4,000 in 2005. The provision relates to foreign income taxes
currently payable on income gencrated in international locations. In 2004, our tax provision consisted of a small
income tax benefit, which we recorded as a result of changes in our prior year state and foreign income tax
estimates. At December 31, 2003, a full valuation allo'vance has been provided on our deferred tax assets associated
with our US and foreign operations, since it was deeined more likely than not these assets would not be realized.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

From inception through December 31, 2006, we have incurred aggregate net losses of $42.5 million. Until the
vear ended December 31, 2006, we funded these losses primarily through proceeds raised from the sale of our
capital stock and from debt financing activities. In 2006, we had positive net operating cash flow of $9.3 million.

Our principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents totaling $58.8 million, accounts receivable of
$26.0 million, investment credits receivable of $4.4 million and operating cash flows of $9.3 million. In addition, we
have $1.2 million in resiricted cash that is a security di:posit for our outstanding debt, $0.8 million related to escrow
funds and $1.7 million related to deposits incorrectly received from a customer of cur Taleo Contingent product that
were returned on January 4, 2007.

We believe that our liquidity and capital resource s are sufficient to fund our operations beyond the next twelve
months. However, given our history of losses, we may be required to raise additional equity or debt financing if we
are not able to achieve and sustain profitability.

Year Ended
December 31,
2006 2005 $ Change % Change
Cash provided by (used in) by operating activities... $ 9262 $ (875) $ 10,137 1,159%
Cash used in investing activities .. ... ........... (12,059) (8,457) (3,602) 43%
Cash provided by financing activities . ........... 2,388 63,041 (60,653) (96)%
. Year Ended
December 31,
2008 2004 $ Change % Change
Cash used in provided by operating activities. ... .. .. $ (875) $(8.538) $ 7.663 0%
Cash used in investing activities. . ................ (8,457 (3,571 {4,880) {136)%
Cash provided by (used in) financing activities. ... ... 63,041 (194) 63,235 *

* not meaningful

Net Cash Provided by/Used in Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities of $9.3 million in the year ended December 31, 2006, compares to net
cash used in operating activities of $1.0 million in the year ended December 31, 2005. The increase in cash provided
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by operating activities includes a $1.1 million increase related to a one-time tenant inducement that we received
from the landlord of our Dublin California facilities upon completion of certain tenant improvements.

In addition, our stock-based compensation expense was $4.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2006
compared to $385 for the year ended December 31, 2005. We do expect to continue to incur stock based
compensation expense. Additionally, the increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities, of $5.8 million for
20086, resulied (rom slower than normal payments to vendors and an increase in accruals related to employee related
benefits and accruals for professional fees. '

A significant item impacting our net cash provided by/used in operating activities is accounts receivable, net of
allowances, which increased by $11.1 million in 2006. Our accounts receivable balance fluctuates from period to
period, depending on the timing of sales and billing activity, cash collections, and changes to our allowance for
doubtful accounts. We use days sales outstanding, or DSO, calculated on a quarterly basis, as a measurement of the
quality and status of our receivables. We define DSO as (a} accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful
accounts, divided by total revenue for the most recent quarter, multiplied by (b) the number of days in that quarter.
DSO was 90 days at December 31, 2006, compared to 66 days at December 31, 2005. The increase was primarily
attributable to slower than normal collections. DSO was 91 days at December 31, 2004. The decrease in DSO from
December 31, 2005 as compared to December 31, 2004 reflects the impact of our collection efforts resulting in
higher cash collections in 2003.

Another significant item in determining our net cash provided by/used in operating activitics is our deferred
revenue. We record deferred revenue in connection with the invoicing related to the sale of our applications. Our
total deferred revenue increased in 2006 by $7.6 million as a result of customers paying the Company cash prior to
receiving services from the Company. Deferred revenue decreased in 2005 as compared to 2004 as a result of a
delay in billing activities until after December 31, 2005, which delayed our ability to recognize deferred revenue
related to certain invoices until January 2006. Included in net cash used in operating activities in fiscal 2004 was
$6.7 million paid by customers in advance of receiving services from the Company. These payments increased our
liquidity and reduced our need for external funding.

We participate in a special government program in Quebec that provides investment credits based upon
qualifying research and development expenditures including capital equipment purchases, We have participated in
the program for six years, and we expect that we will continue to be eligible to earn these investment credits through
September 2008 when the program is scheduled to end. Investment credit receivables under this program decreased
by $0.6 million due to an increase in collections from the prior year. In 2005, Investment credit receivable balance
increased to $4.9 million in 2005 from $2.8 million in 2004. Thls increase was a result of the timing of receipts from
the government of Quebec.

Cash provided by, or used in, operating activities is driven by sales of our applications. The timing of our
billings and collections relating to the sales of our applications and consulting services is a significant component of
our cash flows from operations, as are the level of the deferred revenue on these sales. Additionally, cash from
operations will continue to be affected significantly by stock based compensation expense, and depreciation and
amortization of fixed assets and intangibles.

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities increased to $12.1 million in 2006 primarily due to capital expenditures
related to our data center, relocation of our corporate offices and implementation of a new general accounting
system,

The increase in net cash used for investing in 2005 was primarily comprised of an increase of $1.4 million in
restricted cash as a result of our financing activities and $3.9 million net cash used for the acquisition of
Recruitforce. These were offset by a decline of $0.2 million in capital expenditures versus the prior year.

We expect to incur capital expenditures in 2007 of approximately $2.0 million and antlclpate that these
expenditures will be paid using ex1st1ng working capital. :

.
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Net Cash Provided by/ Used in Financing Activities

In 2006, net cash provided by financing activities was $2.4 million and this is primarily the result of
$3.0 million in proceeds received from the exercise of stock oplions, warrant and contributions to the Employee
Stock Purchase plan, offset by $0.6 million of payments related to capital lease obligations. Net cash provided by
financing activities is less than in the year ended December 31, 2005 due to the timing of our IPQ in the fourth
quarter of 2005 and the $68.2 million of net proceeds received.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $63.0 million in the year ended December 31, 2005, compared to
net cash used in financing activities of $0.2 million in the year ended December 31, 2004. The change resulted
mainly from the $68.2 million of net proceeds from the initial public offering of our common stock completed in
October 2005, net of amounts received and subsequently repaid to Goldman Sachs and to National Bank of Canada.

We had historically maintained a financing arrangement with National Bank of Canada. This agreement had
been in place since 1999, as renewed and amended. and we were not in compliance with this agreement as of
December 31, 2004. In January and March 2005, we amended our agreement with National Bank of Canada. In
April 2005, we terminated our debt arrangement with National Bank of Canada and repaid all amounts owed to
National Bank of Canada and entered into a loan agreement with Goldman Sachs. Under the $20.0 million term loan
with Goldman Sachs, which closed on April 25, 2005, we received net proceeds of approximately $15.5 million net
of deferred financing costs and the repayment of outstanding amounts to National Bank of Canada. The deferred
financing costs were amortized to interest expense over the life of the term loan. The term loan accrued interest at
LIBOR plus 6.0%, and interest payments were due monthly. A portion of the proceeds of the term loan were
restricted as to our ability to access the funds.

On October 4, 2005, we completed our initial public offering of 6,700,000 shares of common stock at a price of
$14.00 per share. We sold 5,360,000 shares in the of‘ering. Certain selling stockholders of the Company sold the
remaining 1,340,000 shares in the offering. Upon tae closing of the offering, we received net proceeds, after
deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and other offering costs, of $65.9 million. Simultaneous with
the completion of the IPQO, 69,877,241 outstanding shares of preferred stock, outstanding as of September 30, 2005,
plus 4,136,489 shares issuable under antidilution provisions converted into 12,335,598 shares of Class A Common
Stock as a result of the IPO. In addition, the holde:s of 17,879,362 Class A preferred exchangeable shares of
9090-5415 Quebec, Inc. and of 6,350,400 Class B preferred exchangeable shares of 9090-5415 Quebec Inc. may
elect, or the Company may require them to exchang: their exchangeable shares for 4,038,287 shares of Class A
Common Stock at any time. No such shares were ex:hanged during 2005. Also upon completion of the IPO, the
Company issued 841,124 shares of Class A common stock in lieu of payment of accrued dividends on our
outstanding preferred stock based on the initial public: offering price of $14.00 share. The amount paid in cash for
accrued dividends was $222,556. :

On October 3, 2005, following completion of its initial public offering and pursuant to the terms of the
Company’s credit agreement with Goldman Sachs, the Company made cash payments for outstanding principal and
prepayment fees in the amount of $20.6 million. We he d no further borrowing capabilities with Goldman Sachs as of
December 31, 2005.

We had $0.4 million outstanding as of Decemter 31, 2006 under capital leases from other unrelated third
parties. These are subject to interest rates ranging from 6.00% to [5.89% and mature at varying dates through 2008.

We do not participate in transactions that involve unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships, such as
entities often referred to as structured finance or spzcial purpose entities, which have been established for the
purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements or other contractually narrow or limited purposes. Excluding
operating leases for office space, computer equipment, and third party facilities that host our applications, that are
described below, we do not engage in off-balance st eet financing arrangements.
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Contractual Obligations

We generally do not enter into long-term minimum purchase ‘commitments. Our principal commitments,
which are not included in our debt agreements discussed above, consist of obligations under leases for office space,
operating leases for computer equipment and to a lesser extent for third-party facilities that host our applicatigns.
The following table summarizes our commitments to settle contractual obligations in cash under operating leases
and other purchase obligations, as of December 31, 2006: ' ' ) ‘

Contractual obligations (in thousands) o o
Less Than More Than

Total 1 Year 1-2 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Capital lease obligations ............. $ 398 % 381 $ 17 5 - $ —
In_terestpayments................f. g g e — —
Facility leases(1). ... ............... 8101 2,329 2437 2879 436
Operating equipment leases . ... ....... 4,106 3,047 1,051 8 —
Third party hosting facilities .......... 1,449 916 . - 533 — .=
Othercontracts .. .................. 186 .- 172 e 14 — o
Total contractual cash obligations. ... ... $14,248 $6,853 $4,052 -$2,887 , $456 "

(1) Tncludes amounts associated with former headquarters facilities lease as described in I[TEM 2 — PROPERTIES.

Legal expenditures could also affect our liquidity. We are regularly subject to legal proceedings and claims that
arise in the ordinary course of business, see Note 13 — Commitments and Contingencies in our Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. Litigation may result in substantial costs and may divert management’s
attention and resources, which may seriously harm our business, financial condition, operating results and cash
flows.

We believe our existing cash and cash equivalents and cash provided by operating activities will be sufficient to
meet our working capital and capital expenditure needs for at least the next year. However, given our history of
losses, we may be required to raise additional equity or debt financing if we are not able to achieve and sustain
profitability. Additionally, our future capital requirements will depend on many factors, including our rate of
revenue growth, the expansion of our sales and marketing activities, the timing and extent of spending to support
product development efforts and expansion into new territories, the timing of introductions of new applications and
enhancements to existing applications, and the continuing market acceptance of our applications. To the extent that
existing cash and cash equivalents, and cash from operations, are insufficient to fund our future activities, we may
need to raise additional funds through public or private equity or debt financing. Although we are currently not &
party to any agreement or letter of intent with respect to potential investments in, or acquisitions of, complementary
businesses, applications or technologies, we may enter into these types of arrangements in the future, which could
also require us to seek additional equity or debt financing. Additional funds may not be available on terms favorable
to us or at all.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

Our revenue is generally denominated in the local currency of the contracting party. The majority of our
revenue is denominated in U.S. dollars. In the year ended December 31, 2006, 5.9% and 3.0%, respectively, of our
revenue, was denoininated in Canadian dollars and currencies other than the U.S. or Canadian dollar. Our expenses
are generally denominated in the currencies in which our operations are located. Our expenses are incurred
primarily in the United States and Canada, including the expenses associated with our research and development
operations that are maintained in Canada, with a small portion of expenses incurred outside of North America where
our other international sales offices are located. We maintained $0.1 million of debt related to capital leases
denominated in Canadian dollars as of December 31, 2006. Our results of operations and cash flows are therefore
subject to fluctuations due to changes in foreign currency exchange rates, particularly changes in the Canadian
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dollar, and to a lesser extent, to the Australian dollar, British pound sterling, Euro, Singapore dollar and
New Zealand dollar, in which certain of our customer contracts are denominated. For the year ended December 31,
2006, the U.S. dollar weakened by approximately 7% against the Canadian dollar on an average basis compared to
the same peried in the prior year. This change in v.ilue decreased our earnings by $1.4 million which was comprised
of increased revenue of $0.4 million, offset by $0.6 million of additional cost of sales and $1.2 million of
incremental operating expenses. If the U.S. dollar continues to weaken compared to the Canadian dollar, our
operating results may suffer. We do not currently enter into forward exchange contracts to hedge exposure
denominated in foreign currencies or any derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. In the
future, we may consider entering into hedging transactions to help mitigate our foreign currency exchange risk.

Interest Rate Sensitivity

We had cash and cash equivalents of $58.8 rnillion at December 31, 2006. This compares to $59.3 millicn at
December 31, 2005, These amounts were held primarily in cash or money market funds, Cash and cash equivalents
are held for working capital purposes, and restricted cash amounts are held as security against various lease
obligations. We do not enter into investments for trading or speculative purposes. Due to the short-term nature of
these investments, we believe that we do not have any material exposure to changes in the fair value of our
investment portfolio as a result of changes in interest rates. Declines in interest rates, however, will reduce future
interest income.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Taleo Corporation
Dublin, California

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Taleo Corporation and subsidiaries (the
“Company™) as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stock-
holders’ equity (deficit) and comprehensive loss, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 3t, 2006. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company at December 31, 2006 and 2003, and the resuits of its operations and its cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with accounting principles generatly
accepted in the United States of America.

As described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123(R), “Share Based Payment,” effective Janvary 1, 20006,

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2006, based on the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our repert dated March 16, 2007 expressed an
ungualified opinion on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over
financial reporting and an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

San Jose, California
March 16, 2007
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockhelders of
Taleo Corporation
Dublin, California

We have audited management’s assessment, incladed in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting, that Taleo Corporition and subsidiaries (the “Company™) maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of Dec:mber 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Com-
mission. The Company’s management is responsib e for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internat control over financial reporting. Qur responsibility is
to express an opinion on management’s assessment aid an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the s:andards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plar and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial report ng was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

-A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the
company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and
effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and th: preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1} pertiin to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessarv to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of
coltusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be
prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projuctions of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal
control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria established
in Internal Control — Imtegrated Framework issucd by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on the criteria established in Internal Conrrol —
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the siandards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated financial statemeits as of and for the year ended December 31, 2006, of the
Company and our report dated March 16, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements and
includes an explanatory paragraph regarding the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 123(R), “Share Based Payment,” effective Janrary 1, 2006.

/sf Deloitte & Touche LLP

San Jose, California
March 16, 2007
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of Taleo is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15(d)-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Our internal
control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. Internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

* pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of Taleo;

* provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of Taleo are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of Taleo; and

+ provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of Taleo’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions and that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may change over time.

Management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2006. In making this assessment, our management used the criteria set forth in Internal Control-Integrated
Framework issuzd by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ).

Based on our assessment of internal controls over financial reporting, management has concluded that, as of
December 31, 2006 our internal control over financial reporting was effective to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Our assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006 has been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting
firm, as stated in their report which appears on page 52.

s/ _Michael Gregoire fs/ _Katy Murray
Michael Gregoire Katy Murray
President and Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
March 16, 2007 March 16, 2007
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TALEO CCORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents .. ... .. ... it i i e
Restricted cash . .. vt it i i i e e e e e e e e
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accovnts of $585 and $350 at

December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively . .. ... ... Lo
Prepaid expenses and other current assets. . . ... ... ... L L L
Investment credit receivable . . .. .. .. .. e e e

Total CUITENE ASSEIS . v v v v v v h et e e et s et me e e e e et e et m e

Property and equipment, net. . . .. .. .. L e
Restricted CaSh. . .. oo it i e e e e e e
01111 T
GoodWill .« . . e e e e e e e e e
Other intangibles, met . . .. .. . L e

Total AS5LS . . . o it it e e e e e e e e

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Current labilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ...... ... . ... ... o o i il
Contingent shares issuable . . ... ... ... . i e
CUStOMET dePOSITS . & . vt e e e e e
Deferred TEVENUE. . . . .. vttt e e i e e
Capital lease obligation, short-term . . .. ... ... ... . i e

Total corrent Habilities . . . ... ot i e i e e e e

Non-current liabilities:

Customer deposits and long-term deferred revenue .. ... .. ... .. oo L

Other Habilities . . . . ... oo i e e

Capital lease obligation, long-term . ......... ... ot

Commitments and contingencies (Note 13)

Class B redeemable common stock, $0.00001 par value, 24,229,762 shares authorized;

1,873,811 and 4,038,287 shares outstanding at Cecember 31, 2006 and December 31,
2005, respectively . . . ... e e e

Total liabilities . . .. ... ... i i e
Exchangeable share obligation . ...... ... .. .. .. . .

Stockholders’ equity:

Class A common stock; par value, $0.00001 per sharz; 250,000,000 shares authorized;
22,253,127 and 18,755,071 shares outstanding at Dlecember 31, 2006 and December 31,
2008, tespectively .. ... e e

Additional paid-incapital . . . ... ... L e

Accumulated deficit. . . .. .. oL L

Deferred cOmMpensation . ... .. .. ...t it s

Treasury stock, at cost, 14,413 and 0 shares outstanding at December 31, 2006 and
December 31, 2005, respectively . . . . ..ottt e e e

Accumulated other comprehensive income . . ... ... ... L i oo i i e e

Total stockholders’ equity . .. ... i e e

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity .. ... .. ... . i e

December 31,

2006

25,952
3,657
4,395

95,511

12,928
1,048
1,448
6,028

457

$117,420

$ 18,708
80
18,547
381

37,716

360
1,101
17

39,194
796

133,610
(56,329)

(158)
307

77,430
$117,420

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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2005

(In thousands, except share data)

$ 59,346
1,110

15,026
3,010
4,944

83,436

1,129
936
283

5,947

1,289

$ 99,020

$ 13,063
81

342
10,870
583

24,939

114
155
399

25,607
1,715

. 124,947

(53,701)
21

473
71,698
3 99.020




TALEO CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
{1n thousands, except per share data)
Revenue:
AppHCALION . . .o vt $79,137  $63,296 § 49,010
ConsUlting . ...\ttt i e e 17,906 15,114 9,640
TOAL TEVEIIIE. + . v v v v v e e et e e e bt et et na s e eanenn e 97,043 78410 58,650
Cost of revenue:
Application . .. ... e 19,317 16,419 14,627
COMSUILING . ..ottt et e e et e 12,785 11,058 8.276
Total cost of reVENUE . . . .. ... ittt e 32,102 27,477 22,903
Gross profit . ... .o e 64,941 50,933 35,747
Operating expenses: .
Sales and Marketing . . ... .ottt i e 29,482 22,544 18,153
Research and development. . ... .. ... . it 19,475 16,687 15,932
General and administrative . ... ... . i i i e e e e 21,113 10,725 7,096
Restructuring costs and other charges. .. .......... ... . ... ...t 414 304 —
Total Operating eXpenses . ... .. ...t nr e rmcarnn s 70,484 50,760 41,181
Operating income (lOSS) ... ..ot e (5,543) 173 (5,434)
Other income {expense):
TNEEEESE INCOMIE « - o v o vttt e e e e e e e e e e e et ne e e - 2,891 873 101
INEEreSt EXPENSE. - . oo v i et e e (107) (1,273) (404)
Fees for early extinguishmentof debt. .. .............. ... ... .... — (2,264) —
Total other income (expense), net. ... .. e 2,784 (2,604) (303)
Net loss before provision for income taxes. ... ................ ... .. (2,759) (2,491) (5,737)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes ... ......... .. ... .. i, {131) 4 (11)
Nt JOSS « o oo e e e e e e e (2,628) (2,495) (5,726)
Accretion of dividends and issuance costs on preferred stock .. .......... — (2,984) (3,299
Net loss attributable to Class A common stockholders . ................ $(2,628) $(5479 $ (9,025
Net loss attributable to Class A common stockholders per share — basic and ‘
diluted .. .. e e e $ (0.13) $ (1.19) $(161.16)
Weighted-average Class A Common Shares:
Basic and diluted. . ... . ... . 20,031 4,619 56

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TALEO CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMEMNTS OF STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY
Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004

_Common Stock 4 4, jipjqmat Other Total Comprehensive
Par  Piid-In-  ‘Treasury Deferred Accumm Income Stockholder’s {Loss)
Shares  Value _Capital Stock Comp  Deficit  (Loss) Equity Income
(In thousands, except share data)
Balances, December 31,2003 . .. ........ 35907 — 0§ 4671 § — $(283)  $(39.197) $ 1382 $(34.427 $ B9
Employee stock options exercised. . . .. .. .. 30020 — 107 — — — — 107 —
Cashless exercise of warrants . ... ....... 1388 — — — — — — — —
Wacrants issued for professional services . . . . - - 93 — — — — 93 —
Modification of warrants in connection with
liigation , . . ................... - - 217 — — — — 217
Forfeiture of Series [ Preferred Stock
Options . . ..................... — - (49) — 55 — — & —
Amertization of deferred compensation . . . . . —_ = — — 191 — — 191 —
Accrued dividend on Series C and Series D
Preferred Stock . ... ... ... .. L. —_— — — — {3,007y — (3.007) —
Accrual of issuance costs of Series C Preferred
Stock ... —_ - — — — {292) — (292) —
Netloss .. ... oo .. — — — — (5,726) (5,726) $(5.726)
Foreign currency transbation adjustments. . . . . - = _ = _ = e —_ ..(.!ég) (158) (158)
Balances, December 31,2004 . ... ..... .. 67415 — 5039 — 37 @8y M {42,996) $(5,884)
Employee stock options exercised. . .. .. ... 148,351 — 490 — — — — 490 —
-Warranisexercised . . . ... ... ... ... 2584 — g — — — — g —
Conversion of preferred shares inte common
shares at initial public offering . . . ... ... 12,335597 — 41,399 — — — — 41,399 —
Issuance of common shares in liee of cash
payment of accreted dividends on preferred
shares at initial public offering . .. ... ... 841,124 — 11,776 — — — — 11,776 —
Initial public offering (net of costs) . . .. . ... 5360000 — 65,881 — — - — 65.881 -
Stock based compensation ... ... ... .. .. - - 372 — — — — iz —
Forfeiture of Series D Preferred Stock options
and conzingent shares issuable as acquisition
considerakion. . .. .. ... .. ... .. ..., - - (18} — 3 — — 15) —
Amortization of deferred compensation . . . . . - — s — 13 — - 13 —
Accrued dividend on Series C and Series D
Preferred Stock .. .......... ..., .. - - — — — . {2412) — (2.412) —_
Accrual of issuance costs of Series C Preferred
Stock . .. - - — — — (572} — (572) —
Netloss . ........ .. ... .. ... —_ - — — — (2.495), — (2495) $(2.495)
Foreign currency translation adjustments. . . . . — - _ = = — 249 249 245
Balances, December 31,2005 ... ... .. ... 18,755071 — 124,947 — 1) (53,701} 4713 71,698 §(2,246)
Employee stock options exercised. . . . ... .. 917918 — 2,355 2,355
Issuance of ESPP shares . .. .. ... ...... 64,513 — 616 — — — — 616 —
Warrants exercised . . .. ... ... L. 53801 — ] — — — — 1 —
Shares issued to former stockholders of White
Amber. . ... 30,753 — 162 — — — — 162 —
Class B Common stock exchanged for Class A
CommonStock . ................. 2,164.476 961 961
Shares acquired from payroll fax payments . . . (14413) — e (158) — — — (158) —
Restricied shares reacquired or forfeited . . . . . (9.063) — — — — — - — —_
Issuance of Restricted shares. . . ... ... ... 290071 — 82 — — —_- = 82 —_
Reversal of deferred compensation due to ’
adoption of SFAS 123{R} . .. ......... - - [¥3))] — il — — — —
IPOrelatedcost . .................. - — 3 — — — — 3 —
Stock based compensation . . . ....... ... - - 4,504 — — - — 4,504 —
NetIoss . oo v e ee e — - — — — (2,628) - (2.528) $(2,628)
Foreign currency translation adjusiments. . . . . - = . i = — ({166) (166} (166)
Balances, December 31,2006 .. ... ...... 22,253,121 — 8133610 §(158) % —  §(56.329) 5307 $ 77430 8(2,794)
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TALEO CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Netloss............. e e e
Adjustments to rzconcile net loss to net cash (used in) provided by operating aclivities:
Depreciation and amortization . .. ... ... L e
Loss on disposal of fixed a85€ts . . ... . i e e e
Tenant inducement from landlord . . . ... ... L
Amortization of tenant inducements . ....... ... . e
Stock-based compensation expense . . ... ... ... ..., e
Director fees settled with stock. . . ... .. .. .. L Ll
Baddebtexpense. . ... ... i e
Adjustment togoodwill. . . ... ... . . L L
Amortization and write-off of deferred financing fees. .. .. ... . ... ... ... .
Changes in working capital accounts:
Interest earnad onrestricted cash. . . . .. .. ... ... .. . L
Accounts Teceivable . . ... e
Prepaid expenses and other assets . .. .. ... ... ... ... .. L
Investment credil receivable . . ... ... ..
Accounts payable and accrued Habilities . . . . ... ... ... . e
Deferred revenues and customer deposits. . . . ... ... i e

Net cash provided (used in) by operating activities . .. ......................

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of property and eqUIPMENL . . . . . . .. e e

Restricted cash — decrease (INCrease) . . . . ... ..ottt ittt it et et e e e, .
Acquisition of business, netof cashacquired . ... ... ... ... . . o o .

Net cash used in investing aclivilies . . .. ... . i it i ettt i

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from long-termdebt . ... ... ... ... ... ... T
Principal payments of long-termdebt . . . ... ... .. e
Principal payments on capital lease obligations. . . .. ... .. e
Debt ISSUance COSIS . . . oottt e e s
Offering costs. .. oot e e e
Proceeds from stock options, ESPP Shares and warrants exercised . . ... ...............
Proceeds from initial public offering of common stock, net of offering costs .. ...........
Dividends paid on preferred stock (Note 9 — Preferred Stock) . . ... ... ... . ... ....

Net cash provided by (used in} financing activities . .. ............ ... ... ...
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents . .. .....................

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . ......... ... ..... ... .. ... .. ...
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year . .. .. . L e

Endof year . . ... ...

Supplemental cash flow disclosures:
Cashpaid forimterast. . .. ... ... .. ... .. e

Cash paid for loan prepayment penalties . ... ...... ... .. i

Cash paid forincome taxes. . .. ... .. .. .. ... s

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash financing and investing activities:
Property and equipment acquired under capital lease . . ... ... ... ... ... L
Property and equipment purchases included in accounts payabl: and accrued liabilities . . . . . .
Accrual of dividends on Series C and Series D Preferred Stock . . ... ... ... ... R
Amortization of issuance costs on Series C Preferred Stock . .. .......... ... .. ... ...
Conversion of preferred shares into common shares at initial public offering . . ... ..... ...
Issuance of common shares in licu of cash payment of accrued dividends on preferred shares
at initial public offering . . .. .. ... L
Offering costs included inaccounts payable .. . ... ... ... .. . . . e
Contingent shares issuable . .. ... ... .. ... .. ... ........ T
Contingent shares issued. . . . .. .. .. L e
Class B common stock exchanged for Class Acommon stock. . . ... ... ... ...
Treasury stock acquired to settle payroll taxes .. ........... ... ..o o oo

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands)
$(2,628) $ (2,495 § (5,726}
4,789 4,853 4,388

390 190 97
1,063 9N -
(266) —_ —
4,504 385 501
82 —— —
254 225 100
— — 73
—_ 822 —
2 43 —_
(11,134) 2I1) (6417
(1,793) (1,480} (381)
563 (2,147) (452)
5,808 1,642 (7,394)
7,628 (2,605) 6,673
9,262 (875) (8.538)
(10,335) (3,222) - (3,382)
(1,724) (1,382} (195)
— (3,853) —
(12,059) (8,457 (3,577)
— 20,230 7.575
— {24,298) (5,542)
(583) (535) (331
— (822) —
— — (2,003)
2,971 498 107
— 68,191 —_
— {223) —
2,388 63,041 {194)
(152) {136) (112)
(561) 53,573 {12,421
59,346 5773 18,194
$58,785 §59346 § 5773
$ 41 § 1027 § 303
h) — $ 1570 % —_
$ - § — 76
$ — 8 T3 9%
$ 58 $ 836 % —_
$ — % 2,189 § 3007
$ — 5 572 § 292
$ — $41399 § —
5 — %1176 % —
8 — $. 308 3 —
$ 81 3 81 % —_
$ 162 § — 3
$ 961 S — & —_
$ 158 § —  $




TALEO CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1, Nature of Business and Basis of Presentation

Nature of Business — Taleo Corporation and its subsidiaries (the “Company™) provides on demand talent
management solutions that enable organizations of all sizes to establish, automate and manage their worldwide
staffing processes for professional, hourly and temporary staff. The Company’s software applications are offered to
customers primarily on a subscription basis.

The Company was incorporated under the laws of the state of Delaware in May 1999 as Recruitsoft, Inc. and
changed its name to Taleo Corporation in March 2004, The Company has principal offices in Dublin, California and
Quebec City, Quebec and conducts its business worldwide, with wholly owned subsidiaries in Canada, France, the
Netherlands, the United Kingdom, Singapore, and Australia. The subsidiary in Canada performs the primary
product development activities for the Company, and the other foreign subsidiaries are generally engaged in
providing sales, account management and support activities.

Basis of Presentation — The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The consolidated financial statements
include the accounts of Taleo Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated. We have reclassified foreign exchange transaction adjustments of $0.4 million in
2005 and $(0.1) million in 2004 from other income (expense), net to general and administrative. Such reclassi-
fications did not affect total revenues or net loss, '

Stock Split — The accompanying financial statements reflect a one-for-six reverse stock split of the
Company’s common stock that was approved by the Board of Directors and shareholders effective April 25,
2005. All share and per share information hercin has been retroactively restated to reflect this split.

Allocation of Overhead Costs — The Company allocates overhead such as rent and occupancy charges,
employee benefit costs and depreciation expense (o ali departments based on employee count. As such, overhead
expenses are reflected in each cost of revenue anl operating expense category.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements — In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™)
issued Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN 48™), Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes. FIN 48 creates a single
model to address accounting for uncertainty in tax positions by prescribing a minimum recognition threshold that a
tax position is required to meet before being recoynized in the financial statements. FIN 48 establishes a two-step
approach for evaluating tax positions. The first ste p, recognition, occurs when a company concludes {based solely
on the technical aspects of the tax matter) that a tax position is more likely than not to be sustained on examination
by a taxing authority, The second step, measurement, is only considered after step one has been satisfied and
measures any tax benefit at the largest amount ttat is deemed more likely than not to be realized upon ultimate
settlement of the uncertainty. Tax positions that fail to qualify for initial recognition are recognized in the first
subsequent interim pericd that they meet the wore likely than not standard, when they are resolved through
negotiation or litigation with the taxing authority or upon the expiration of the statute of limitations. FIN 48 also
significantly expands the financial statement disc osure requirements relating to uncertain tax positions. FIN 48 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after Decemb:r 15, 2006. Accordingly, we will adopt FIN 48 as of January 1,
2007, as required. Differences between the amounts recognized in the balance sheet prior to adoption and the
amounts recognized in the balance sheet after adoption will be accounted for as a cumulative effect adjustment to
the beginning balance of retained earnings. We a-e currently evaluating the impact of FIN 48 on our consolidated
financtal statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 157 (“SFAS 1577), Fair
Value Measurements. SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance
with GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for financial statements
issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years. We are
currently evaluating the impact of SFAS 157 on our consolidated financial statements.
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TALEO CORPORATION
NOTES TQ CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estmates —The preparation of finan:ial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, or GAAP, requires company management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported araounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Iterns subject to the use of estimates include revenue, product
development costs, bad debt expense, certain accrued liabilities, amortization of acquired intangibles, stock-based
compensation and income tax expense.

Revenue Recognition — The Company generates revenue by providing its solutions to meet professional,
hourly and temporary staffing needs. The Company derives its professional and hourly revenue primarily from
hosting, application fees, and maintenance fees, which fees are collectively reflected as application revenue, and
secondarily from professional implementation and co.asulting services, which are reflected as consulting revenue.
The Company typically enters into multiple-element arrangements that include hosting, application and imple-
mentation or consulting services. The Company allocates the arrangement fee to the elements based upon the fair
value of those elements. The fair value of the elements is typically determined by the price of the deliverable when it
is sold on a standalone basis. Revenues for each of thz2se elements, whether contracted directly with the end-user
customer, or in certain cases through the Company’s partners, are recognized when persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists, delivery of the service has occurred, the price is fixed or determinable, and collectibility is
reasonably assured.

Hosting and application services provide customers the right to access applications, use hardware for the
application access, and utilize customer service. Customers typically do not have the right to take possession of the
Company’s software during the hosting agreement. Contracts typically have a term of three years and are generally
non-cancelable, or provide for significant penalties if cancelled. Hosting and application service revenue is
recognized ratably over the term of the arrangement. Set-up fees for a new customer contract, which are nominal,
are deferred and recognized over the life of the arrangement.

Taleo Contingent revenue (revenue generated from the acquisition of White Amber, Inc, see Note 3 —
Business Combinations) is generated in the temporary or contingent staffing market. This revenue is recognized
based upon a fixed, contracted percentage of the doltar amount invoiced for contingent labor through the use of one
of the Company’s applications and is recorded on a net basis under the provisions of Emerging Issues Task Force
(“EITF’), No. 99-19 “Reporting Revenue Gross as Principal Versus Net as Agent” as the Company is not the
primary obligor under the arrangements, the percentage earned by the Company is typically fixed, and the Company
does not retain credit risk. :

Consulting services represent a separate earnings process and are recognized as services are performed.
Consulting services generally include business process reengineering, change management, application config-
uration, and education and training services. Consulting engagements are typically billed on a time and materials
basis. Certain of the Company’s consulting and implementation engagements are priced on a fixed-fee basis.
Revenue recognized under fixed-fee arrangements is recognized proportionally to the performance of the services
utilizing milestones if present in the arrangement or hours incurred relative to hours projected if milestones are not
present. However, the revenue recognized under the fixed fee arrangements is limited to the contractual amount that
the Company would be able to recover should there be a cancellation by the customer.

The Company does not license its software with a right of return and typically does not license its software or
provide hosting services with conditions of acceptance. If an arrangement does contain conditions of acceptance,
recognition of the revenue is deferred until the acceptance criteria are met or the period of acceptance has passed.

Deferred Revenue —- Deferred revenue primarily consists of billings or payments received in advance of
revenue recognition from the Company’s solutions described above and is recognized as the revenue recognition
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TALEO CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

criteria are met. The Company generally invoices its ustomers in quarterly or annual installments. Accordingly, the
deferred revenue balance does not typically represent the total contract value of annual or multi-year, noncancelable
subscription agreements. '

Commission Expense — Commissions are the incremental costs that are directly associated with revenue
-gontracts. In the case of commissions for application revenue contracts the commissions are calculated based upon a
percentage of the first year’s revenue of the contraci. The commission payment is earned by the Company’s sales
persons over the twelve-month period following the initiation of a new customer contract. To the extent that a
commission is paid before it is expensed, it is recorded as a prepaid expense and amortized over the period benefited
by the service period of the sales person.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets — In aci:ordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets,” the Company conducts a test for the impairrient of goodwill on at least an annual basis. October 1 has been
adopted as the date of the annual impairment test and the Company performed its first impairment test on October 1,
2004. The impairment test compares the fair value of reporting units to their carrying amount, including goodwill,
to assess whether impairment is present. Based on the most recent impairment test conducted on October 1, 2006,
the Company has concluded thiat there was no impaicment of goodwill as of that date. The Company will assess the
impairment of goodwill annually on October 1 or sooner if other indicators of impairment arise.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets — SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets,” requires the review of the carrying value of long-lived assets when impairment indicators arise. The
review of these long-lived assets is based on factor; including estimates of the future operating cash flows of our
business. These future estimates are based on historical results, adjusted to retlect our best estimates of future
market and operating conditions. Actual resulis may vary materially from our estimates, and accordingly may cause
a full impairment of our long-lived asseis.

Income Taxes — Recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities is provided for the expected future tax
consequences of events that have already been recognized in the Company’s consolidated financial statements or
tax returns. Deferred tax assets and. liabilities are determined based on the differences between the financial
accounting and tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted 1ax rates expected to be in effect for the year in which
the differences are expected to reverse. Valuation allowances are provided against net deferred tax assets when it is
more likely than not that such assets will not be r:alized.

The Company is subject to income taxes in both the United States and foreign jurisdictions and uses estimates
in determining its provision for income taxes. Def:rred tax assets, related valuation allowances and deferred tax
liabilities are determined separately by tax jurisdiction. This process involves estimating actual current tax
liabilities together with assessing temporary differences resulting from differing treatment of items for tax and
accounting purposes. These differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities which are recorded on the balance
sheet. The Company’s deferred tax assets consist primarily of net operating loss carry forwards. The Company
assesses the likelihood that deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income, and a valuation
allowance is recognized if it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax assets will not be
recognized. At September 30, 2006, the Company teversed its valuation allowance by approximately $1.1 million
due to the utilization of net operating losses agai:ist earnings in Canada and during the fourth quarter in 2006,
reversed the remaining valuation allowance of $3.2 million in Canada, since it was deemed more likely than not that
these assets would be realized. The Company continues to maintain a full valuation allowance on its deferred tax
assets associated with U.S. and other foreign operations. A portion of the remaining valuation allowance pertains to
deferred tax assets established in connection with prior acquisitions, and to the extent that this portion of the
valuation allowance is reversed in the future, goodwill will be adjusted. Although the Company believes that its tax
estimates are reasonable, the ultimate tax determinition involves significant judgment that could become subject to
audit by tax authorities in the ordinary course of business.
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TALEO CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Compliance with income tax regulations requres the Company to make decisions relating to the transfer
pricing of revenue and expenses between each of its legal entities that are located in several countries. The
Company’s determinations include many decisions based on its knowledge of the underlying assets of the business,
the legal ownership of these assets, and the ultimate Lransactions conducted with customers and other third-parties.
" The calculation of its tax liabilities involves dealing with uncertainties in the application of complex tax regulations
in multiple tax jurisdictions. The Company is periodically reviewed by domestic and foreign tax authorities
régarding the amount of taxes due. These reviews include questions regarding the timing and amount of deductions
and the allocation of income among various tax jur.sdictions. In evaluating the exposure associated with various
filing positions, the Company records estimated reserves for probable exposures. Such estimates are subject to
change.

Taleo Contingent Accounts Receivable and Stafing Suppliers Payable — The staffing supplier companies that
use Taleo Contingent to provide services to the Company’s customers do so under agreements whereby the
Company is not obligated to pay the staffing suppliers unless payment is received by the Company from its
customer. Customers of the Company remit the full amount of the invoice for contingent labor to the Company. The
Company, after deducting its service fee, then remits payment to the staffing supplier. Receivables undet such
agreements totaled $0.4 million as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. T

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts — The Conipany maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for esti-
mated losses resulting from the inability of customers to make required payments. This allowance is established
using estimates formulated by the Company’s management based upon factors such as the composition of the
accounts receivable aging, historical bad debts, changes in payments patterns, customer creditworthiness, and
current economic trends. Following is a summary of the activity in the allowance for doubtful accounts:

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands}

Balance &t JANUATY L+« o evveeeseeaeiseeaeeanieeeeianeo.. $350  $150 $ 50
Provision charged 10 eXpense. . . ..o oo v oo 254 225 100
Write-offs charged against allowance. . ........ ... . i (19) (25} —

Balance at December 31 ... .ottt e e e e e $585 %330 $150

- Cash and Cash Equivalents — The Company defines cash and cash equivalents as cash and highly liquid
investments with maturity of three months or less when purchased. -

Restricted Cash — The Company’s restricted -ash balance of $3.8 million at December 31, 2006 consists of
three certificales of deposit in the amounts of $0.1 million, $0.1 million, and $16,000 plus interest, three highly
liquid investment accounts for $1.1 million, $0.8 million, and $7,000 and $1.7 million which related to deposits
received from a customer of our Managed Service Provider product which were returned on January 4, 2007. The
three certificates of deposit collateralize two letters of credit issued to the Company’s landlords as security deposits.
The certificates of deposit bear interest at rates ranging from 2.25% to 4.65% and renew annually on July 4th,
March 26th, and March 1st. Balances in the investiment accounts have been designated for payment to the former
stockholders of Recruitforce.com Inc., and are disbursed in accordance with the terms of the purchase agreement.
Interest earned on these accounts is payable to the former stockholders of Recruitforce.com, Inc., see Note 3 —
Business Combinations.

Concentration of Credit and Market Risk — Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to
credit risk cornsist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and debt. The Company maintains
substantially all of its cash in financial institutiors that are believed to have good credit ratings and represent
minimal risk of loss of principal. The Company grants credit to customers in the ordinary course of business and
provides a reserve when necessary for potential credit losses. The Company is not exposed to any material credit
concentration risk. A portion of the Company’s revenues and expenses are generated in Canadian dollars as well as
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other foreign currencies and, as a result, the Company is exposed to market risks from changes in foreign currency
exchange rates. Certain debt of the Company is denominated in Canadian dollars for which the Company is exposed
to market risk.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments — The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial instruments, which
include cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and other accrued
expenses, approximate their fair values due to their shcrt maturities. Based on borrowing rates currently availabie to
the Company for loans with similar terms, the carrying value of capital lease obligations approximates fair value.

Foreign Currency Translation — The U.S. dollar is the reporting currency for all periods presented. The
financial information for entities outside the United States is measured using local currency as the functional
currency. Asseis and liabilities are translated into U.S. dollars at the exchange rate in effect on the respective balance
sheet dates. Application revenues from service contracts are translated into U.S. dotlars at the exchange rate in
effect at the billing dates when revenue is deferred. Other income and expenses are translated into U.S. dollars based
on the average rate of exchange for the corresponding period. Exchange rate differences resulting from translation
adjustments are accounted for as a component of accumulated comprehensive income. Gains or losses, whether
realized or unrealized, due to transactions in foreign currencies are reflected in the consolidated statements of
operations under the line item general and administrative expense. Amounts included in the statements of
operations for exchange (losses) and gains were $70.2), $(0.4), and $0.1 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.

Property and Equipment — Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation.
Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are cherged to operations. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets or, for leasehold improvements, the
shorter of lease term or useful life of the asset. The following table presents the estimated useful lives of the
Company’s property and equipment:

Computer hardware and sofiware 3 10 5 years
Furniture and equipment 5 years
Leaseheld improvements shorter of lease term or useful life of asset

Investment Credits — The Company participates in a special government program in Quebec that provides
investment credits based upon gualifying research and development expenditures including capital equipment
purchases. The Company has participated in the progrzm for six years, and management expects that the Company
will continue to be eligible to earn these investment cre lits through September 2008 when the program is scheduled
to end. The credits are estimated and recognized when the expenditures are made. The credits earned are reported as
a reduction of related research and development expente, or as a deferred cost of the acquired capital equipment, in
the year incurred. During the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, approximately $2.2 million,
$2.1 million and $2.4 million, respectively, have been recorded as a reduction of research and development
expenses. There were no reimbursements associated with capital equipment purchases for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004.

Advertising Expense — The cost of advertising is :xpensed as incurred. Advertising costs were approximately
$0.6 million, $0.5 million, and $0.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

Product and Software Development Costs — The Company accounts for software development costs under
the provisions of SFAS No. 86, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software to be Sold, Leased or Otherwise
Marketed.” Therefore, the Company capitalizes certain software development costs after technological feasibility
of the product has been established. Such costs have been insignificant to date, and accordingly, no costs were
capitalized in 2006, 2005 or 2004.

Stock-Based Compensation — Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for our share-based
employee compensation plans under the measurement and recognition provisions of Accounting Principles Board
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Opinion (“APB™) No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related Interpretations, as permitted by
Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement of Financial Accounting Standards {"*SFAS™) No. 123, Account-
ing for Stock-Based Compensation. We generally reccrded no employee compensation expense for options granted
prior to January I, 2006 as options granted generally had exercise prices equal to the fair market value of our
common stock on the date of grant. In accordance with SFAS No. 123, we disclosed our net loss per share as if we
had applied the fair value-based method in measuring compensation expense for our share-based incentive awards.

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123(R),
Share-Based Payment, using the modified prospective transition method. Under that transition method, compen-
sation expense that we recognize beginning on that date includes expense associated with the fair value of all awards
granted on and after January 1, 2006, and expense for the unvested portion of previously granted awards outstanding
on January 1, 2006, Results for prior periods have rot been restated.

Comprehensive Income (Loss) — Comprehensive income (loss) includes charges and credits to equity that are
not the result of transactions with stockholders. Included in other comprehensive income or loss are the cumulative
translation adjustments related to the net assets of the operations of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries. These
adjustments are accumulated within the consolidated statements of stockholders’ equity under the caption
“Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income.” Comprehensive loss for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005, and 2004, was approximately $2.8 million, $2.2 million and $5.9 million, respectively.

3. Business Combinations
Acquisition of Recruitforce.com, Inc.

On March 10, 2005 the Company acquired Recruitforce.com (“Recruitforce™), a California corporation, which
provides an internet-based hiring management sys:em to small and medium-sized businesses. The Company
believes that Recruitforce’s product is complementary to its existing product offerings and that the acquisition will
expand the Company’s customer reach.

The Company acquired 100% of the outstanding stock of Recruitforce for approximately $3.9 million in cash,
including acquisition related costs. The payment terms for the acquisition were $1.0 million at the date of
acquisition with the balance paid 90 days after that dte, subject to customary escrow provisions. As a result of the
acquisition and the allocation of the purchase price, intangible assets of approximately $3.8 million were recorded
as identified in the table below. Goodwill of $3.1 million relates to product synergies and value associated with
being able to leverage the sales capability of the Comr pany’s sales team to (i) market the acquired product lines and
(ii) target the Recruitforce market segment. During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company did not record
any in-process research and development charges ir: connection with the acquisition.

The following table summarizes the fair values >f the Recruitforce assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
at the date of acquisition:

Description Amount Assigned Life
(In thousands)

Goodwill. . .o e e $3,051 —

Existing technology . . ... v.vvveeen.n.. e 623 5 years

Customer relationships ... ...... ... .. oo oo 93 5 years

3,767

Cashacquired . . . ... .. i 51

L1011 0 T=1 s LT = - " 222

Liabilities assumed . . . ... ottt _(136)

Total purchase Price ... ...t ir it $3,9
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The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired of approximately
$3.1 million was allocated to goodwill. The amount paid for goodwill is not deductible for tax purposes.

The Company has not presented pro forma financial statements for this acquisition, as the pre-acquisition
operations of Recruitforce were immaterial. Concurtent with the acquisition, the Company entered into employ-
ment and noncompetition agreements with two selling shareholders of Recruitforce. Each employment agreement
covers a period of two years with payments made anmually on the anniversary of the effective date of the agreement.
Total compensation associated with these agreements approximates $1.4 million and includes forfeiture rights
should either agreement be terminated due to caute or without good reason (as defined in the employment
agreement). The Company is recording compensation expense ratably over the terms of the agreements, The
Company recognized compensation expense of $0.7 million and $0.5 millien for the years ended December 31,
2006 and 2005, respectively, under the agreements. Recruitforce’s results have been included in the Company’s
Consolidated Statement of Operations beginning on the date of acquisition forward.

Acquisition of White Amber, Inc,

On October 21, 2003, the Company acquired White Amber, Inc., an application service provider of a solution
used t0 manage the procurement and processing of :emporary staff. This acquisition was made to augment the
Company’s existing solutions for permanent employees with a complementary solution for the procurement and
management of contingent workers. The operating results of White Amber are included in the consolidated
statement of operations from the acquisition date. The purchase price totaled $6.6 million, which consisted of
10,624,723 shares, excluding additional shares issuab e or contingently issuable, of Series D Convertible Preferred
Stock (representing 1,770,779 shares of Class A Common Stock on an as-converted basis) valued at $5.8 million,
warrants assumed and stock options issued valued at $.5 million, and cash related acquisition costs of $0.3 million.

Under the terms of the acquisition of White Amt er, additional shares could become i1ssuable as consideration
for the acquisition in two circumstances, The first cirzumstance related to 1,393,792 shares of Series D Preferred
Stock that would have been issued if the revenue derived from a specific customer achieved defined minimum levels
during the three-month period ended August 31, 2004. This condition was not met and these shares were not issued.

The second circumstance relates to forfeitures of stock options under the White Amber Stock Option Plan that
was approved by the Board of Directors in connection with the acquisition of White Amber, see Note 10 —
Common Stock. The Company reserved 206,487 shares of Class A Common Stock, after conversion from Series D
Preferred Stock, for issuance to employees of White A nber. To the extent that employees forfeited these options for
any reason prior to October 2006, the reserved Series 12 Preferred Shares underlying the forfeited options would be
issued to former shareholders of White Amber.

At December 31, 2005, there was a maximum of 205,296 Class A Common Shares issuable under the White
Amber stock plan. During the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, 6,125 and 24,645 Class A Common
Shares, respectively, became issuable as a result of forieitures. These forfeitures resulted in an increase to goodwill
of $0.1 million in each of the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2003, In 2006, a total of 30,753 shares, net of
fractional shares not distributed, were issued to formar White Amber Stockholders.

4. Intangible Assets and Goodwill

The Company has recorded the following balances far acquired intangible assets and goodwill at December 31,
2006 and 2005.
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A summary of acquired intangible assets at December 31, 2006 and 2005 is as follows:

2006 2005
Weighted-Arerage Gross Gross
Period of Carrying Accumulated Carrying  Accumulated
Amortization © Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
{In thousands) (In thousands)
Identifiable intangible assets: .
Existing technology .. ............ 3.5 yeers $2,311 $(1,914) 32,311 $(1,335)
Customer relationships . .. ......... 3.2 yeers 967 (907) 967 {654)
Subtotal . . . ....... ... 3,278 (2,821} 3,278 {1,989)
Goodwill . ..................... 6,028 — 5,947 —
Total ......... ... ..o , $9,306 $(2,821) $9,225 3(1,989)

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company’s goodwill increased as a result of forfeited
contingent shares in connection with the acquisition of White Amber, see Note 3 — Business Combinations. There

were no other changes to the carrying amount of goodvill due to acquisitions or impairment during the year ended
December 31, 2006.

Amortization expense for intangible assets was $0.8 million, $1.0 million and $0.9 million for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The :stimated amortization expense for intangible assets for the
four succeeding years is as follows:

Estimated Amortization Expense ’ . Amount
(In thousands)
2007 .. o e e e e e e e e $143
0 " 143
20000 L e e e e e e e e 143
2000 . 28
Total . .. e e e e 3457

5. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the folloWing at December 31, 2006 and 2005:
2006 2005
(In thousarus)
.................................. $ 20,106 $12,687
........................................ 2,462 2,324

Computer hardware and software
Furniture and equipment

Leaschold improvements .. ... ... ... . i i 2,661 1,206
25,229 16,217

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization . . .. ................... (12,301) (9,088)
Total . e e e e $12928 §$ 7,129

Property and equipment included capital leases tctaling $0.9 mitlion and $1.0 million at December 31, 2006
and 2005, respectively. All of the capital leases are included in computer hardware and software. Accumulated
amortization relating to property and equipment under capital leases totaled 30.7 million and $0.5 million,
respectively, at December 31, 2006 and 2005. Deprec ation and amortization expense, including amortization of
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assets under capital leases, was $4.0 million, $3.9 miilion, and, $3.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2006,
2005, and 2004, respectively.

6 Otliér Assets .

Other assets consist of the following at December 31, 2006 and 2005:

2006 , 2005

{In thousands)
Deferred tax asset net of valuation allowance . .. ......... ... ... ... .. $1,284¢ $§ —
1 111 7 R 164 283
Total . . e e e e $1,448  $283

7. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following at December 31, 2006 and 2005:

2006 - 2005
(In thousands)
Accrued COmMPensation . ... ... ... .. e $ 7,092 %5205
Accounts payable . . .. ... . e 2,388 3,698
Accrued liabilittes and other . ... ... . ... . . ... . ... ... .... e 9,228 4,160
g1 D $18,708  $13,063

8. Debt Refinancing

The Company had historically maintained a financing arrangement with the National Bank of Canada. This
agreement had been in place since 1999, as renewec and amended. The Company repaid all amounts owed to the
National Bank of Canada on April 25, 2005, and the Company entered into a new loan arrangement with Goldman
Sachs Specialty Lending Group, L.P. (“Goldman Sichs™).

Under the term loan with Goldman Sachs, which closed on April 25, 2005, the Company received net proceeds
of approximately $19.3 million, and had gross debt ouatstanding of $20.0 millicn, the difference being debt issuance
costs that were to be amortized to interest expense cver the life of the term loan. The term loan eamed interest at

.LIBOR plus 6.0% and interest payments were due monthly. Mandatory earlier payment of the loan was provided for
under certain circumstances including the issuance cf equity securities. Additionally, the term toan may have been
voluntarily prepaid by the Company: if prepaid, certain premiums were required to be paid in addition to the
repayment of the principal. The term loan was colliteralized by a substantial majority of the Company’s assets,
including the intellectual property. The Company was subject to certain covenants in order to maintain this term
loan.

Following completion of its initial public offering, on October 5, 2005, the Company repaid the amounts due
under the Goldman Sachs term loan. As a result of the loan repayment, the unamortized portion of the deferred
financing costs of $0.7 million was recorded as an extinguishment charge in the fourth quarter of 2005. The total
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extinguishment charge amounts to $2.3 millien. The payment of principal and penalties related to early
extinguishment is sumimarized as follows:

Amount

{In thousands)
Principal . ... e e e $19,000
Prepaymeni penalty . . . ...ttt e e e e 950
Yield maintenance penalty . .. .. ... . e e 620
7 $20,570

The Company concluded that mandatory earlicr repayment {put option) of the loan triggered upon the
completion of its IPO represented an embedded derivative instrument as defined by Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”
(SFAS 133) and needed to be accounted for separately. The Company valued the put option by measuring its
theoretical maximum value, measured as the sum of the prepayment penalty and the yield maintenance penalty on
the valuation date, and then adjusted the value based an assigned probability to reflect the conditionality of the
option. The Company determined that the fair value of the derivative on the date of the issuance and at June 30, 2005
was not material. As of September 30, 2003, the Company determined that there had been an increase in the value of
the derivative to $1.6 million based on the exercise of the option following the initial public offering of the
Company’s common stock on Nasdag Stock Market LLC in September 2005. The increase in the value of the
derivative was reflected in interest expense for the quarter ended September 30, 2005. During the year ended
December 31, 2006, the Company had no debt other than amounts related to capital leases. See note 13 —
Commitments and Contingencies.

9. Preferred Stock

In conjunction with the initial public offering of common stock of the Company in October 2005, 69,877,241
outstanding shares of preferred stock, plus 4,136,489 shares issuable under antidilution provisions converted into
12,335,598 shares of Class A Common Stock as a result of the IPQ, see Note 10 — Common Stock. Also upon
completion of the IPO, the Company issued 841,124 shares of Class A comon stock in lieu of payment on a
portion of accrued dividends on outstanding preferred stock, based on the initial public offering price of $14.00 per
share. The amount paid in cash for acerued dividends was $0.2 million relating to certain Series D preferred shares.
At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company had no preferred stock outstanding.

Preferred Stock Warrants

Foltowing the Company's initial public offerin;z, all outstanding preferred stock warrants converted into
warrants 10 acquire Class A Common Stock of the Campany, see Note 10— Common Stock. At December 31,
2006 and 20035, the Company had no preferred stock warrants outstanding.

10. Common Stock

On October 4, 2003, the Company completed its initial public offering of 6,700,000 shares of common stock at
a price of $14.00 per share. The Company sold 5,360,000 shares and certain stockholders of the Company sold
1,340,000 shares in this offering. Upon the closing of the offering, the Company received net proceeds, after
deducting underwriting discounts and commissions of' $69.8 million. After deducting $3.9 million of other costs
incurred in connection with the offering, the net procee 1s were approximately $65.9 million. Simultaneous with the
completion of the IPO, 69,877,241 outstanding shares of preferred stock plus 4,136,489 shares issuable under
Series B Preferred Stock antidilution provisions converted into 12,335,598 shares of Class A Common Stock. Also
upon completion of the PO, the Company issued 841 124 shares of Class A common stock in lieu of payment of
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accreted dividends on the outstanding preferred stock based on the initial public offering price of $14.00 per share.
The amount paid in cash for dividends was $0.2 million.

Class A Common Stock

Holders of the Class A Common Stock are entitled to one vote for each share of Class A Common Stock held.

Class B Common Stock and Exchangeable Shaies

In November 1999, the Company entered into ar exchangeable share transaction with 9090-5415 Quebec Inc.,
formerly known as Viasite Inc., a corporation organized under the laws of Quebec, Canada. In connection with this
transaction, the Company received 1,000 Class A common shares of 9090-5415 Quebec Inc for nominal cash
consideration. The remaining shares of 9090-5413 Quebec Inc. consist of two classes of non-voting exchangeable
shares and one class of preferred voting shares which, although originally issued, were cancelled in January 2000.

The first class consists of 17,879,362 Class A Preferred Exchangeable Shares (“Common Exchangeables”)
entitling the holder to exchange each share for one sixth of a share of the Company’s Class A Common Stock. The
second class consists of 6,350,400 Class B Preferied Exchangeable Shares (“Preferred Exchangeables™) that
entitled the holder to exchange each share for one sixth of a share of the Company’s Series A Preferred Shares.

As a result of the closing of the company’s initi:l public offering of its Class A Common Stock, the Preferred
Exchangeables now entitle the holders of these shires to exchange each share for one sixth of a share of the
Company’s Class A Common Stock directly. In addiion, holders of all classes of exchangeable shares are party to
an agreement which entitles them to the economic :quivalent of dividends declared on Class A Common Stock
without requiring them to actually exchange their shares. However, until the time that such shares are exchanged for
the Company’s Class A common stock, amounts associated with the Preferred Exchangeables will be classified
ouiside of stockholders equity.

The holders of exchangeable shares also hold Class B Common Stock of the Company. The holders of Class B
Commeon Stock are entitled to one vote for each share of Class B Common Stock held and vote as a single class with
Class A Common Stock. The Class B Common Stock is redeemable for $0.00001 per share at the time that either the
Common Exchangeables or Preferred Exchangeables are exchanged for Class A Common Stock. The redemption
feature ensures that holders of exchangeable shares do not get double voting rights following an exchange of their
shares, once by virtue of holding class B common shares, and once by virtue of helding class A common shares.

Class B Common Stock was created in order t¢ allow holders of exchangeable shares the ability to vote as if
they had exchanged their exchangeable shares without having to exchange such shares. Holders of Class B
Common Stock are not entitled to any substantive rights, economic or otherwise, as a result of their ownership of
Class B Common Stock without consideration of the :xchangeable shares of 9090-5415 Quebec, Inc. The holders of
all classes of exchangeable shares may elect, or the Company may require them, to exchange their exchangeable
shares. If all classes of exchangeable shares were exchanged, it would result in the issuance of 4,038,287 shares of
the Company’s Class A Common Stock and the redeription of 4,038,287 shares of the Company’s Class B Common
Stock. During the year ended December 31, 2005, 2,164,476 shares were exchanged for Class A Common Stock
leaving 1,873,811 available for exchange in future years.

Class A Common Stock Warrants

In January 2000, the Company entered into a professional services agreement for marketing services with an
affiliate of a stockholder. The service provider was also affiliated with a member of the Company’s Board of
Directors. In consideration of this services agreement, the Company granted a warrant to purchase 481,921 shares
of Class A Common Stock at an exercise price equal to $3.63 per share. The service agreement had a term of one
year, and the warrant is fully vested and was initially exercisable at any time from the date of grant through the
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earlier of (a) January 25, 2005 or (b) a closing of an initial public offering of the Company’s common stock. The fair
value of the warrant, estimated to be $2.8 million, ‘was charged to marketing expense during the year ended
December 31, 2000. In connection with the settlement f certain litigation in November 2004, the Company agreed
to modify the terms of this warrant, by extending the warrant’s expiration date to January 25, 2007. The
modification of this warrant resulted in the Company recording a charge of approximately $0.2 million, based
on the fair value of the modified warrant as compared to the original warrant terms. In determining the fair values
under the Black-Scholes-Merton valuation model the company used an expected life of 2.25 years; stock volatility
of 68%; a risk-free interest rate of 2.72%; and no dividend payments during the expected term. This warrant
remained outstanding as of December 31, 2006, but was exercised in January 2007. See Note 19 — Subsequent
Events.

In November 2001, the Company granted a fully vested warrant to purchase 2,583 shares of Class A Common
Stock at an exercise price equal to $3.00 per share in consideration of past services provided by a consultant. The
warrant is exercisable at any time from the grant date through the earlier of (a) November 20, 2006, (b) a closing of
an initial public offering of the Company’s common stock or (c) a change of control of the Company. The fair value
of the warrant at the date of issue, estimated to be $6,000, was charged to selling and marketing expense during the
year ended December 31, 2001. The fair value of the warrants was based on the fair market value of the services
rendered to the Company. This warrant was exercised during the year ended December 31, 2005.

In March 2005, the Company granted a fully vested warrant to purchase 41,667 shares of Class A Common
Stock at an exercise price equal to $13.50 per share in consideration of recruitment services provided by an external
agency. The warrant is exercisable at any time from the grant date through the earlier of (a) March 14, 2010 or (b) a
change of control of the Company. The fair value of the warrant at the date of issue, estimated to be $0.4 million, was
charged to general and administrative expense during the year ended December 31, 2005. The value of the warrant
was calculated using the Black-Scholes-Merton valuation model with the following weighted-average assumptions:
expected life of 5 years; stock volatility of 79%; risk-free interest rate of 3.1%; and no dividend payments during the
expected term. This warrant remained outstanding as of December 31, 2006, but was exercised in February 2007.
See Note 19 — Subsequent Events.

In connection with the acquisition of White Amber, the Company assumed warrants previously issued by
White Amber that enabled two existing White Amber warrant holders to purchase 680,472 shares of Series D
Preferred Stock at an exercise price equal to $1.23 per share. Concurrent with the initial public offering of the
Company, these were converted into warrants to acquire 113,411 Class A Common Stock at an exercise price equal
to $7.38. These warrants are fully exercisable. The fair value of these warrants at the time of acquisition was
$0.3 million; this amount was included in the purchase price of White Amber, see Note 3 — Business Combi-
nations. The Company’s calculations were made using the Black-Scholes-Merton valuation model with the
following weightzd-average assumptions: expected life of 7.87 years; stock volatility of 72%; risk-free interest
rate of 3.6%; and no dividend payments during the expected term.

One of these holders holds a series of warrants for 97,995 shares of Class A Common Stock. These warrants
had a life equal to the lesser of (a) 10 years from the original date of issuance, or (b) a three to five year period from
the effective date of an initial public offering of the Company. On May 23, 2006, the Company issued 46,541 shares
of Class A common stock to the holder in connection with a cashless exercise of 97,995 shares related to these
warrants. No rights to purchase shares related to thes: warrants remain as of December 31, 2006.

The other holder held a warrant for the purchase of 15,416 shares of Class A Common Stock that has a life
equal to the lesser of {a) seven years from its original d: te of issuance, or (b) five years from the effective date of an
initial public offering of the Company. On March 24, 2006, the Company issued 7,260 shares of Class A Common
stock to the holder in connection with a cashless exercise of 15,416 shares related to this warrant. No rights to
purchase shares related to this warrant remains as of Jecember 31, 2006.
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Class A Common Stock Option Plans

As of December 31, 2006, the Company has teserved 4,411,510 shares of authorized but unissued Class A
Common Stock for issuance under four stock option plans. Of these shares, 4,011,510 shares were authorized under
the three plans approved by the Board of Directors in 1999 and 2004. In addition, the Board of Directors authorized
400,000 shares in Augnst 2005 under a new stock option plan. Options to purchase Class A common stock may be

" granted to employees, directors, and certain consuliants. Options are subject to the vesting provisions associated

with each grant, generally vesting one-fourth on the first anniversary of the grant and ratably thereafter for the

‘following 36 months.

At December 31, 2006, 201,646 shares were available for future grants under all four plans. The following
table presents a summary of the Class A Common Stock option activity since January 1, 2004, and related
information:

Weighted-Average

Number of Exercise Price
Options per Share

QOutstanding — January 1, 2004 .. ........ ... . o i 2,472,675 3.02

Additional shares reserved

Graned. . . .ot e e e e e 697,256 16.25

BREICISEA © o o vttt ettt et e e (30,120) 3.55

Forfeited . . ...t e e e (114,871) _6.20
Outstanding — December 31,2004 . .............. ... ... ..., 3,024,940 $ 595

Additional shares reserved

L7713 11« 1,634,942 13.58

Exercised .. .....c0i i e e e (148,351) 3.30

Forfeited . . ... oot i i e e (297,905) _9.09
Outstanding — December 31,2005 . ... .......ooiiiuniunn .- 4,213,626 $ 8.78

Additional shares reserved . .. ... . ... o i

Granted. . ... . e e e 1,162 425 11.94

BXerCISed . . ittt e e (857,203) - 2.69

Forfeited . . ... .o oo e e e (362,734) _13.55
Qutstanding — December 31,2006 . ............... .. .c.onn. 4,156,114 ~  $10.52

The Company has granted stock options to employees during 2006, 2005, and 2004 at exercise prices greater
than or equal to the fair value of the Class A Common Stock at the time of grant. Prior to the Company’s initial
public offering, the fair value of the Class A Common Stock has been determined by the Board of Directors of the
Company at each stock option measurement date tased on a variety of different factors including the Company’s
financial position and historical financial performance, the status of technological developments within the
Company, the composition and ability of the current engineering and management team, an evaluation and
benchmark of the Company’s competition, the current climate in the marketplace, arms length sales of the
Company’s capital stock (including convertible pieferred stock), the effect of the rights and preferences of the
preferred stockholders, and the prospects of a licuidity event, among others. Subsequent to our initia} public
offering, the Board of Directors of the Company auhorized grants of stock options with an exercise price per share
equivalent to the quoted market price of the Company’s publicly traded common stock on the date of each grant.

During 2001 and 2003, the Company awarded stock options to purchase 2,000 and 27,332 shares, respectively,
of Class A Common Stock to certain of its consultants. The stock options have an exercise price of $3.00 per share
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and ten year terms from their issue dates. The options issued in 2001 were subject to a vesting period of three years
and were fully vested in January 2004, the options issu=d in 2003 are subject to a vesting period of four years. Of the
options issued in 2001, 950 were exercised in 2006 and 1,050 remain outstanding as of December 31, 2006. Of the
options issued in 2003, 25,666 have expired or been excrcised in 2004; 1,666 remain outstanding as of December 31,
2006 and will be fully vested by February 2007. The awards are being accounted for in accordance with EITF 96-18
“Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring or In Conjunction
with Selling, Geods or Services.” The amount charged to expense for all awards granted was %0, $6,000, and
$0.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 respectively. '

The following table summarizes stock optlons cutstanding at December 31, 2006:

Weighted-Average

Remaining Number of

) Number of Options Contractual Life Options
Range of Exercise Prices Qutstanding (Years) Exercisable
$ 126- 192 ... [T : 30,333 271 30,333
| 300- 300 .. ... e 943,990 503 + ' 932969
384-1190 . oo 978,412 824 286,303
1190 - 12.56 . ... o e e e 99,692 9.03 14,779
1256- 1350 .. .. e e 1,130,481 8.31 525,435
C1350-1375 .. e - 161,832 9.11. 35,516
13.75-1394 . ... e 100,000 9.09 . —
MO00-1400 ..o 426,298 8.71 139,188
WA0-14.00 ..o s 29316 9.35 7 -
18.00-18.00 . ..ot 255,760 7.24 195,455
4,156,114 7.56 2,159,978
Average exercise price per share. .......... e $ 836

The aggregate intrinsic value of options outstarding at December 31, 2006 was $14.4 million. The total
intrinsic value of options exercised during fiscal 2006 was $8.3 miltion. The Company had 3,582,220 opuons vested
'or expected to vest over four years with an aggregate value mtnnsnc value of $13.8 mllllon '

White Amber Stock Opnon Plan

In addition to the above, the Company has reserved 113,811 shares of authorized but unissued Class A
common stock for issuance under a stock option plan (the “White Amber Option Plan”) that was approved by the
Board of Directors in 2003, in connection with the acquisition of White Amber. Options to purchase 206,487 shares
at $0.78 per share were issued under the White Amber Dption Plan in 2003, see Note 3 — Business Combinations.
The fair value of these options was determined to be approximately $0.6 million utilizing the Black-Scholes-Merton
valuation model, $0.2 million of which was recorded as part of the purchase price of White Amber and the balance
of $0.4 million wis recorded as deferred stock-based compensation. to be amortized over the respective vesting
period of the awards. No further issuances may be made from this plan. Options under the White Amber Option Ptan
have a ten year life, with 6.81 years remaining life as of December 31, 2006. :
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Options under the White Amber Stock Option Plan are subject to the vesting provisions associated with each
grant, and generally calls for 25% vesting upon issuance, with future vesting over defined pertods for the remaining
shares. The following schedule summarizes the activity relating to the White Amber Option Plan:

Weighted-Average

Number of Exercise Price
Options per Share
OQutstanding — January 1,2004 ... ... ... ... . ............... 206,487 0.78
Forfeited .. ... .. .. e e e e (23,076) 0.78
Outstanding — December 31,2004, .. .. .. ... ... . ... .. ... 183,411 0.78
Exercised . ... ... . e e (1,191) 0.78
Forfeited . ... ... . i (1,569) 0.78
Outstanding — December 31,2005, .. ... ... ... ... ... ... .... 180,651 $0.78
Exercised . . ... .o (60,715) 0.78
Forfeited .. ... ... . e e (6,125) 0.78
Outstanding — December 31, 2006. . ... ....... ... ... ... . ... 113,811 $0.78

At December 31, 2006, the number of opticns exercisable and the weighted-average exercise price per share of
those exercisable options were 113,811 and $C.78, respectively.

The aggregate intrinsic value of the 113,811 fully vested options outstanding at December 31, 2006 retated to
the White Amber option Plan was $1.5 million. 'The totat intrinsic value of options exercised during fiscal 2006 was
$0.7 million.

For the White Amber Stock Option Plan, the Company recorded $7,000 of compensation expense for the year
ended December 31, 2006.

Based on the forfeiture of options from the White Amber Stock Option Plan, additional shares were issued to
the former White Amber stockholders under tte terms of the White Amber acquisition agreement. In the years
ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, 6,125 and 24,645 shares, respectively, were forfeited and resulted in an
increase to goodwill of $0.1 million in both periods, see Note 3 — Business Combinations. The Company issued
30,753 shares to former stockholders of White Amber during the year ended December 31, 2006. No further shares
will be issued to former stockholders of White Amber pursuant to the White Amber acquisition agreement after
December 31, 2006.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

At December 31, 2005 there were 500,000 shares reserved for future issuance under the ESPP. Stock purchase
E rights are granted to eligible employees during :ix month offering periods with purchase dates at the end of each
offering period. The offering periods generally commence each May 1 and November 1. Shares are purchased
through employees” payroll deductions, up to a inaximum of 10% of employees’ compensation, at purchase prices
equal to 85% of the lesser of the fair market alue of the Company’s comtmon stock at either the date of the
employee’s entrance to the offering period cr the purchase date. No participant may purchase more that
10,000 shares per offering or $25,000 worth of common stock in one calendar year. The initial offering period
commenced on May 16, 2006 and ended on Outober 31, 2006. There were approximately 64,513 shares issued
under the plan at a purchase price of $9.55 per share. At December 31, 2006, 435,487 shares remain available for
issuance.

72




TALEO CORFORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Impact of the Adoption of SFAS No. 123(R)

See Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for a description of our adoption of
SFAS No. 123(R) on January 1, 2006. The following table summarizes the share-based compensation expense
included in operating expense captions that we recorded within the accompanying consolidated statements of
income for fiscal 2006:

2006
(In thousands)
COSt Of TEVEINUES . . . ottt ittt et n e e $ 414
Sales and marketing. . . .. ... L. e s 1,048
Research and development . . . .. ... ottt ittt e e ' 694
General and administrative. . ... ... .. 0 e 2,348
34,504

The Company recorded $3.6 million in pre-tax share-based compensation expense for stock options,
$0.3 million for purchase rights under the employee stock purchase plan and $0.6 million in share-based
compensation expense for restricted stock awards dwing the year ended December 31, 2006. Share-based
compensation expense reduced diluted earnings per share by $0.22 in 2006. As of December 31, 2006, there
was $9.8 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested share-based compensation
arrangements granted under all equity compensation plans. Tota! unrecognized compensation cost will be adjusted
for future changes in estimated forfeitures. The Compar.y expects to recognize that cost over a weighted average
period of 2.75 years.

SFAS No. 123(R) also requires companies to calcu’ate an initial “pool” of excess tax benefits available at the
adoption date to absorb any tax deficiencies that may be recognized under SFAS No. 123(R). The pool includes the
net excess tax benefits that would have been recognized if we had adopted SFAS No. 123 for recognition purposes
on its effective date. The Company elected to calculate the pool of excess tax benefits under the “short-cut” method
described in FASB Staff Position 123(R). As of the adoption date, the Company did not have any excess tax benefits
to calculate the initial pool.

The Company received $3.0 million in cash from option exercises and issuances of stock under the employee
stock purchase plan during the year ended December 31, 2006.

Determining Fair Value

The Company estimates the fair value of options granted using the Black-Scholes option valuation model. The
Company estimates the expected volatility of our common stock at the date of grant based on a combination of our
historical volatility and the volatility of comparable companies, consistent with SFAS No, 123(R) and Securities
and Exchange Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107 (“SAB 107”). The Company estimates expected
term consistent with the simplified method identified 1n SAB 107 for share-based awards granted during the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2006. We elected to use the simplified method due to a lack of term data as we had
recently gone public in October 2005 and our options meet the criteria of the “plain-vanilla” option as defined by
SAB 107. The simplified method calculates the expected term as the average of the vesting and contractual terms of
the award. The dividend yield assumption is based on historical dividend payouts. The risk-free interest rate
assumption is based on observed interest rates appropriate for the expected term of our employee options. We use
historical data to estimate pre-vesting option forfeitires and record share-based compensation expense only for
those awards that are expected to vest. For options granted, we amortize the fair value on a straight-line basis over
the requisite service period of the options that is generally 4 years.
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The weighted-average fair value of options granted is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-
Merton option-pricing model with the follo ¥ing weighted-average assumptions used for share-based payment
awards during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004:

2006 2005 2004
Stock Options
Expected volatility ... ................... 48 to 55% 70.5 to 79% 68 to 79%
Risk-free interestrate ... ................. 4510 5.13% 3.1t0 407% 27210 3.10%
Expected life (inyears). . .......... .. .... 5.0t0 6.25 4.0 4010 5.0
Weighted-average exercise price per shave of
options granted . .. ......... . .......... $11.94 $13.58 16.25
Weighted-average fair value per share of option
granted . ... ... L $6.83 - $7.81 $8.22
Forfeiture rate. . . ....................... 12.3 t0 24.21% — —
Expected dividend yield ... ............... 0% 0% 0%
2006
Employee Stock Purchase Plan
Expected volatility .. ... ... ... . . . e 5310 55%
Risk-free interest rate . . ... ... . i ittt 5.09 to 5.24%
Expected life (inweeks) . . .. ... . e 24010 260
Expected dividend yield .. ... .. ... . . e 0%

For the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company has accounted for forfeitures under
SFAS No. 123 based on the actual forfeitures.

The following table illustrates the effect on nzt income and loss per share as if the Company had applied the fair
value based method, as adopted, to all awards, including those previously accounted for under APB 23, for the years
ended December 31, 2005 and 2004:

2005 2004
(In thousands)

Net loss attributable to Class A common stockholders —

Asreported ... ... e e e 5(5.479) § (9,025)
Add: Stock-based compensation expense included in reported net loss . . . .. 13 246
Less: Stock-based compensation expense determined under fair value based
method for all awards, net of related taceffects ................... (2,683) (659)
Pro-forma net 10sS . .. ... o i e e e $(8,149) $ (9,438)
Net loss attributable to Class A common shareholders per share —
Basic and diluted as reported . .. ... ... $ (1.19) 3(161.16)
'
Pro forma. L. . e e e e e $ {1.76) $(168.54)

Stock options granted to non-employees are accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 123 and EITF
No. 96-18, “Accounting for Equity Instruments Ttat Are Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring, or in
Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services,” which generally requires the value of the options to be periodically
remeasured and charged to expense as they are earned over the performance period. The fair value of the options is
determined using the Black-Scholes-Merton model or the fair value of the services, whichever is more readily
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determinable. There are 2,716 options outstanding granted in 2001 and 2003 for consuitants. No.options were
granted to consultants for services in 2006. Consultmg equity €xpense was SO $6 000 and $0.1 million for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and-2004, respectlvely ) -

o T4

Restricted Stock and Performance Shares, > C

On May 31,2006, the Compensatlon Comm1ttee of the Board of Dlrectors of the’ Company approvcd a form of
restricted stock agreement and a form of performana share agreement for use under the COmpany s 2004 Stock
Plan pursuant to which the Company has granted rest icted stock and performance shares! THe shares of restricted
stock and performance share awards have a per share price of $0.00001 which equals the par value. The Company’s
right to repurchase the restricted stock granted to employees’ lapses in accordance with a four year schedule and the
performance shares gramed to employees vest 1n accordance with a four year vesting schedule. Beginning in the
quarter ended September 30, 2006, the Company s Gutside' directors feceive 50%, and’ may elect to receive up to
100%, of their board compensation as restricted stock: or performance shares in Leu of cash compensation. Such
awards are granted on the first business day of each quarter and vest on the last day of each quarter. The fair value is
measured based upon the closing Nasdaq market price of the underlying Company stock as of the date of grant.
Restricted stock'and performance share awards are amortized over the applicable reacquisition or vesting period
using the straight-line method: As of December 31, 2006, the unamortized compensation cost was $2.8 mitlion and
is expected to b(. recogmzed over a weighted-average period of three years. Based on the Company’s limited
historical voluntary turnover rates, an annualized estimated forfeiture rate of 8.3% has been used in calculating the
cost. The following table presents a summary of the restricted stock awards and perfoonay.ce share awards for the
year ended. '

+

Decemoer 3],_;20(_)6, and related information:

v Weighted-Average
Performance Restricted Grant-
Share Stock Date Fair Value
Awards Awards _ - _ .per Share

Repurchasable/nonvested balance—]anuary 1, 2006 .......... -—_ -— =

Awarded ............. B S 66,179 282,017 - $il1.48
Rele_ased/vested e e e (8,054) (38,579 974
Forfeited/cancelled . . . .. .. ... .. .. ... ... ... (4,37%) (9,063) 11.90
Repurchasablelnonvosled balance — December 31, 2006. .. .. o 53,750 234,375 ¢ $11.75

For restricted stock and performance share agreeraents, the Company recorded $0.6 l'l’lllll()]'l of compcnsanon
expense for the year ended December 31, 2006,

Reserved Shares of Common Stock

o

The Company has reserved the following number of shares of Class A common stock as of December 31, 2006
for the exchange of éxchangeable shares, awarding of restricted stock awards, release of performance share awards,
exercise of stock options, purchases under the employee stock purchase plan and warrant exercises:

Exchange of exchangeable shares and redemption of Class'B common stock. . ... .. .. 1873811
Class A Common Stock Plans (excluding the White Amber Stock Plan) ... .......... 4,411,510
White Amber Stock Plan. . ................ S 113,811
Employee Stock Purchase Plan .. .. ... .. . e s 435,487
Warmants . . ... ..o e e W « 523,588

Total . .. .. e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 7,358,207
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11. Related-Party Transactions

In addition to related-party transactions described in Note 10, the Company entered into the following related-
party transactions:

The Company paid approximately $0.9 million, $1.8 million and $0.4 million, during the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively, for professional services provided by a law firm in which one of
the members of the Company’s Board of Directors is a member of the firm. Amounts payable at December 31, 2006
and 2005 were $34,000 and $0.6 million, respectively.

12, Income Taxes

: The domestic and foreign components of (loss) income before provision for income taxes were as follows:
‘ Year Ended December 31,

‘ ‘ 2006 2005 2004
' {In thousands)
DOMESHIC, .« v vttt et e $(5,786) $(5,120) $(3,543)
BOTEign . . e e 3,027 2,629 (2,194)
Total L e e “$(2,759)  $(2,491) 8(5,737)

The provision for income taxes is as follcws:

Year Ended December 31,
2006 % 2004
(In thousands)
Current
Federal .. ... oot $§ — $5— $—
e . .t e e e e e — — 9
Foreign ... ... .. 1,153 4 (2)
B 1 1 O §1,153 $4 331
Deferred
Federal . ...t e e e e $ —- $— $—
] 2 — — —
Foreign . ... ... o e e (1,284) — —_
00 - $(1,28) §— §—
Total provision (benefit} for income taxes .. .................... ... § 31y $4 &I
W06 2005 200
Federal 1ax at SIEILOIY TAle . . . ..ottt te et e e e et e eee e GH% 4% (3%
State INCOME LAXES, ML . . .. ...ttt i it et eee st e aine s eenanss (12) (8 )
FOreign tax rale . . .. ..ottt i e r e 44 (3) —
Non-deductible share based payments. .. .. ... ... ... ... o i i 31 — —
Non-deductible other eXpenses. . ... ... it i e i e 21 11 3
Change in valuation allowance. . ...... ... ... ... ... .. ... . (35 34 35
Total . .. e e e Sy —% —%
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The components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

2006 2005
{In thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Tax loss carry forwards. . ... ... s $ 14074  $ 14,104
Reserves and accruals . . . ... ... .. e 1,041 708
Property and equipment . ...... ... .. ... i 1,040 2,131
Warrants issued fOr SEIVICES . ... . .. . it e e 1.321 1,323
Deferred revenue .. ... . .. .. e e 36 42
Alternative Minimum Tax credit . ... ... .. ..o it 35 - 35
Stock based compensation. . . . ... ... .. L L e 834 —
Other, Net. ... . e e e e e e 146 145
Total deferred tax @8861S .. . v v v vttt e e e e $ 18,527 $ 18,488
Deferred tax liabilities:
Canadian investment credits . ....... e e e e e $ (1426 $ (1,637
Acquired intangible assets. . . ... ... ... . o Lo (181) (489)
Total deferred tax liabilities . . . ... . oo $ (1,607 % (2,126)
Netdeferred 1ax @ssel. . . ...t i e e e e e e e e $16,920 $ 16,362
Valuation allowance . . .. ... . ... . e (15,636) (16,362)
‘Deferred 1ax s88L, NEL . . oL . e e e e e $ 1,284 % —_

The Company has available for future periods U.3. federal tax operating loss carry forwards of approximately
$30.4 million, which expire beginning in 2019 through 2026. In addition, the Company has approximately
$2.1 mitlion of loss carrvforwards associated with nonqualified stock option deductions that when realized against
future taxable income will be recorded as an increase to additional paid-in capital. Upon liquidation of the
Company’s remaining valuation allowance, approximately $2.5 million will be reversed through goodwill as this
amount relates to valuation allowances established in the purchase price allocation of the Company’s prior business
acquisitions. The net operating loss carry forwards may be subject to limitations provided in [nternal Revenue Code
(IRC) sections 382 and 383. The Company also has Canadian federal tax operating loss carryforwards of
approximately $4.5 million, which expire at various times through 2010. Additionally, the Company has a
combined total of $1.8 million in operating loss car'y forwards from all other foreign jurisdictions in which it
is subject to taxation.

No provision has been made for U.S. or non-U.S. income taxes on the undistributed earnings of its subsidiaries
as such earnings are expected to be reinvested and are considered permanent in duration. If these earnings were
ultimately distributed to the US in the form of dividends or otherwise, or if the shares of the subsidiaries were sold or
transferred, the Company would likely be subject to additional US income taxes, net of the impact of any available
foreign tax credits. It is not practicable to estimate the additional income taxes related to permanently reinvested
earnings in the subsidiaries.

The calculation of the Company’s tax liabilities involves dealing with uncertainties in the application of complex
tax regulations in multiple tax jurisdictions. The Company is periodically reviewed by domestic and foreign tax
authorities regarding the amount of taxes due. These raviews include questions regarding the timing and amount of
deductions and the allocation of income among various tax jurisdictions. In evaluating the exposure associated with
various filing positions, the Company records estimated reserves for probable exposures. Based on the Company’s
evaluation of current tax positions, the Company believes it has appropriately accounted for probable exposures.
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At December 31, 2006, the Company reversed its Canadian subsidiary’s valuation allowances by $1.3 million,
since it was deemed more likely than not that these assets would be realized. The Company continues to maintain a
full valuation allowance on its deferred tax assets associated with U.S. and other foreign operations. '

Compliance with income tax regulations requires the Company to make decisions relating to the transfer
pricing of revenues and expenses between its subsidiaries, the underlying value of the assets of the business, the
ownership of assets, and the application of available tax credits. To date, certain of the Company’s positions have
been examined by the Canada Revenue Agency (“CRA™).

CRA Examination of Tax Year 1999. With espect to our 1999 tax year, the Company has undergone an
examination by CRA regarding the transfer of intellectual property to us from our Canadian subsidiary. In
September 2006, we entered into a settlement agrecment with CRA with respect to this examination. The terms of
the settlement require us to make royalty payments to our Canadian subsidiary on certain revenues from outside of
Canada for tax years 2000 through 2008. The royalty payments for the tax years 2000 through 2006 will result in
approximately CAD $2.6 million of additional inccme for our Canadian subsidiary. This additional income will be
fully offset by net operating losses and carryforwards. Accordingly, in the year ended December 31, 2006, the
Company has recognized deferred tax assets in an amount to offset this assessment. Based on expected revenues
subject to the royalty payment obligation, we curr:ntly project royalty payments for tax years 2007 and 2008 to
approximate CAD $4.0 million for our Canadian subsidiary, although the amount will vary depending on our
financial performance. Accordingly, we have not adjusted cur deferred tax assets for future utilization of net
operating losses and carryforwards to account for this potential assessment because of the uncertainty around
realization. ‘ :

CRA Examination of Tax Years 2000 and 2001, In April 2006, CRA proposed an additional increase to taxable
income for our Canadian subsidiary of approximarely CAD $5.3 million in respect of our 2000 and 2001 tax years,
which consists of CAD $2.3 million relating to incoine and expense allocations and CAD $3.0 million relating to our
treatment of Quebec investment tax credits. We disag ree with these 2000 and 2001 proposed adjustments and intend to
contest these matters through applicable CRA and julicial procedures, as appropriate. Accordingly, in the three month
period ended December 31, 2006, we have recognized deferred tax assets in an amount determined to be both probable
and estimable. In December 2006, we provided CRA with our settlement proposal with respect to the 2000 and 2001
tax years, We have not formerly received a response from CRA on our proposal. '

CRA Examination Impact to Futur‘e" Tax Years. The CRA issue relating to the treatment of the Quebec
investment tax credit in tax years 2000 and 200! will have bearing on the iax treatment applied in subsequent
periods that are not currently under examination. If the CRA renders an unfavorable opinion for the tax years 2000
and 2001 relating to this issue, such adjustments could have a material impact on tax years after 2001. We estimate
the potential range of additional income subject to (Canadian income tax for the 2000 to 2006 tax years as a result of
the Quebec investment tax credit issue to be between CAD $1.0 and $17.0 million, including CRA’s proposed
assessment of CAD $3.0 million for the 2000 and 2001 tax years, as discussed above.

Availability of Deferred Tax Assets. The CRA has indicated to us that it will make an assessment and apply
available deferred tax assets at the conclusion of th2 examinations described above. As of December 31, 2006, we
have projected approximately CAD $1.5 million of available deferred tax assets will be available to reduce income
adjustments from the 1999 settlement for tax years 2007 and 2008, future operating income and any further
settlement negotiations with CRA. In the event any of these amounts either individually or collectively exceed CAD
$1.5 million, our Canadian subsidiary will not hav:: sufficient net operating losses and carryforwards to offset the
additional income and would incur a Canadian tax liability which could be material. As a result of these
adjustments, we expect to pay taxes in Canada . 2007 in addition to any tax liability for prior pericds. In
addition, we may be subject to penalties and interes: on any Canadian tax liability for the 2000 tax year and beyond.
Any such penalties or interest cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.

-
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If sufficient evidence becomes available allowing us to more accurately estimate a probable income tax
liability for income adjustments from the 1999 settlement for tax years 2007 and 2008 and the CRA’s examination
of our treatment of Quebec investment tax credits, we will apply net operating losses and carryforwards to the extent
available and reserve against any remaining balances due by recording additional income tax expense in the period
the liability becomes estimable. We are secking United States tax treaty relief through the appropriate Competent
Authority tribunals for the settlement entered into with CRA with respect to the CRA’s examination of the 1999 tax
year, and we will seek United States tax treaty relief for all subsequent final settlements entered into with CRA.

13. Commitments and Contingencies

Leases — The Company leases office space and has operating leases for computer equipment and third-party
facilities that host our applications. Rental expenses under these agreements for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005, and 2004 were approximately $8.0 million, $5.8 million, and $5.5 million, respectively. The minimum
non-cancelable scheduled payments under these agreements at December 31, 2006 are as follows:

Operating Leases

Third
Party Total
Equipment  Facility Hosting Other Operating Capital
Leases Leases Facilities Contracts Leases Leases Total
(In thousands) (In thousands) (In thousands)

2007, ... ... 33,047  §27329 $ 916 $172 $ 6,464 $ 389 3 6,853
2008............... 974 1,292 533 14 2,813 17 2,830
2009.. ... .. ... ... 77 [,145 — — 1,222 — 1,222
2000, ... ... 8 939 —_ — 947 — 947
720 ) N 960 —_ —_— 960 — 960
2012...... ... 980 — — 980 — 980
Thereafter . .......... 456 —_ — 456 — 456
Total............... $4,106  $8,101 $1,449 5186 $13,842 $ 406 $14,248
Less amounts

representing interest. . (8)
Present value of

minimum lease

payments. .. ......, 398
Less current portion. . . . . (381)

Noncurrent portion . . ' $ 17

See Note 5 — Property and Equipment for additional information regarding capital leases.

Litigation — The Company is involved in various legal proceedings arising from the normal course of business
activities. In the opinion of management, resolution of these proceedings is not expected to have a material adverse
impact on the Company’s operating results or financial condition. However, depending on the amount and timing,
an unfavorable resolution of a matter could materially affect the Company’s future operating results or financial
condition in a particular period.

In addition to pending litigation the Company has received the following notices of potential claims. In
February 2003, the holder of patent number 6701313B1 verbally asserted that he believes the Company’s software
products infringe upon this patent. Management reviewed this matter and believes that the Company’s software
products do not infringe any valid and enforceable claim of this patent. In September 2003, a competitor wrote the
Company to request that the Company enter into licensing discussions or advise them why the Company believes
the functionality contained in some of the Company’s product offerings is not covered by their patent number
5999939, In February 2006, the same competitor informed the Company that it has received an additional patent,

1
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patent number 6996561, in related technology. Management has reviewed this matter and believes that the
Company’s software products do not infringe any valid and enforceable claim of these patents. The Company
believes that these patents would apply, if at all, to ar optional feature of the Company’s product offerings used by
some of the Company’s customers. The Company has engaged in discussions with the holder of patent numbers
5099939 and 6996561 with respect to the substance ¢f these patents and the possibility of settlement but resolution
of this potential claim is, as yet, uncertain. Finally, ire September 2006, the holder of patent numbers 5537590 and
5701400 wrote the Company to inform the Compan? of its contention that the Company’s product offerings may
infringe these patents. Management is in the initial stages of investigating the substance of this assertion. To date,
we are not aware of any legal claim that has been filed against us regarding these matters, but the Company can give
no assurance that claims will not be filed.

Indemnification — The Company enters into standard indemnification agreements in the ordinary course of
business. Pursuant to these agreements, the Company agrees to indemnify, hold harmless, and reimburse the
indemnified party for losses suffered or incurred by t1e indemnified party, generally customers, in connection with
any patent, copyright or other intellectual property infringement claim by any third party with respect to the
Company’s products. The term of these indemnification agreements is generally coterminous with the term of the
arrangement. The maximum potential amount of future payments the Company could be required to make under
these indemnification agreements is in some cases it unlimited. The Company has never incurred costs to defend
lawsuits or settle claims related 1o these indemnification agreements. As a result, the Company believes the
estimated fair value of these agreements is minimal.

Certain of the Company’s agreements also inclu Je clauses whereby the Company will indemnify the customer
from any and all damages, losses, judgments, costs :nd expenses for third party claims resulting from acts of the
Company, the Company’s employees or subcontractors that result in bodily injury, property damage or other
damages. The maximum potential amount of future payments the Company could be required to make under these
indemnification agreements is in some cases is unlimited; however, the Company has general and umbrella
insurance policies that would enable the recovery of a portion of many amounts paid. The Company has never
incurred costs to defend lawsuits or settle claims r:lated to these indemnification agreements. As a result, the
Company believes the estimated fair value of these agreements is minimal.

As permitted under Delaware corporate law, the Company has agreements with its directors whereby the
Company will indemnify them for certain events or occurrences while the director is, or was, serving at the
Company’s request in such capacity. The term o the director indemnification is perpetual as to events or
occurrences that take place while the director is, or was, serving at the request of the Company. The maximum
potential amount of future payments the Company could be required to make upder these indemnification
agreements is unlimited; however, director and officer insurance policy limits the Company’s exposure and
enables the recovery of a portion of any future amounts paid. As a result of insurance policy coverage, the Company
believes the estimated fair value of these indemnifization agreements is minimal.

14. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company maintains a 401(k) profit-shuring plan (the “401(k) Plan™) covering substantially all
U.S. employees. Pursuant to the 401(k) Plan, the Company may elect to match employee contributions to the
401(k) Plan, not to exceed 6% of an employee’s compensation. The Company made no such election to match
contributions to the 401(k) Plan during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004,

15. Net Loss Per Shénre

'Basic and diluted net loss per common share is calculated by dividing the net loss applicable to common
stockholders by the weighted-average number of Class A common shares outstanding during the period. Given that
the Class B common shares do not have any econmic rights, and, in accordance with Statement of Financial
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Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 128, “Earnings Per Share” (SFAS 128), and Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF)
No. 03-6, “Participating Securities and the Two Class Method under FASB Statement No. 128,” the Company has
determined that basic earnings per share should be calculated based only on the outstanding Class A common
shares. Diluted net loss per, common share is the saine as basic net loss per common share, since the effects of
potenually dilutive securities are antidilutive for all periods presented. However, dunng penods of net mcome the
earnings per share would be based on outstanding Class A common shares and exchangeable ; shares, since the latter
are participating securities, but have no legal requirement to fund losses. Exch‘mgeable shares are partlcnpatmg
securities but are not presented in the table since the Company incurred losses for all reported penods and
exchangeable shares have no legal requirement to fund such losses, making them antidilutive for all periods
presented. Class B common shares are non-participatiag in periods of net income or net losses and as a result have
no attribution of carnings or losses for the purposes of zalculating earnings per share. Antidilutive securities, which
consist of exchangeable shares, redeemable convertitle preferred stock, stock options, and warrants that are not
included in the diluted net loss per share calculation, aggregated on a weighted-average share ‘basis 10'5,615,199,
15,694,915 and 18,635,598 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The shdre“c_(')unts
in 2005 take into account the conversion rights of all preferred stock

For the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company has included 24,645 contingently issuable shares related
to the acquisition of White Amber in its weighted-average number of Class A common outstanding for purposes of
calculating net loss per share for the year ended December 31, 2005. These shares became issuable as of October 4,
2005 as a result of forfeitures, see Note 3 — Business Combinations. Until they became issuable, these securities
were antidilutive for the periods presented. In 2006, 30,753 shares were distributed to former owners as a result of
forfeitures. . : LN A oL

A summary of the loss or earnings applicable to each class of common shares is as follows:
Year Ended December 31, . ‘"

2006 2005 T 2004
Class A Class B Class A Class B Class A Class B
Common  Common(l) Total ‘Cummun Common(}) Total Common  Common(1) Total
(In thousands)
Allocation of net loss . .. $(2,628) — $(2,628) $(5479 — 5(5479) & (9.025) - $(9,025)
Weighted-average shares N ' '
outstanding . ....... 20,031 3,140 4,619 4038 56 4,038

Net loss per share. . .. .. $ (013 ‘ $(1.19) $(161.18)

(1) Class B common shares are non-participating in periods of net income or net losses and as ‘a result have no
attribution of earnings or losses for the purposes cf calculating earnings per share. Exchangeable shares are
participating securities but are not presented in the table since the Company incurred losses for all reported
periods and exchangeable shares have no legal requirement to fund such losses, making them antidilutive for all
periods presented.

16. Segment and Geographic Information, International Operations, and Customer Concentrations

The Company follows the provisions of SFAS Na. 131, “Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise and
Related Information,” which establishes standards for reporting information about operating segments in annual
financial statements and requires selected information asout operating segments in interim financial reports issued
to stockholders. It also established standards for disclcsures about products and services, and geographic areas.
Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise about which separate financial information is
available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker, or decision making group, in deciding
how to allocate resources and in assessing performance. The Company’s chief operating decision maker is the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.

The Company is organized geographically and by line of business. The Company has two major line of
business operating segments: application and consulting services.

’
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The application line of business is engaged in the development, marketing, hosting and support of the
Company’s software applications. The consulting services line of business offers implementation, business process
reengineering, change management, and education and training services.

The accounting policies of the line of business operating segments are the same as those described in the
summary of significant accounting policies. The (Company does not evaluate assets or capital expenditures by
operating segments. Consequently, it is not practical to show assets, capital expenditures, depreciation or amor-
tization by operating segment.

The following table presents a summary of ojerating segments:

Application Consulting Total

(In thousands)

2004

REVIUE. . . .ttt e e e e e $49,010 $ 9,640  $58,650

Contribution margin(l). . .. ... .. .. e e 18,451 1,364 19.815
2005:

ReVenUe. . ... ittt e e e e 63,296 15,114 78,410
" Contribution margin(1). .. .. R e 30,190 4,056 34,246
2006:

REVEIUE. . . ottt ittt et ettt et e e e 79,137 17,906 97,043

Contribution margin(1). . .. ... ... ... ... 40,345 5,121 45,466

{1) The contribution margins reported reflect only the expenses of the line of business and do not represent the
actual margins for each operating segment sirce they do not contain an allocation for selling and marketing,
general and administrative, and other corporate expenses incurred in support of the line of business.

Profit Reconciliation
Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
{In thousands)
Contribution margin for reportable segments . ... ............ $45466 $34,246 $ 19,815
Sales andmarketing. .. ......... ... ... . i (29,482) (22,544)  (18,153)
General and administrative . . . . ... ..o v i n v i e (21,113)  (10,725) (7,096)
Restructuring charges. . .. ... ... . i (414) (804) _
Interest and other income, expense, net. ... ................ 2,784 (2,664) (303)
Loss before provision for income taxes. .. ................ $ (2,759 $ (2491 $ (5,737
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Geographic Information:
Revenue atiributed to a country or region incluces sales to multinational organizations and is based on the
country of location of the contracting party. Revenues and assets by region are as follows:

United States Canada , Europe Other - Tetal
' (In thousands) '

Year ended December 31, 2004 —

REVENUES . - - oo $ 50033 §5272 $2,159 SLI86  $ 58650
ASSELS oo '$ 25081 $10903 S1L45 $1219  § 38,648
Year ended December 31, 2005 — . L

REVENUES. . . ..o, $ 69077 $5542 $2610 $1,182 § 78.410°
ASSEIS ..o § 85025  $12,402 $1,105 § 488 $ 99,020
Year ended December 31, 2006 — o . ‘ ‘
Revenues. ................ e $ 88,404 $5716 " $1939 $ 984 . § 97,043
ASSENS . oo e .. ... $102014  $12383  $1703 $1220  S117,420 -

During the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 there was no customer that individually
represented greater than 10% of the Company’s total revenue and at December 31, 2006 and 2005, no customer
represented greater than 10% of the Company’s accounts receivable. o

All goodwill and intangible assets for all reported.years are located in the United States.

17. Severance and Exit Costs

During July 2006, the Company moved its corporate offices from San Francisco, California to Dublin,
California. As a result of this relocation, the Company has recorded a provision for the exit from the San Francisco
facility in accordance with SFAS 146 “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” As a part
of this provision, the Company has taken into account that on October 19, 2006 it entered into an agreement to
sublease its San Francisco facility, consisting of approximately 12,000 square feet, As of December 31, 2006,
pursuant to the lease for the Company’s San Francisco facility, cash payments totaling $1.0 million remain to be
made through July 2009 and the associated remaining unpaid lease costs, net of sublease rental income $0.7 million
as of December 31, 2006 is approximately $0.3 million. The total estimated cost associated with the exit from the
San Francisco facility is $0.4 million. - b

Summary
Six Months Ended December 31,
2006

Liability

Balance
Liability for the Remaining Net Lease Payments Cease Use Date December 31,
for the San Francisco Facility July 03, 2006 Cash Payments 2006

(In thousands)
Lease PAYMENES . . o v vttt et i ae i an e $1,160 S(181) 5979
Sublease rental income . ... ... ... . ... - (691) _ (691)
Netliability . .. ... .. $ 469 $(181) $ 288
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Costs Associated with the Exit from the San Francisco Facility Amount
(in thousands)
Establishment of initial net liability for net lease payments (from above) . .......... $ 469
Reversal of accrued rent from original lease . ....... ... ... ... ... ... ... .. .. ... 237
Adjustment for tenant inducements from orignal lease .. ...................... (102)
Write-off of fixed assets . . . ... . i e e 217
Commissions and legal COSIS ... ... i i e 19
Total EXil EXPEIISE . . o v i ittt et it e e $ 426

Relocation of Accounting and Finance Department

On October 25, 2006, management announced a plan transition all accounting and finance functions
performed in the Quebec City, Quebec, Canada offi:e to the corporate offices in Dublin, California by March 2007.
This transition is substantially complete as of Deceinber 31, 2006. There were appreximately 18 full time positions
impacted as part of this transition and if still employed at the end of the transition period, the terminated employees
would be entitled to an exit package, which we expect to total $0.2 million in aggregate. As of December 31, 2006,
we incurred $0.1 million in severance cost and m:de no cash payments,

During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company approved and executed restructuring plans to align
the Company’s cost structure with existing market conditions and to create a more efficient organization. In
connection with these plans, the Company recorde 1 a charge of $0.8 million in 2005. There were no restructuring
costs in 2004 or 2003. This charge included costs associated with workforce reduction of $0.7 million and
consolidation of excess facilities of $0.1 million As of December 31, 2006, adjustments to the restructuring
reserves have finalized and all cash payments were made.
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18. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Selected summarized quarterly financial information for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 is as
follows:
Ist Quarler 2nd Quarter Ird Quarter 4th Quarter Fiscal Year
(In thousands, except per share data)

2006
Revenue ........................ $22.104 $23472 $24,883 $26,524 $97.043
Grossprofit. ..................... 14,357 15,439 16,795 18,350 64,941
Operatingloss . ................... (1,265) (2,585) (1,658) (35) (5,543)
Net income {loss) ................. (594 (1,828) 757 551 (2,628)

Net income (loss) attributable to Class A

common stockholders per share —

basic...... ... . ... i $ (0.03) 3 0.10) $ 0.04) $ 0.03 $ (0.13)
Net income {loss) attributable to Class A

common stockholders per share —

diluted. . ............ .. L 3 003 3 (0.10) $ (0.04) $ 002 $ (0.13)
Weighted average Class A common shares ‘

outstanding —basic................ 18,789 19,229 20,384 21,667 . 20,031
Weighted average Class A common shares

outstanding — diluted . ............. 18,783 19,229 20,384 25,848 20,031
2005

Revenue ........................ 18,157 19,307 19,903 21,043 78,410

Grossprofit. . .................... 11,893 12,469 12,938 13,633 50,933

Operating income (loss). . ........... (673) (33) 365 517 173

Netloss......................... 77 (417) (1,617} (2,673) (5,479)

Net loss attributable to Class A common
stockholders per share — basic and ’
diluted. . .......... . ... ... .. ... $(23.1'7) $(14.45) $(16.74) $ (0.58) $ (1.19)

Weighted average Class A common shares
outstanding — basic and diluted . . ... .. 70 89 149 18,168 4,619

19. Subsequent Events

On January 25, 2007, we issued 349,690 shares of our Class A common stock to E-Services Investments
Private Sub LLC in connection with a cashless exercise of a warrant to purchase 481,921 shares of our Class A
common stock at an exercise price of $3.63 per share,

On February 28, 2007, we issued 6,510 shares of our Class A common stock to Heidrick and Struggles, Inc. in
connection with a cashless exercise of a warrant to pu:chase 41,667 shares of our Class A common stock at an
exercise price of $13.50 per share.

On March 2, 2007, Taleo Corporation. (“Taleo™) entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement (the “Asset
Purchase Agreement”) by and among Taleo, JobFlash, Inc. (“JobFlash™) and U.S. Bank National Association as
Escrow Agent, for the acquisition by Taleo of certain assets of JobFlash relating to JobFlash’s talent management
and human resources solutions business (the “Transaction™). On March 7, 2007, Taleo and JobFlash completed the
Transaction. The total consideration paid by Taleo in connection with the Transaction was approximately
$3.0 million, of which $0.5 million was placed into escrow for one year following the closing to be held as
partial security for certain losses that may be incurred by Taleo in the event of certain breaches of the representations
and warranties covered in the Asset Purchase Agreement or certain other events. Under the terms of the Transaction,
Taleo will acquire ail of JobFlash’s intellectual property, technology, and customer contracts. Taleo will retain the
majority of JobFlash’s sales, services, and development personnel. In addition, Taleo assumed certain liabilities
relating to the purchased assets. JobFlash provides primerily a telephone interactive voice response solution for job
applicants and interview scheduling solutions.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures

Our management evaluated, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial
Officer, the effectiveness of our disclosure contrcls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. Based on this evaluaiion, our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer
have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that information we are required
to disclose in reports that we file or submit under “he Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (i) is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in Securities and Exchange Commission rules and
forms, and (ii) is accumulated and communicated to the Company's management, including our Chief Executive
Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, as appropr: ate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Our
disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance that such information is accu-
mulated and communicated to our management. Our disclosure controls and procedures include components of our
internal control over financial reporting. Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting is expressed at the level of reasonable assurance because a conirol system, no matter how well
designed and operated, can provide only reasonablk:, but not absolute, assurance that the control system’s objectives
will be met.

Management’s annual report on internal control over financial reporting

See “Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting” on page 46.

Changes in internal control over financial reporting

During 2006, Taleo’s management implemented the following changes in internal control over financial
reporting to address the material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting identified for the period
ended December 31, 2005.

Taleo reviewed and redesigned our internal controls over financial reporting related to our closing procedures
and processes, our calculations of our reported nurabers, including depreciation expense, fixed assets, and the need
to strengthen our technical accounting expertise. Specifically, we took the following actions:

» purchased a new general accounting system, which went into production during the three months ended
September 30, 2006;

« purchased new systems for accounting fcr revenue and deferred revenue, and for accounting for stock
options, both of which went into production during the first nine months of 2006;

+ completed the process of transferring our :ccounting function to our principal executive offices located in
California; '

» hired personnel with more experience in f nancial reporting and accounting processes than the incumbent
group, and continued to seek additional technical accounting resources;

+ continued the implementation and documentation for new policies around closing processes;

« improved detective controls with greater financial analysis around operational metrics that are key to our
performance; and

+ improved benchmarking our internal financial operations and implemented best practices in various
business processes.

With the implementation of the above controls and procedures during 2006, we have improved our internal
control over financial reporting and have determined that we have completed the remediation of the prior year
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material weaknesses related to the accounting for depreciation of fixed assets, accrual of dividends on preferred
stock, and failure to properly apply GAAP.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None

PART 111

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information regarding our directors required by this item is included under the caption “Proposal One —
Election of Directors” in our Proxy Statement for our 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the 2007 Proxy
Statement”) and is incorporated herein by reference. The information regarding our current executive officers
required by this item is included under the caption “Executive Officers of the Registrant” in Part I of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K and is incorporated herein by reference. The information regarding compliance with
Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act required by this item is included under the caption “Section 16(a) Beneficial
Ownership Reporting Compliance™ in the 2007 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference. The
information regarding our code of ethics, nominating committee and audit committee required by this item is
included under the caption “Corporate Governance” in the 2007 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by
reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information regarding executive compensation required by this item is included under the caption
“Executive Compensation” in the 2007 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information regarding securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans required by this
item is included under the caption “Executive Compensation — Equity Compensation Plan Information” in the
2007 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference. The information regarding security ownership of
certain beneficial owners and management required by this item is included under the caption “Ownership of
Securities” in the 2007 Proxy Statement and is incorpcrated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information regarding transactions with related persons required by this item is included under the caption
“Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” in the 2007 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by
reference. The information regarding director independence required by this item is included under the caption
“Corperate Governance” in the 2007 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is included under the caption “Proposal Two — Ratification of
Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm — Principal Accounting Fees and Services”
in the 2007 Proxy Statement and is incorporated in this Item 14 by this reference.

£7




- PART IV -

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) The following documents are filed as part of this Report:

1. Financial Statements. The information concerning our financial statements, and Report of Deloitte &
Touche LLP, Independent Registered Public Acccunting Firm required by this item is incorporated by reference
herein to ITEM 8. -—— FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.

2. Financial Statement Schedules.

The Financial Statement Schedules not listed have been omitted because they are not applicable or are not
required or the information required to be set fort1 herein is included in ITEM 8. — FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.

3. Exhibits. See ITEM 15(b) below. We have filed, or incorporated into this Report by reference, the exhibits
listed on the accompanying Index to Exhibits im nediately following the signature page of this Form 10-K.

(b) Exhibits:

We have filed, or incorporated into the R zport by reference, the exhibits listed on the accompanying Index
to Exhibits immediately following the signature page of this Form 10-K.

(¢) Financial Statement Schedules:

See ITEM 15(a) above.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(c) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: March 16, 2007

TALEO CORPORATION

By: /s/ Katy Murray

Katy Murray
Chief Financial Officer

" POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOWALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes
and appoints Michael Gregoire and Katy Murray, his attorney-in-fact, each with the power of substitution, for him in
any and all capacities, to sign any amendments to this Annual Réport on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with
exhibits thereto and other documents in connections therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
hereby ratifying and conforming all that each of said attorneys-in-fact, or his substitutes, may do or cause to be done

by virtue of hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchiange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature

/s/ Michael Gregoire

Michael Gregoire

fs/ Katy Murray

Katy Murray

/s Louis Tetu

Louis Tetu

/s/  Gary Bloom

Gary Bloom

/s!  Patrick Gross

Patrick Gross

/s Howard Gwin

Howard Gwin

fs/  FBric Herr

Eric Herr

Title Date

President, Chief Executive March 16, 2007
Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer )

Chief Financial Officer March 16, 2007
{Principal Accounting
and Financial Officer)

Chairman of the March 16, 2007
Board of Directors

Director March 16, 2007
Director . March 16, 2007
Director March 16, 2007
Director March 16, 2007

39




Signature

/s/  Greg Santora

Is/

Greg Santora

Jeffrey Schwartz

Is/

Jeffrey Schwartz

Michael Tierney

Michael Tierney

90

Title

Director

Director

Director

Date

March 16, 2007

March 16, 2007

March 16, 2007
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10.4*

10.5*
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated October 21, 2003, between the Registrant, Kangaroo Acquisition
Corporation and White Amber, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant's
Registration Statemem on Form S-1, Commission File No. 333-114093, filed on March 31, 2004)

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated March 10, 2005, between the Registrant, Butterfly Acquisition
Corporation and Recruitforce.com, Ine, (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 10-12G, Commission File No. 000-51299, filed on
May 2, 2005)

Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of Marca 2, 2007, by and among the Registrant, JobFlash, Inc., and,
with respect to Article X, Article XI and Article XII thereof only, U.5. Bank National Association as
Escrow Agent (incorporated herein by refevence to Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed on March 8, 2007)

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorpcration (incorporared herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1, Commission File No. 333-114093, filed on
September 13, 2005)

Bylaws (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant's Registration Stalement on
Form S-1, Commission File No. 333-11409Z, filed on May 13, 2004)

Form of Class A common stock certificate (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, Commzss:on File No. 333-114093, filed on
September 13, 2005)

Form of Class B common stock certificate (incorporated herein by reference to Fxhibit 4.2 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, Commission File No. 333-114093, filed on
September 13, 2005)

Second Amended and Restated Investor Rights Agreement, dated October 21, 2003 (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1, Commission File
No. 333-114093, filed on March 31, 2004)

Covenant Agreement, dated November 24, 1999, between the Registrant and ViaSite Inc. (incorporated

- herein by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the Regisirant's Registration Statement on Form 10-12G, Commission

File No. 000-51299, filed on May 2, 2005)

1999 Stock Plan and form of agreement therzunder (incorporated herein by referencé to Exhibir 10.1 to
the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form §-1, Commission File No. 333-114093, filed on Marck 31,
2004)

ViaSite Inc. Stock Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1 0.2 to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1, Commission File No, 333-114093, filed on March 31, 2004)

2003 Series D Preferred Stock Plan and form of agreement thereunder (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 10.3 1o the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 5-1, Commission File No. 333-114093,
filed on March 31, 2004)

2004 Stock Pian and form of agreement thercunder (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to
the Registrant’s Registration’ Statement on Form S-1, Commission File No. 333-114093, filed on
January 28, 2005)

12004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant’s

Registration Statement on Form §-1, Commission File No. 333-114093, filed on January 28, 2005)

2005 Stock Plan and form of agreement thereunder (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to
the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, Commission File No. 333-114093, filed on
September 13, 2005)

Employment Agreement, dated March 14, 2005, between the Registrantl and Michael Gregoire
(incorperated herein by reference to Exhinit 10.16 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on
Form 10-12G, Commission File No. 000-51299, filed on May 2, 2005)
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Description

Employment Agreement, dated March 8, 2006, between the Registrant and Divesh Sisodraker
(incorporated herein by reference to Exuibit 10.8 1o the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form [0-K,
filed on April 17, 2006)

Amendment to Employment Agreement bitween the Registrant and Divesh Sisodraker dated July 7, 2006
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-0, filed
on November 14, 2006)

Employment Agreement, dated March 8, 2006, between the Registrant and Bradford Benson
{(incorporated herein by reference to Exiibit 10.9 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form [0-K,
filed on April 17, 2006)

Employment Agreement, dated March 8, 2006. between the Registrant and Jeffrey Carr (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to th: Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed on April 17,
2006)

Employment Agreement, dated March 8, 2006, between Taleo (Canada) Inc. and Guy Gauvin
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K,
filed on April 17, 2006)

Cessation of Employment and Board Compensation Agreement, dated March 8, 2006, between the
Company and Louis Tetu (incorporated Ferein by reference to Exhibit 10.12 10 the Registrant’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K, filed on April {7, 2006)

Executive [ncentive Bonus Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Fevruary 28, 2006)

Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into by the Registrant and each of its directors and executive
officers (incorporated hercin by referenc:: 1o Exhibit 10.6 1o the Registrant's Registration Statement on
Form S-1. Commission File No. 333-114993, filed on March 31, 2004}

Description of Director Compensation (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Regisirant’s Current Report on Form 8-k filed on December 20, 2005)

Agreement, dated September 1, 2002, betveen the Registrant and Internap Network Services Corporation
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 5-1,

. Commission File No. 333-114093, filed on January 28, 2003)

Lease for 575 Market Street, Eighth Floor, San Francisco, California (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.9 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, Commission File No. 333-114093,
filed on September 13, 2003)

Lease for 330 St. Vallier East, Suite 40), Quebec, QC, Canada (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.10 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form §-1, Commission File No. 333-114093,
filed on May 13, 2004}

Lease for 4140 Dublin Blvd., Suite 400, Dublin, California (incorperated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 22, 2006)

Master Services Agreement dated April 14, 2006, by and between the Registrant and Equinix Operating
Co., Inc. {incorporated herein by referenc:: to Exhibit 10.1 1o the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K,
filed on April 20, 2006)

Form of Taleo Corporation 2004 Stocl: Plan Restricted Stock Agreement (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on June 6, 2006)

Form of Taleo Corporation 2004 Stock Plan Performance Share Agreement (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on June 6, 2006)

Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Katy Murray dated August 4, 2006 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on August 10,
2006)
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Exhibit
Number

10.25

21.1
23.1
241
31.1
31.2
321

Description

Sublease Agreement dated October 19, 2006 by and between the Regisirant, as sublessor, and Cyworld,
Inc., as sublessee, for the premises located at 575 Market Street, San Francisco, California (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Rezistrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on October 25,
2006)

List of Subsidiaries

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Power of Attorney (see the signature page of this Annual Report)

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,

- as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

* Indicates management compensatory plan, contract or arrangement.
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STOCK PRICE PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph shows a comparison from September 29, 2005 through December 31, 2006 of cumulative total return for
Taleo's Class A common stock, the Nasdaq Stock Market (U.S } Index and the Nasdaq Computer and Data Processing Index.
The graph assumes that $100 was invested on September 29, 2005 in () Taleo’s Class A common stock and {ii) each of the
indices as noted below, including reinvestment of dividends.|No dividends have been paid or declared on Taleo’s Class A

common stock. Note that historic stock price performance iss not necessarily indicative of future stock price performance.

COMPARISON OF 15 MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Taleo Corporation|the NASDAQ Composite Index
And The NASDAQ Computer & Data Processing Index
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—8—— Talec Corporation
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" $100 invested on 9/29/05 in stock or on 8/31/05 in index-includiniy reinvestment of dividends.
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